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DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD -LOOKING STATEMENTS

THIS REPORT INCLUDES "FORWARD-LOOKING STATENTS" WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED, AND THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACTFO1934, AS AMENDED. ALL STATEMENTS OTHER THAN
STATEMENTS OF HISTORICAL FACTS INCLUDED IN THIS REBPRT, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, STATEMENTS
REGARDING THE REGISTRANT'S FUTURE FINANCIAL POSITID, BUSINESS STRATEGY, BUDGETS, PROJECTED COSTS AND
PLANS AND OBJECTIVES OF MANAGEMENT FOR FUTURE OPERFONS, ARE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. IN
ADDITION, FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS GENERALLY CANBE IDENTIFIED BY THE USE OF FORWARD-LOOKING
TERMINOLOGY SUCH AS "MAY", "WILL", "EXPECT", "INTEND", "ESTIMATE", "ANTICIPATE", "BELIEVE", OR "CONTINUE" OR
THE NEGATIVE THEREOF OR SIMILAR TERMINOLOGY. ALTHOWH THE REGISTRANT BELIEVES THAT THE EXPECTATION
REFLECTED IN SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ARE RESONABLE, IT CAN GIVE NO ASSURANCE THAT SUCH
EXPECTATIONS WILL PROVE TO BE CORRECT. IMPORTANT FAN'ORS THAT COULD CAUSE ACTUAL RESULTS TO DIFFER
MATERIALLY FROM THE REGISTRANT'S EXPECTATIONS ARE [3CLOSED IN THIS REPORT UNDER THE CAPTION "RISK
FACTORS" BEGINNING ON PAGE 7, AS WELL AS IN MANAGEBNT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS ON, AND INCORPORATED BYHRERENCE TO, PAGES 6 THROUGH 39 OF THE COMPANY'S
ANNUAL REPORT (EXHIBIT 13 TO THIS FORM 10-K). ALL BBSEQUENT WRITTEN AND ORAL FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE REGISTRANT, OR PER3C5 ACTING ON ITS BEHALF, ARE EXPRESSLY QUALIFIED Ii
THEIR ENTIRETY BY SUCH CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS. THE RGISTRANT ASSUMES NO DUTY TO UPDATE OR REVISE ITS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS BASED ON CHANGES IN INTENAL ESTIMATES OR EXPECTATIONS OR OTHERWISE.
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HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of th
Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2007

PART I
tem 1. BUSINESS

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (the "Company"),swacorporated under the laws of the State of Datawn February 3, 1940, and is successor
to a business originally organized in 1920. The @any is primarily engaged in contract drilling df and gas wells for others. The contract
drilling business accounts for almost all of thex@@@any's operating revenues. The Company is alsagenlgin the ownership, development,
operation of commercial real estate.

The Company is organized into two sepavptrating entities, contract drilling and real &st8oth businesses operate independently of
the other through wholly owned subsidiaries. Opegatiecentralization is balanced by a centralizedrfce division, which handles all
accounting, information technology, budgeting, nasice, cash management, and related activities.

The Company's contract drilling businessoisiposed of three reportable business segmer@sidhd drilling, offshore platform drilling
and international land drilling. The Company's UaBd drilling is conducted primarily in Oklahom@alifornia, Texas, Wyoming, Colorado,
Louisiana, Mississippi, Alabama, Arkansas, New Mexiand North Dakota, and offshore from platformshie Gulf of Mexico, California,
Trinidad and Equatorial Guinea. The Company's irggonal land segment operated in seven internatlooations during fiscal 2007:
Venezuela, Ecuador, Colombia, Argentina, BolivianiBia, and Chile.

The Company's real estate investmentsoaegdd in Tulsa, Oklahoma, where the Company mamits executive offices.
CONTRACT DRILLING
General

The Company believes that it is one ofrttagor land and offshore platform drilling contrastdn the western hemisphere. Operating
principally in North and South America, the Compapgcializes in shallow to deep drilling in oil agals producing basins of the United States
and in drilling for oil and gas in internationathktions. In the United States, the Company draswstistomers primarily from the major oil
companies and the larger independent oil compalmedouth America, the Company's current custormetsde the Venezuelan state
petroleum company and major international oil conips

In fiscal 2007, the Company received appnately 55 percent of its consolidated operatingreies from the Company's ten largest
contract drilling customers. BP plc, Petroleos dm&Zzuela S.A. and Marathon Oil Company (respegtivBlP", "PDVSA" and "Marathon"),
including their affiliates, are the Company's thiegest contract drilling customers. The Compaesfggms drilling services for BP on a world-
wide basis, PDVSA in Venezuela and Marathon inUtt. land operations. Revenues from drilling sexsiperformed for BP, PDVSA and
Marathon in fiscal 2007 accounted for approximafelypercent, 8 percent and 6 percent, respectivéiipe Company's consolidated operating
revenues for the same period.

Rigs, Equipment and Facilities

The Company provides drilling rigs, equipreersonnel, and camps on a contract basis. Hegsiees are provided so that the
Company's customers may explore for and developmailgas from onshore areas and from fixed plagptension-leg platforms and spars in
offshore areas. Each of the drilling rigs considtengines, drawworks, a mast, pumps, blowout prers, a drillstring, and related equipment.
The intended well depth and the drilling site cdiodis are the principal factors that determinedize and type of rig most suitable for a
particular drilling job. A land drilling rig may beoved from location to location without modifiaati to the rig. A helicopter rig is one that ¢
be disassembled into component part loads of appedgly 4,000-20,000 pounds and transported to teegations by helicopter, cargo
plane, or other means. A platform rig is specificdesigned to perform drilling operations uponaatigular platform. While a platform rig m
be moved from its original platform,




significant expense is incurred to modify a platiaig for operation on each subsequent platfornaddition to traditional platform rigs, the
Company operates self-moving platform drilling reggd drilling rigs to be used on tension-leg platfe and spars. The self-moving rig is
designed to be moved without the use of expensiveatt barges. The tension-leg platforms and sallwsv drilling operations to be conducted
in much deeper water than traditional fixed platier

During fiscal 1998, the Company put to warkew generation of six highly mobile/depth flégitand drilling rigs (individually the
"FlexRig®"). The FlexRig has been able to signifitta reduce average rig move times compared toairdepth-rated traditional land rigs. In
addition, the FlexRig allows a greater depth fldikipof between 8,000 to 18,000 feet and provigesater operating efficiency. The original
rigs were designated as FlexRig1l rigs. Subsequah#yCompany built and completed 12 new FlexRig&. During fiscal 2001, the Company
announced that it would build an additional 25 ndexRigs. These new rigs, known as "FlexRig3 rig&&re the next generation of FlexRigs
which incorporated new drilling technology and nemwironmental and safety design. This new desigluded integrated top drive, AC
electric drive, hydraulic BOP handling system, faudic tubular make-up and break-out system, sphitva and traveling blocks and an
enlarged drill floor that enables simultaneous castivities. All 25 of these FlexRig3s were comptéby June of 2003. Subsequently, the
Company constructed seven more FlexRig3s at arogippate cost of $11.2 million each. Constructiorih@fse rigs was completed by March
of 2004.

Since fiscal 2005, the Company has entertedseparate drilling contracts with 19 exploratemd production companies to build and
operate a total of 83 new FlexRigs. Of the 83 FiggsR27 are FlexRig3s and 56 are FlexRig4s (desdriizlow). Each of the drilling contracts
provides for a minimum fixed contract term of adethree years, with drilling services to be pernfed on a daywork contract basis. All 83
FlexRigs are expected to be completed by the etigeathird quarter of fiscal 2008. The total coustion cost for the 83-rig project is expected
to approximate $1.3 billion, or approximately $18lion per FlexRig.

While the new FlexRig3s are similar to @empany's existing FlexRig3s, the FlexRig4s arégaes! to efficiently drill more shallow
depth wells of between 4,000 and 14,000 feet. TeeRig4 design includes a trailerized version arsitidding version, which incorporate new
environmental and safety design. This new desigludles a pipe handling system which allows theaie operated by a reduced crew and
eliminates the need for a casing stabber in thé.mas

While the trailerized version provides foore efficient well site to well site rig movesethkidding version allows for drilling of up to 22
wells from a single pad which results in reducedm@mmental impact. The effective use of technolagynportant to the maintenance of the
Company's competitive position within the drillimglustry. As a result of the importance of techgglto the Company's business, we expe
continue to develop technology internally.

During fiscal 2005 and 2006, the Compangyegienced labor cost increases and labor shortadesth fabrication and rig-up services
primarily as a result of Hurricanes Katrina andaRithe hurricane-related damage significantly aéfé¢he Company's principal fabricator of
rig components and caused FlexRig production dedagsincreased rig costs. Delivery schedules ohdve FlexRigs were pushed back to s
a degree that late-delivery contractual liquidatathage payments were incurred during fiscal 20086 2nd 2007. However, the incurred
liquidated damage payments have had, and are exptchave, an immaterial impact on revenues arding Absent the occurrence of an'
the risks described in “Risk Factors” beginningpage 7, no liquidated damage payments are expexrtslincurred after October 16, 2007.

The Company assembles new FlexRigs inulsapast facility near Houston, Texas. During §62007, the Company purchased a 123
square foot fabrication facility located on approately 11 acres near Tulsa, Oklahoma. This faciityexpand the Company's existing
capacity for the fabrication and assembly of righpenents.

Drilling Contracts

The Company's drilling contracts are olgdithrough competitive bidding or as a result @fatations with customers, and often cover
multi-well and multi-year projects. Each drillinigyroperates under a separate drilling contractiriguiiscal 2007, all drilling services were
performed on a "daywork"




contract basis, under which the Company chargeed fate per day, with the price determined byltlvation, depth and complexity of the
well to be drilled, operating conditions, the digatof the contract, and the competitive forcethef market. The Company has previously
performed contracts on a combination "footage" 'a&ywork" basis, under which the Company chargégeal rate per foot of hole drilled tc
stated depth, usually no deeper than 15,000 fadtadixed rate per day for the remainder of thie hGontracts performed on a "footage" basis
involve a greater element of risk to the contratitan do contracts performed on a "daywork" badiso, the Company has previously acce|
"turnkey" contracts under which the Company chaggéigsed sum to deliver a hole to a stated depthagrees to furnish services such as
testing, coring, and casing the hole which arenoomally done on a "footage" basis. "Turnkey" caats entail varying degrees of risk greater
than the usual "footage” contract. The Companynoasiccepted any “footage" or "turnkey" contraotsat least the last ten years. The
Company believes that under current market conditidootage" and "turnkey" contract rates do nacately compensate contractors for the
added risks. The duration of the Company's driltogtracts are "well-to-well" or for a fixed terfiwell-to-well" contracts are cancelable at
option of either party upon the completion of d@nifj at any one site. Fixed-term contracts custdsnprovide for termination at the election of
the customer, with an "early termination paymeath¢ paid to the Company if a contract is termichgeor to the expiration of the fixed term.
However, under certain limited circumstances sictiestruction of a drilling rig, bankruptcy, sustad unacceptable performance by the
Company, or delivery of a rig beyond certain grand/or liquidated damage periods, no early terriangtayment would be paid to the
Company.

Excluding the fixed term contracts coverihg 83 FlexRig new-build projects, the Company B2adigs under fixed term contracts as of
the end of September 2007. While the original donator these current fixed-term contracts aresi@rmonth to three year periods, some fixed-
term and well-to-well contracts are expected tedmtinued for longer periods than the original teridowever, the contracting parties have no
legal obligation to extend the contracts. Contrgetserally contain renewal or extension provisiexarcisable at the option of the customer at
prices mutually agreeable to the Company and temer. In most instances contracts provide foitahél payments for mobilization and
demobilization.

Backlog

The Company's contract drilling backlognsisting of executed contracts with original teimsexcess of one year, as of October 31, 2007
and 2006 was $1.969 billion and $2.116 billionpexgively. Approximately 59.1 percent of the tafadtober, 2007 backlog is not reasonably
expected to be filled in fiscal 2008. Term contsamiistomarily provide for termination at the electof the customer with an "early terminat
payment" to be paid to the Company if a contratiminated prior to the expiration of the fixedme However, under certain limited
circumstances, such as destruction of a drilliggbankruptcy, sustained unacceptable performaptieebCompany, or delivery of a rig beyc
certain grace and/or liquidated damage periodganly termination payment would be paid to the Canyp In addition, a portion of the
backlog represents term contracts for new rigswuliihbe constructed in the future. The Companyaiig certain key rig components from a
single or limited number of vendors or fabricat@ertain of these vendors or fabricators are thtalgitalized independent companies located
on the Texas gulf coast. Therefore, disruptionsgrcomponent deliveries may occur. Accordinglye #ttual amount of revenue earned may
vary from the backlog reported. See "Fixed Termt€m Risk", "Limited Number of Vendors", "Thinlyapitalized Vendors" and "Operating
and Weather Risks" under Item "1A. Risk Factors."




The following table sets forth the totatkig by reportable segment as of October 31, 20@72006, and the percentage of the
October 31, 2007 backlog not reasonably expectée fidled in fiscal 2008:

Total Backlog

Reportable Percentage Not Reasonably
Segment 10/31/2007 10/31/2006 Expected to be Filled in Fiscal 2008
(in billions)
U.S. Land $ 169 $ 1.94¢ 57.2%
Offshore 234 .07¢ 82.5%
International .03¢ .08¢ 0.C%
$ 1.96¢ $ 2.11¢

U.S. LAND DRILLING

At the end of September, 2007, 2006 and 2@ Company had 156, 110 and 91 respectivelys tdnd rigs available for work in the
United States. The total number of rigs owned ataihd of fiscal 2007 increased by a net of 46frigs the end of fiscal 2006. The change
from fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2007 resulted from 48wfelexRigs placed into service, the sale of oneveational rig in June 2007, and the loss of
one FlexRig2 in a well blowout fire in August 20@ne additional FlexRig was completed as of Seper3b, 2007, and was ready for
delivery. The Company's U.S. land operations cbuted approximately 72 percent of the Company'salichated operating revenues during
fiscal 2007, compared with approximately 68 peragrdonsolidated operating revenues during fis€@i2and approximately 66 percent of
consolidated operating revenues during fiscal 280§ .utilization in fiscal 2007 was approximately Percent, down from approximately
99 percent in fiscal 2006. The Company's fleetlekRigs and highly mobile rigs maintained an averatlization of approximately 99 perce
during fiscal 2007 while the Company's conventiaigd had an average utilization rate of approxatyaB7 percent. A rig is considered to be
utilized when it is operated or being moved, asdechbr dismantled under contract. At the closasifdl 2007, 147 land rigs were working out
of 156 available rigs.

OFFSHORE PLATFORM DRILLING

The Company's offshore platform operaticmstributed approximately 8 percent of the Companghsolidated operating revenues du
fiscal 2007, compared to approximately 13 percétit® Company's consolidated operating revenuesgbioth fiscal 2006 and 2005. Rig
utilization in fiscal 2007 was approximately 65 @amt, down from approximately 69 percent in fis2@06. At the end of fiscal 2007, the
Company had seven of its nine offshore platforrs tigder contract and continued to work under mamagecontracts for three customer-
owned rigs. The management contract for one rigtlrt offshore Equatorial Guinea is expected toiteata in December 2007. Revenues fi
drilling services performed for the Company's latgefshore platform drilling customer totaled apgmately 45 percent of offshore platform
revenues during fiscal 2007.

During fiscal 2007, the Company sold twésbbére rigs. An option agreement for the sale wasace at the end of 2006 and the assets
were classified as held for sale in the CompangissGlidated Financial Statements. The rigs werkudrd from the number of owned rigs at
the end of 2006.

The Company's offshore platform Rig 20ltained significant damage from Hurricane Katrin2@®5. Insurance proceeds that
approximated replacement cost were used to retheldig. The rig returned to service during therfowuarter of fiscal 2007.

INTERNATIONAL LAND DRILLING
General

The Company's international land operatworgtributed approximately 20 percent of the Conyfsaconsolidated operating revenues
during fiscal 2007, compared with approximatelypEdcent of consolidated operating revenues duigaalf2006 and 2005. Rig utilization in
fiscal 2007 and 2006 was 90 percent.




Venezuela

Venezuelan operations continue to be affignt part of the Company's operations. The Camypsorked exclusively for the Venezuelan
state petroleum company, PDVSA, during fiscal 2808@ revenues from this work accounted for approtetyalO percent of international
operating revenues. Revenues generated from Velagzaidlling operations contributed approximatelpé@cent ($127.3 million) of the
Company's consolidated operating revenues durifg,28mpared with approximately 7 percent ($84.fian) of consolidated operating
revenues during fiscal 2006 and 8 percent ($66lBomj of consolidated operating revenues durin@20The Company had ten rigs working
Venezuela at the end of fiscal 2007.

The Company's rig utilization rate in Veuela increased from approximately 83 percent duiswl 2006 to approximately 92 percent in
fiscal 2007. The Company expects to return oneriglback to work during the first quarter of fi€908.

Ecuador

At the end of fiscal 2007, the Company osvegght rigs in Ecuador. The Company's utilizatiate was 89 percent during fiscal 2007,
down from 100 percent in fiscal 2006. Revenues gaad by Ecuadorian drilling operations contribudggroximately 6 percent
($93.9 million) of the Company's consolidated ofiatarevenues during fiscal 2007, as compared afroximately 7 percent ($88.7 million)
of consolidated operating revenues during fisc@l28nd approximately 8 percent ($60.9 million) ofisolidated operating revenues during
fiscal 2005. Revenues from drilling services parfed for the Company's largest customer in Ecuatatetd approximately 2 percent of
consolidated operating revenues and approximatelyetcent of international operating revenues dufiscal 2007. The Ecuadorian drilling
contracts are primarily with large internationdl@mpanies.

The Ecuadorian government continues to tiggowith the Company's customers to resolve eshtitisputes created by a recent
government decree. The decree modified the origioatracts for splitting profits on oil productidiithis continues without resolution, the
Company anticipates that up to seven rigs couldileen Ecuador in the second quarter of fiscal2@hould this situation occur, the
Company, at this time, is unable to predict thegterof time that the rigs would remain idle.

Other Locations

In addition to its operations in Venezusha Ecuador, at the end of fiscal 2007, the Compamed three rigs in Argentina, two rigs in
Colombia and one rig in each of Bolivia, Chile, anthisia.

At the end of November 2007, all rigs irgAntina, Colombia and Tunisia were fully employ€ke rig in Bolivia was being mobilized to
Argentina at the end of November 2007, and is etgokio begin operations there during the secondeuaf fiscal 2008. The rig in Chile was
being demobilized at the end of November 2007.

REAL ESTATE OPERATIONS

The Company's real estate operations dugd less than one percent of the Company's ddasaed operating revenues during fiscal
2007 and fiscal 2006 compared with approximately parcent of the Company's consolidated operaéimgnues during fiscal 2005. The real
estate operations are conducted exclusively witiérmetropolitan area of Tulsa, Oklahoma. Its mhfding is Utica Square Shopping Cer
consisting of 15 separate buildings, with parking ather common facilities covering an area of apnately 30 acres. Utica Square contains
approximately 440,995 leasable square feet, contpofseetail space of 377,619 leasable square dédfete space of 39,400 leasable square
storage space of 6,794 leasable square feet anth@om@rea space of 17,182 square feet. The Compaay'sstate operations occupy
approximately 4,140 square feet of general offivé storage space within the shopping center. Ocuxypia the shopping center increased
from approximately 92 percent in fiscal 2006 to mpgmately 94 percent in fiscal 2007.

At the end of the 2007 fiscal year, the @any owned 8 of a total of 73 units in The YorktowriL6story luxury residential condominiu
with approximately 150,940 square feet of livingatocated on a six-acre tract adjacent to UtiasaBgShopping Center. Five of the
Company's units are currently leased.




The Company owns and leases to third gantielti-tenant warehouse space. Three warehousesrkas Space Center, each containing
approximately 165,000 square feet of net leasgidees are situated in the southeast part of Tuldeedntersection of two major limitegisces:
highways. Present occupancy is approximately 78gmer which is unchanged from fiscal 2006. The Canypalso owns approximately 1.5
acres of undeveloped land lying adjacent to suatelauses.

Southpark is an undeveloped tract of laxwéted in a high growth area of southeast Tulsasasditable for mixed commercial and light
industrial use. At the end of fiscal 2007, the Campowned approximately 218 acres in Southparkisting of approximately 205 acres of
undeveloped real estate and approximately 13 afnesilti-tenant warehouse area. The warehouseisilggown as Space Center East and
consists of two warehouses, one containing apprateiy 90,000 square feet and the other containipgeximately 112,500 square feet.
Occupancy increased to approximately 91 perceR0@¥ from approximately 76 percent in fiscal 200@ ¢b the addition of three new tena
The Company believes that a high quality officekpaiith peripheral commercial, office/warehouseg &otel sites, is the best development
for the remaining land. A professional engineeidng planning firm has prepared a topographic suanelypreliminary site engineering plan to
aid in the possible future development of Southpahe Company and the City of Tulsa are curremtlthe process of reviewing such plans,
including hydrology studies and utility plans.

The Company owns a five-building complelezhTandem Business Park. The property is locatidcent to and east of the Space Centel
East facility and contains approximately six acveish approximately 88,084 square feet of officef@euse space. Occupancy has increased
from approximately 72 percent in 2006 to approxeha80 percent during fiscal 2007 due to the additf two tenants. The Company also
owns a 12-building complex, consisting of approxiaha204,600 square feet of office/warehouse spealéed Tulsa Business Park. The
property is located south and east of the Spacée€Ctatility, separated by a city street, and cimstapproximately 12 acres. During fiscal
2007, occupancy increased from approximately 74gyerto approximately 86 percent due to the addibiothree new tenants.

The Company owns two service center prigeetbcated adjacent to arterial streets in soeittral Tulsa. The first, called Maxim Center,
consists of one office/warehouse building contajrapproximately 40,800 square feet and is locatedpproximately 2.5 acres. During fiscal
2007, occupancy decreased to approximately 46 pefican approximately 61 percent due to the lossref large tenant. The second, called
Maxim Place, consists of one office/warehouse ngld¢dontaining approximately 33,750 square feetiaddcated on approximately 2.25 ac
During fiscal 2007, occupancy has remained unchduiag@pproximately 63 percent. The Company's effdisaster recovery center occupies
approximately 3,517 square feet of office and co@pequipment space in this property.

The Company also owns approximately 8.4@%@s of vacant land, which was the site of itenarheadquarters. No development plans
for the site are pending.

FINANCIAL

Information relating to revenues, totaleissand operating income by reportable operatiggnsats may be found on, and is incorporated
by reference to, pages 72 through 75 of the Compannual Report (Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K).

EMPLOYEES

The Company had 4,985 employees withirlLthited States (12 of which were part-time employeesl 1,471 employees in international
operations as of September 30, 2007.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Information relating to the Company's inttraddress and the Company's SEC filings may lradfon, and is incorporated by reference
to, page 78 of the Company's Annual Report (ExHiBito this Form 10-K).
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Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the risk factors discusskswhere in this Report, the Company cautionstti@following "Risk Factors" could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's busiffi@sscial condition and results of operations.

1. Competition
Competition in the Contract Drilling Business

The contract drilling business is highlyngeetitive. Competition in contract drilling involsesuch factors as price, rig availability,
efficiency, condition and type of equipment, repiota, operating safety, and customer relations. @etition is primarily on a regional basis
and may vary significantly by region at any pardcuime. Land drilling rigs can be readily movedrh one region to another in response to
changes in levels of activity, and an oversupplyigd in any region may result, leading to increlggce competition.

Although many contracts for drilling sersgcare awarded based solely on price, the Compaspden successful in establishing loergr
relationships with certain customers which havevedid the Company to secure drilling work even thotige Company may not have been the
lowest bidder for such work. The Company has caetihto attempt to differentiate its services bagmsh its engineering design expertise,
operational efficiency, safety and environmentahemess. This strategy is less effective when laleerand for drilling services intensifies
price competition and makes it more difficult orgassible to compete on any basis other than phise, future improvements in operational
efficiency and safety by the Company's competitonsd negatively affect the Company's ability tfetientiate its services.

Competition in the Real Estate Business

The Company has numerous competitors imnthiéi-tenant leasing business. The size and fiizduwsapacity of these competitors range
from one property sole proprietors to large intéoraal corporations. The primary competitive fastorclude price, location, and configuration
of space. The Company's competitive position isaenbd by the location of its properties, its finahcapability and the long-term ownership
of its properties. However, many competitors hamarfcial resources greater than the Company's anel tmore contemporary facilities.

2. Operating and Weather Risks

The drilling operations of the Company swbject to the many hazards inherent in the busjriesluding inclement weather, blowouts
well fires. These hazards could cause personalyinfuispend drilling operations, seriously damageestroy the equipment involved, and
cause substantial damage to producing formatiodgrensurrounding areas. The Company's offshotéopha drilling operations are also
subject to potentially greater environmental lipjladverse sea conditions and platform damagkestruction due to collision with aircraft or
marine vessels. Specifically, the Company opersdgsral platform rigs in the Gulf of Mexico. ThelGaf Mexico experiences hurricanes and
other extreme weather conditions on a frequensb&simage caused by high winds and turbulent sedd potentially curtail operations on
such platform rigs for significant periods of timetil the damage can be repaired. Moreover, evdreiCompany's platform rigs are not
directly damaged by such storms, the Company mpgréence disruptions in operations due to damagestomer platforms and other related
facilities in the area. Until 2005, the Companyatferm operation had not been materially affedigdhdverse weather. In August of 2005,
platform Rig 201 sustained significant hurricanendge. This rig returned to normal drilling operatian fiscal 2007.

The Company's new-build rig assembly facib located near the Houston, Texas ship chawigb, the Company's principal fabricator
and other vendors are located in the gulf coasbredue to their location, these facilities ar@esed to potentially greater hurricane damage.

3. Fixed Term Contract Risk

Fixed term drilling contracts customarikppide for termination at the election of the cusés, with an "early termination payment" to be
paid to the Company if a contract is terminatedmto the expiration of the fixed term. Howeverdencertain limited circumstances, such as
destruction of a drilling




rig, bankruptcy, sustained unacceptable performagabe Company, or delivery of a rig beyond cergriace and/or liquidated damage
periods, no early termination payment would be paithe Company.

4. Indemnification and Insurance Coverage

Insurance coverage for "named storms" éGllf of Mexico has been limited for the past tyaars. The Company purchased an
aggregate limit of $75 million of wind storm covgeaand self-insures 20 percent of that limit ad el $2.5 million deductible. Additionally,
the Company obtained rig property insurance fop&@ent of the aggregate estimated replacemenbtdstrigs in excess of a $1 million per
occurrence deductible. The Company self insuresehmaining 20 percent of such rig value as wethasdeductible. No insurance is carried
against loss of earnings or business interrupfitve. Company is unable to obtain significant amowofifesurance to cover risks of
underground reservoir damage; however, the Comjzaggnerally indemnified under its drilling conttaérom this risk.

The Company has insurance coverage for celmepsive general liability, automobile liabilityprker's compensation, and employer's
liability. Generally, casualty deductibles are $illion or $2 million per occurrence, depending ohether a claim occurs inside or outside of
the United States. The Company maintains certdiarahsurance coverages with deductibles as higtb asillion. Insurance is purchased over
deductibles to reduce the Company's exposure &straphic events. The Company retains a signifipartion of its expected losses under its
worker's compensation, general liability, and autbite liability programs. The Company records esties for incurred outstanding liabilities
for unresolved worker's compensation, generallltghband for claims that are incurred but not repd. Estimates are based on historic
experience and statistical methods that the Compaligves are reliable. Nonetheless, insuranceatgs include certain assumptions and
management judgments regarding the frequency amdigeof claims, claim development, and settlenpaaictices. Unanticipated changes in
these factors may produce materially different ami®of expense that would be reported under thexgams.

5. Availability of Equipment and Supplies

The contract drilling business is highllgal. During periods of increased demand for cacettdrilling services, delays in delivery and
shortages of drilling equipment and supplies caruncThese risks are intensified during periodsme industry experiences significant new
drilling rig construction or refurbishment.

6. Limited Number of Vendors

Certain key rig components are either paseld from or fabricated by a single or limited nemd&f vendors, and the Company has no
long-term contracts with many of these vendors.r@lges could occur in these essential componertsadan interruption of supply or
increased demands in the industry. If the Compaay wnable to procure certain of such rig componéntuld be required to reduce its rig
construction or other operations, which could haweaterial adverse effect on the Company's busifiaasicial condition and results of
operations.

If the Company's principal fabricator, lted on the Texas gulf coast, was unable or unwilincontinue fabricating rig components, then
the Company would have to transfer this work teoticceptable fabricators. This transfer couldltéssignificant delay in the completion of
new FlexRigs. Any significant interruption in thebfication of rig components could have a matexizierse impact on the Company's
business, financial condition, and results of opena.

7. Thinly Capitalized Vendors

Certain key rig components are obtainethftendors that are, in some cases, thinly capétd)imdependent companies that generate
significant portions of their business from the Qamy or from a small group of companies in the gnérdustry. These vendors may be
disproportionately affected by any loss of businasisy any downturn in the energy industry. Therefalisruptions in rig component delivery
may occur, and such disruptions and terminationdddoave a material adverse effect on the Compdmugmess, financial condition, or results
of operations.

8. Volatility of Oil and Gas Prices

The Company's operations can be materdlbcted by low oil and gas prices. The Companjebek that any significant reduction in oil
and gas prices could depress the level of exptoratnd production activity and result in a corregpog decline in demand for the Company's
services. Worldwide military,




political and economic events, including initiatviey the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Caestrmay affect both the demand for, and
the supply of, oil and gas. Fluctuations duringlt® few years in the demand and supply of oil gasl have contributed to, and are likely to
continue to contribute to, price volatility. Anygdonged reduction in demand for the Company's sesvtould have a material adverse effe
the Company's business, financial condition orltesf operations.

9. International Uncertainties and Local Laws

International operations are subject tdagemolitical, economic, and other uncertainties encountered in U.S. operations, including
increased risks of terrorism, kidnapping of empksjeexpropriation of equipment as well as exprdiprieof a particular oil company operatc
property and drilling rights, taxation policiesréign exchange restrictions, currency rate fluétuast and general hazards associated with
foreign sovereignty over certain areas in whichrapens are conducted. There can be no assuraatcthére will not be changes in local laws,
regulations, and administrative requirements olinterpretation thereof which could have a matadlerse effect on the profitability of the
Company's operations or on the ability of the Comypta continue operations in certain areas.

Because of the impact of local laws, thenpany's future operations in certain areas mayheducted through entities in which local
citizens own interests and through entities (inicigdoint ventures) in which the Company holds oalsninority interest, or pursuant to
arrangements under which the Company conducts tipesainder contract to local entities. While then@pany believes that neither operating
through such entities nor pursuant to such arraegé&mwould have a material adverse effect on thegamy's operations or revenues, there
be no assurance that the Company will in all chsesble to structure or restructure its operattorconform to local law (or the administration
thereof) on terms acceptable to the Company.

Venezuela continues to experience signifipmlitical, economic and social instability. Imetevent that extended labor strikes occur or
turmoil increases, the Company could experiencetapes in labor and/or material and supplies natgds operate some or all of its
Venezuelan drilling rigs, which could have a mateadverse effect on the Company's business, fiabtandition or results of operations.

During the mid-1970s, the Venezuelan gowermt nationalized the exploration and productiosifess. At the present time it appears the
Venezuelan government will not nationalize the cacttdrilling business. Any such nationalizatiomlcbresult in the Company's loss of all ¢
portion of its assets and business in Venezuela.

Although the Company attempts to minimize potential impact of such risks by operating mrenthan one geographical area, during
fiscal 2007, approximately 20 percent of the Conyfsmoonsolidated operating revenues were genefiatedthe international contract drilling
business. Approximately 95 percent of the inteoreati operating revenues were from operations irttSAmerica and approximately
73 percent of South American operating revenueg fvem Venezuela and Ecuador.

10. Currency Risk
General

Contracts for work in foreign countries geally provide for payment in United States dollascept for amounts required to meet local
expenses. However, government owned petroleum coiegpare more frequently requesting that a grgatgortion of these payments be
made in local currencies. Based upon current infdion, the Company believes that exposure to paidnsses from currency devaluation is
immaterial in Colombia, Bolivia, Equatorial Guingzhile, and Tunisia. In those countries, all reables and payments are currently in U.S.
dollars. Cash balances are kept at an insignifikes@l which assists in reducing exposure.

Argentina

In 2002, Argentina suffered a 60 percenidigation of the peso. As a consequence, the Coymegured agreements with its customers
that limited the portion of the accounts receivahbg was paid in pesos with the balance of suchwats receivable paid in U.S. dollars. The
exchange rate between the U.S. dollar and the Airgepeso has stayed within a narrow range fop#st four years and in fiscal 2007 the
Company experienced an immaterial currency loss.




Venezuela

The Company is exposed to risks of curradeyaluation in Venezuela primarily as a resubalivar receivable balances and bolivar cash
balances. In Venezuela, approximately 60 percetittofCompany's billings are in U.S. dollars ancéfcent are in the local currency, the
bolivar. The significance of this arrangement &ttiven though the dollar-based invoices may be ipdiolivares, the Company, historically,
has usually been able to convert the bolivaresting dollars in a timely manner and thus avoidange measure, devaluation losses perta
to the dollar-based invoices paid in bolivares. ldager, this arrangement is effective only in theemlog of exchange controls. In January 2003,
the Venezuelan government put into effect exchaogérols that fixed the exchange rate and alsoipiteld the Company, as well as other
companies, from converting the bolivar into U.Sllats through the Central Bank.

As part of the exchange controls regulattba Venezuelan government provided a mechanismhigh companies could request
conversion of bolivares into U.S. dollars. In corapte with such regulations, the Company, in Oatab003, submitted a request to the
Venezuelan government seeking permission to diddsrnings, which would convert 14 billion bolivaiiato U.S. dollars. In January 2004,
the Venezuelan government approved the Compargteséto convert bolivar cash balances to U.Sadolnd allowed the remittance of
$8.8 million U.S. dollars as dividends to the Lb8sed parent. This was the first dividend remitbeder the new regulation. On January 16,
2006, a dividend of $6.5 million U.S. dollars wasnitted to the U.S. based parent. On August 186 2@ Company applied for a $9.3 milli
dividend. The Venezuelan government subsequenfyoapd $7.2 million of this dividend and on March2607, the $7.2 million was paid to
the U.S. based parent. As a consequence, the Cgiagaaposure to currency devaluation was reducetidse amounts.

On June 7, 2007, the Company began theepsaio make application with the Venezuelan govemmequesting the approval to convert
bolivar cash balances to U.S. dollars. Upon approgen the Venezuelan government, the Company's¥eealan subsidiary will remit
approximately $8.3 million as a dividend to its Ub@sed parent, thus reducing the Company's expéswurrency devaluation.

While the Company has been successful faining government approval for conversion of batas to U.S. dollars, there is no guarantee
that future conversion to U.S. dollars will be péted. In the event that conversion to U.S. dollaouild be prohibited, then bolivar cash
balances would increase and expose the Compangreeised risk of devaluation.

As stated above, the Company is exposegks of currency devaluation in Venezuela prinyaai$ a result of bolivar receivable balances
and bolivar cash balances. As a result of a 12gnémbevaluation of the bolivar during fiscal 206 Company experienced total devaluation
losses of $0.6 million during that same period.

Past devaluation losses may not be refledf the actual potential for future devaluatiosdes. Even though Venezuela continues to
operate under the exchange controls in place anfénezuelan bolivar exchange rate has remained fix 2150 bolivares to one U.S. dollar
since the devaluation in March 2005, the exact arhand timing of devaluation is uncertain. At Sepber 30, 2007, the Company had a
$25.6 million cash balance denominated in bolivargsosed to the risk of currency devaluation. Witiee Company is unable to predict future
devaluation in Venezuela, if fiscal 2008 activigwéls are similar to fiscal 2007, and if a 10 patde 20 percent devaluation were to occur, the
Company could experience potential currency devi@ndosses ranging from approximately $3.5 millior$6.4 million.

11. Increased Receivables in Venezuela

The Company derives its revenue in Venezfrem PDVSA, the Venezuelan state-owned petroleampany. At the end of fiscal 2007,
the Company had a net receivable from PDVSA of axiprately $49.7 million, of which approximately $02nillion was 90 days old or oldk
At November 1, 2007, such receivable balance herdased to approximately $50.3 million, of whiclpagximately $14.4 million was 90 da
old or older. The Company continues to communieate PDVSA regarding the settlement of the outsiagdeceivables.

While the collection of the receivablegifficult and time consuming due to PDVSA policiesd procedures, the Company, at this time,
has no reason to believe the amounts will not lied ppistorically,
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PDVSA payments on accounts receivable have, bytivadl business measurements, been slower thae thioother foreign customers of the
Company. However, the failure of PDVSA to make pawis on outstanding receivables, or a continueg#se in its delay in making
payments could have a material adverse effect@Ctmpany's business, financial condition and tesdiloperations.

12. Government Regulation and Environmental Ris&

Many aspects of the Company's operatioasalject to government regulation, including thedating to drilling practices and methods
and the level of taxation. In addition, the Unit&t@dtes and various other countries have enviroraheggulations which affect drilling
operations. Drilling contractors may be liable dimmages resulting from pollution. Under United &atgulations, drilling contractors must
establish financial responsibility to cover potahtiability for pollution of offshore waters. Geradly, the Company is indemnified under
drilling contracts from liability arising from paltion, except in certain cases of surface pollutidowever, the enforceability of
indemnification provisions in foreign countries nag questionable.

The Company believes that it is in subsahisbmpliance with all legislation and regulaticaf§ecting its operations in the drilling of oil
and gas wells and in controlling the discharge a$t®s. To date, compliance has not materially gftethe capital expenditures, earnings, or
competitive position of the Company, although thesasures may add to the costs of drilling opematiddditional legislation or regulation
may reasonably be anticipated, and the effect tiieme operations cannot be predicted.

13. Interest Rate Risk

At September 30, 2007, the Company hadanding, $175 million intermediate-term unsecurebtdvith staged maturities from
August 2009 to August 2014, with varying fixed irest rates for each maturity series. The averageest rate during the next four years on
this debt is 6.5 percent, after which it increa®e8.6 percent. The fair value of this debt at 8eyiter 30, 2007 was approximately $182 mill

In December 2006, the Company enteredantagreement for a five-year $400 million seniosagured credit facility. The Company had
$270 million borrowed and two letters of creditatioig $20.9 million outstanding against the fagilitt September 30, 2007. The interest rat
the borrowings is based on a spread over LIBORth@@€ompany pays a commitment fee based on thesdrngdance of the facility. The
spread over LIBOR as well as the commitment faetermined according to a scale based on a ratleeoc€ompany's total debt to total
capitalization. The Company also has the optidmotwow at the prime rate for maturities of lessti3Q@ days.

Also in December 2006, the Company enteredan agreement with a single bank to amend asi@te the previous unsecured line of
credit from $50 million to $5 million. The interestte on borrowings is equal to the prime rate mibhlr5%. At September 30, 2007, the
Company had no outstanding borrowings againstrbditdine.

Interest rates could rise for various re@asa the future and increase the Company's totatést expense, depending upon the amount
borrowed against the credit line.

14. Equity Price Risk

At September 30, 2007, the Company hadtigtio of securities with a total market value®f57.5 million. These securities are subject
to a wide variety of market-related risks that cosuibstantially reduce or increase the market vafilee Company's holdings. Except for the
Company's holdings in Atwood Oceanics, Inc. aneggtments in limited partnerships carried at chst portfolio is recorded at fair value on
balance sheet with changes in unrealized aftevdue reflected in the equity section of its baksbeet. Any reduction in market value would
have an impact on the Company's debt ratio andiiahstrength.

15. Reliance on Small Number of Customers

In fiscal 2007, the Company received apjpnaxely 55 percent of its consolidated operatingreies from the Company's ten largest
contract drilling customers and approximately 2Ecpat of its consolidated operating revenues freenGompany's three largest customers
(including their affiliates). The Company believbat its relationship with all of these customergdod; however, the loss of one or more ¢
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larger customers would have a material adverseteffethe Company's business, financial conditioresults of operations.
16. Key Personnel

The Company utilizes highly skilled persehim operating and supporting its businessesmeg of high utilization, it can be difficult to
find qualified individuals. Although to date the @pany's operations have not been materially affidloyecompetition for personnel, an
inability to obtain a sufficient number of qualifiggersonnel could materially impact the Company&iress, financial condition or results of
operations.

17. Changes in Technologies

Although the Company takes measures torertbat it uses advanced oil and natural gasmgiiechnology, changes in technology or
improvements in competitors' equipment could makeGompany's equipment less competitive or recigmr@ficant capital investments to
keep its equipment competitive.

18. Concentration of Credit

The concentration of the Company's custerirethe energy industry could cause them to bédasigaffected by changes in industry
conditions and, as a result, could impact the Caomiaxposure to credit risk. The Company cannfetr @ssurances that losses due to
uncollectible receivables will be consistent wikpectations.
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Item 1B.

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

The Company has received no written commezgarding its periodic or current reports from $taff of the Securities and Exchange

Commission that were issued 180 days or more piegélde end of its 2007 fiscal year and that remuairesolved.

Iltem 2.

PROPERTIES

CONTRACT DRILLING

The following table sets forth certain imfation concerning the Company's U.S. drilling r@gsof September 30, 2007:

Location Rig Optimum Depth Rig Type Drawworks: Horsepower
FLEXRIGS
TEXAS 164 18,00( SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
TEXAS 16t 18,00( SCR (FlexRig1 1,50(
TEXAS 16€ 18,00( SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
TEXAS 167 18,00( SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
TEXAS 16¢€ 18,00( SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
TEXAS 16¢ 18,00( SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
WYOMING 17¢ 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2’ 1,50(
WYOMING 18C 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2’ 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 181 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 182 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 187 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2’ 1,50(
LOUISIANA 184 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 18t 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 18€ 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2’ 1,50(
TEXAS 187 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 18¢€ 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 18¢ 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2’ 1,50(
TEXAS 21C 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 211 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 212 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 217 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 214 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
COLORADO 21 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 21€ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 217 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 21¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 21¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 22C 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
LOUISIANA 221 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 222 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 22% 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 224 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 22°F 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 22€ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 227 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 22¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 22¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 23C 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 231 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 232 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 23% 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 234 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
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TEXAS 23t 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
CALIFORNIA 23€ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 237 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(



TEXAS 23¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
COLORADO 23¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
CALIFORNIA 24C 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
WYOMING 241 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(

TEXAS 247 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(

TEXAS 244 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(

TEXAS 24t 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(

TEXAS 24€ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(

TEXAS 247 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(

TEXAS 24¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(

TEXAS 24¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 25¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 251 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 252 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(

TEXAS 252 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(

TEXAS 254 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(

NORTH DAKOTA 25E 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 25€ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 257 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 25€ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 25¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(

TEXAS 26C 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
COLORADO 271 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 272 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 277 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 274 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 27E 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 27€ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 277 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 27€ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 27¢ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 28¢ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 281 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
NEW MEXICO 282 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
NEW MEXICO 282 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
WYOMING 284 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
WYOMING 28t 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
WYOMING 28¢ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
WYOMING 287 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(

TEXAS 28€ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(

TEXAS 28¢ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 29¢ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 291 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
COLORADO 292 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(

TEXAS 292 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(

TEXAS 294 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(

TEXAS 29t 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(

TEXAS 29€ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(

TEXAS 297 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
WYOMING 29¢ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(

TEXAS 29¢ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(

TEXAS 30¢ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
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TEXAS 301 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(

TEXAS 30z 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(

TEXAS 30z 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(

TEXAS 304 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(

TEXAS 30E 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
NEW MEXICO 30€ 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
WYOMING 307 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
WYOMING 30€ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
WYOMING 30¢ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
WYOMING 31¢ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(



WYOMING 311 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50¢

TEXAS 312 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 31z 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 314 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
WYOMING 31E 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 31€ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 317 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 31€ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 31¢ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 32¢ 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 321 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(

HIGHLY MOBILE RIGS

ARKANSAS 14C 10,00( Mechanical 90C
OKLAHOMA 15¢ 10,00( SCR 90C
TEXAS 15€ 12,00( Mechanical 1,20(
WYOMING 15¢ 12,00( Mechanical 1,20(
OKLAHOMA 141 14,00( Mechanical 1,20(
TEXAS 14z 14,00( Mechanical 1,20(¢
OKLAHOMA 145 14,00( Mechanical 1,20(
TEXAS 14E 14,00( Mechanical 1,20(¢
TEXAS 15& 14,00( SCR 1,20(
TEXAS 14¢ 16,00( SCR 1,20(
TEXAS 147 16,00( SCR 1,20(
WYOMING 154 16,00( SCR 1,50(

CONVENTIONAL RIGS

OKLAHOMA 11C 12,00( SCR 70C
OKLAHOMA 96 16,00( SCR 1,00(
TEXAS 11¢€ 16,00( SCR 1,20(
OKLAHOMA 11¢ 16,00( SCR 1,20(
TEXAS 12C 16,00( SCR 1,20(
TEXAS 171 16,00( SCR 1,00(
WYOMING 17z 16,00( Mechanical 1,00(
LOUISIANA 122 16,00( SCR 1,70(
OKLAHOMA 162 18,00( SCR 1,50(
LOUISIANA 79 20,00( SCR 2,00(
TEXAS 80 20,00( SCR 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 89 20,00( SCR 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 92 20,00( SCR 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 94 20,00( SCR 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 98 20,00( SCR 1,50(
TEXAS 97 26,00( SCR 2,00(
TEXAS 99 26,00( SCR 2,00(
TEXAS 137 26,00( SCR 2,00(
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TEXAS 14¢ 26,00( SCR 2,00(
LOUISIANA 72 30,00( SCR 3,00(
OKLAHOMA 73 30,00( SCR 3,00(
TEXAS 12¢ 30,00( SCR 3,00(
LOUISIANA 134 30,00( SCR 3,00(
ALABAMA 13€ 30,00( SCR 3,00(
TEXAS 157 30,00( SCR 3,00(
LOUISIANA 161 30,00( SCR 3,00(
LOUISIANA 165 30,00( SCR 3,00(

OFFSHORE PLATFORM RIGS

LOUISIANA* 20z 20,00( Self-Erecting 2,50(
TEXAS 20t 20,00( Tensior-leg 2,00¢



LOUISIANA 20€ 20,00( Self-Erecting
GULF OF MEXICO 10C 30,00( Conventiona

LOUISIANA 10t 30,00( Conventiona
GULF OF MEXICO 107 30,00( Conventiona
GULF OF MEXICO 201 30,00( Tensior-leg
GULF OF MEXICO 20z 30,00( Tensior-leg
GULF OF MEXICO 204 30,00( Tensior-leg

* Rig moving to Trinidad in the first quarter of fed2008.

1,50(
3,00(
3,00(
3,00(
3,00(
3,00(
3,00(

The following table sets forth informatiasith respect to the utilization of the Company'SlUand and offshore drilling rigs for the

periods indicated:

Years ended September 3(

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
U.S. Land Rig:
Number of rigs owned at end of peri 83 87 91 113 157
Average rig utilization rate during period ( 81% 87% 94% 9% 97%
U.S. Offshore Platform Ric
Number of rigs owned at end of peri 12 11 11 9 9
Average rig utilization rate during period ( 51% 48% 53% 69% 65%

(1) Arrigis considered to be utilized when it is ogethor being moved, assembled, or dismantled urwigract.
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The following table sets forth certain infation concerning the Company's internationalidglrigs as of September 30, 2007:

Drawworks:

Location Rig Optimum Depth Rig Type Horsepower
Argentina 13¢ 30,00+ SCR 3,00(
Argentina 17t 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Argentina 177 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Bolivia* 151 30,00+ SCR 3,00(
Chile 12Z 26,00( SCR 2,10(
Colombia 13< 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Colombia 152 30,00+ SCR 3,00(
Ecuadot 22 18,00( SCR (Heli Rig) 1,70(C
Ecuadotl 23 18,00( SCR (Heli Rig) 1,50(
Ecuadot 132 18,00( SCR 1,50(
Ecuadot 17€ 18,00( SCR 1,50(
Ecuadot 121 20,00( SCR 1,70(C
Ecuadot 117 26,00( SCR 2,50(
Ecuadot 13¢ 26,00( SCR 2,50(
Ecuadot 19C 26,00( SCR 2,00(
Tunisia 247 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
Venezuele 16C 26,00( SCR 2,00(
Venezuele 113 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Venezuele 11E 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Venezuele 11¢€ 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Venezuele 127 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Venezuele 12¢€ 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Venezuele 12¢ 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Venezuele 13t 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Venezuele 15C 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Venezuele 174 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Venezuele 152 30,00(+ SCR 3,00(

* Rig moved to Argentina in the first quarter of &6€008.

The following table sets forth informatiaith respect to the utilization of the Company*inational drilling rigs for the periods
indicated:

Years ended September 30,

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Number of rigs owned at end of Peri 32 32 26 27 27
Average rig utilization rate during period (1)! 39% 54% 7% 9% 9C%

(1) Arrigis considered to be utilized when it is ogethor being moved, assembled, or dismantled urwigract.

(2) Does not include rigs returned to the United Stadesnajor modifications and upgrades.

REAL ESTATE OPERATIONS
Sedtem 1. BUSINESS, pages 5 through 6 of this Report, which is inooaped herein by reference.
STOCK PORTFOLIO

Information required by this item regardihg stock portfolio held by the Company may benfbon, and is incorporated by reference to,
page 26 of the Company's Annual Report (Exhibitdlthis Form 10-K) under the caption, "Managemebigcussion & Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations."
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Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is subject to various clainat #rise in the ordinary course of its businesshénopinion of management, the amount of
ultimate liability with respect to these actiondlwot materially affect the financial position stdts of operations, or liquidity of the Company.
The Company is not a party to, and none of its @riygds subject to, any material pending legal peatings.

ltem 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None.
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

The following table sets forth the named ages of the Company's executive officers, togetfith all positions and offices held with the
Company by such executive officers. Officers aeetedd to serve until the meeting of the Board a&Etors following the next Annual Meetil
of Stockholders and until their successors have beg elected and have qualified or until theiriearesignation or removal.

W. H. Helmerich, lll, 84 Chairman of the Board; Director since 1949; Chairrofithe Board since 19¢

Hans Helmerich, 49 Tg%sgdent and Chief Executive Officer; Directorcgiri987; President and Chief Executive Officereinc

Douglas E. Fears, £ Vice President and Chief Financial Officer sinc&8a

Steven R. Mackey, 56 Vice President, Secretary and General Counselg8agrsince 1990; Vice President and General Counse
since 198¢

John W. Lindsay, 46 Executive Vice President, U.S. and Internationaé@pons of Helmerich & Payne International

Drilling Co. since 2006; Vice President of U.S. da@perations of Helmerich & Payne International
Drilling Co. from 1997 to 200!

M. Alan Orr, 56 Executive Vice President, Engineering and DevelagméHelmerich & Payne International Drilling Co.
since 2006; Vice President and Chief Engineer dirtldech & Payne International Drilling Co. from 13
to 2006
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PART Il

tem 5. MARKET FOR THE COMPANY'S COMMON STOCK AN D RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The principal market on which the Compamrgsimon stock is traded is the New York Stock Exgieaunder the symbol "HP". The high
and low sale prices per share for the common dtwrckach quarterly period during the past two figears as reported in the NYSEomposite
Transaction quotations follow:

2006 2007
Quarter High Low High Low
First $32.37! $24.94! $27.65! $21.26!
Seconc 39.35( 30.42( 31.00( 22.72(
Third 39.95( 26.37¢ 36.57! 30.00!
Fourth 30.45¢ 22.02( 36.76( 27.68(

The Company paid quarterly cash dividenging the past two years as shown in the followadge:

Paid per Share Total Payment
Fiscal Fiscal
Quarter 2006 2007 2006 2007
First $.0412! $.0450( $4,290,90 $4,654,29
Seconc .0412¢ .0450( 4,333,06! 4,656,46!
Third .0450( .0450( 4,344,98. 4,660,36:
Fourth .0450( .0450( 4,743,33. 4,667,30!

Payment of future dividends will dependeamnings and other factors. All per share amouane bbeen adjusted as a result of a two-for-
one stock split effective June 26, 2006.

As of November 21, 2007, there were 708nm@tolders of the Company's common stock as ligyetthe transfer agent's records.
Summary of All Existing Equity Compensation Plans

The following chart sets forth informatioancerning the equity compensation plans of the 2oy as of September 30, 2007.
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Plan Category

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Number of securities
to be issued upon
exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Weighted-
average exercise
price of
outstanding
options, warrants
and rights

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance

under equity
compensation plans

(excluding securities

reflected in column (a))

(@)

(b)

©

Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrsi@l) 6,031,71! $15.8011 3,220,81.
Equity compensation plans not approved by sec

holders (2] — — —
Total 6,031,71! $15.801( 3,220,81.

1) Includes the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan, the 20@@ISincentive Plan, and the 2005 Long-Term Incentlan of the Company.

2) The Company does not maintain any equity compesrsatans that have not been approved by the stédéis
Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table summarizes selectedrfitial information and should be read in conjunctigth the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Notes thereto and the relateddément's Discussion & Analysis of Financial Ctindiand Results of Operations
contained on pages 6 through 77 of the CompanysidirReport (Exhibit 13 to this Form X)- All per share amounts have been adjusted
result of a two-for-one stock split effective Jutte 2006.

Five-year Summary of Selected Financial Data

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

(in thousands except per share amounts)

Operating revenue $ 504,22, $ 589,05¢ $ 800,72t $ 122481 $  1,629,6
Asset Impairmen 51,51¢ — — -
Income from continuing operatiol 17,87: 4,35¢ 127,60t 293,85¢ 449,2¢

Income from continuing operations per
common share

Basic 0.1¢ 0.04 1.2 2.81 4.

Diluted 0.1¢ 0.04 1.2¢ 2.77 4.z
Total asset 1,417,771 1,406,84 1,663,35! 2,134,71. 2,885,3
Long-term debt 200,00( 200,00( 200,00( 175,00( 445,01
Cash dividends declared per common

share 0.1€ 0.1612! 0.16¢ 0.172¢ 0.1

Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Information required by this item may berfid on, and is incorporated by reference to, paghasough 39 of the Company's Annual
Report (Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K) under the tiap "Management's Discussion & Analysis of Finah&@ondition and Results of
Operations."

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

Information required by this item may beifid under the caption "Risk Factors" beginning agep7 of this Report and on, and is
incorporated by reference to, the following pagethe Company's Annual

20




Report (Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K) under Managet's Discussion & Analysis of Financial Conditiamd Results of Operations and in
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

Market Risk Page

» Foreign Currency Exchange Rate R 35-37
» Commodity Price Ris 37-38
* Interest Rate Ris 38-39
» Equity Price Risl 39

Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA

Information required by this item may berfid on, and is incorporated by reference to, pagdbrough 77 of the Company's Annual
Report (Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K).

ltem 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ltem 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls d&rdcedures.

As of the end of the period covered by this AnriReport on Form 10-K, the Company's management,rithdesupervision and
with the participation of the Company's Chief Ext@ci Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluatién effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Company's disclosun&rals and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a}18(&5d-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) &gpfember 30, 2007. Based on that evaluation, timep@ny's Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer condé that:

. the Company's disclosure controls and proceduresféective at ensuring that information requiredé disclosed by tl
Company in the reports it files or submits under 8ecurities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded,g8®ed, summarized
and reported within the time periods specifiedi@ $EC's rules and forms; and

. the Company's disclosure controls and proceduresatgsuch that important information flows to aypiate collectior
and disclosure points in a timely manner and dextbe to ensure that such information is accutedand
communicated to the Company's management, and kmaden to the Company's Chief Executive Officer &idef
Financial Officer, particularly during the perioden this Annual Report on Form 10-K was preparsdpgpropriate to
allow timely decision regarding the required discice.

b) Management's Report of Internal Calntver Financial Reporting.

Management of the Company is responsible for estaby and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) or 18db(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Tlompany's internal control over finan
reporting is designed to provide reasonable assargggarding the reliability of financial reportiagd the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atanoee with generally accepted accounting principliae Company's internal
control over financial reporting includes thoseigies and procedures that:

0] pertain to the maintenance of records that, inaeasle detail, accurately and fairly reflect trenactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactione@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofifiahstatements i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes; and that receipts and expenditures of thag@2my are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngangent and the Board of Directors of the Compang; a
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(i)  provide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, eselisposition o
the Company's assets that could have a materedtedh the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or démisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate
because of changes in conditions or that the degfreempliance with the policies or procedures rdateriorate.

Management, with the participation of the Compa@)igef Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officeonducted its
evaluation of the effectiveness of internal contregr financial reporting based on the frameworknternal Control-ntegratec
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imations of the Treadway Commission. This evauancluded reviev
of the documentation of controls, evaluation of diesign effectiveness of controls, testing of therating effectiveness of
controls and a conclusion on this evaluation. Aliothere are inherent limitations in the effeatiess of any system of internal
control over financial reporting, based on the Camys evaluation, management has concluded th&dhgpany's internal
control over financial reporting was effective dSeptember 30, 2007.

The Company's independent registered public acoaufitm that audited the Company's financial ste¢ats, Ernst & Young
LLP, has issued an attestation report on the Cogpa@mernal control over financial reporting. Théport appears below.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

We have audited Helmerich & Payne, Inaitsrnal control over financial reporting as of Sepber 30, 2007, based on criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issuedtrsy Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theativay Commission (the COSO
criteria). Helmerich & Payne, Inc.'s managememésponsible for maintaining effective internal gohbver financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal coatret financial reporting included in the accompgagyManagement's Report of Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsipiig to express an opinion on the company's interoiatrol over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wWithdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgetr8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigfenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe©tst audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness et@st#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtdfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancesdlieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures that€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatggaparation of financial statements in accor@éawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could bawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventletect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Helmerich & Payne, Inc. miained, in all material respects, effective inéémrrontrol over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets as of September 30,821D2006, and the related consolidated staternéiisome, shareholders' equity, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the plegimded September 30, 2007 of Helmerich & Payree,dnd our report dated November 26,
2007, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/S/ Ernst & Young LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
November 26, 200
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¢) Changes in Internal Control Overdficial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company's internataasver financial reporting during the Comparfgarth fiscal quarter of 2007 that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, the Company's internal cohtneer financial reporting.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART IlI
Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This information is incorporated by refezerfrom the Company's definitive Proxy Statementtie Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
held March 5, 2008, to be filed with the Commissian later than 120 days after September 30, 20@dtmation required under this item w
respect to executive officers under Iltem 404 of iRa&tipn S-K appears under “Executive Officers &f @ompany” in Part | of this Form 10-K.

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethigkcaple to its CEO, CFO and Senior Financial Gffsc The text of such Code is located on
the Company's website under "Investor Relations—p@mate Governance." The Company's Internet adisesaw.hpinc.com. The Company
intends to disclose any amendments to or waivers fts Code of Ethics on its website.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

This information is incorporated by refezerirom the Company's definitive Proxy Statementtie Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
held March 5, 2008, to be filed with the Commissimn later than 120 days after September 30, 2007.

ltem 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

This information is incorporated by refezerirom the Company's definitive Proxy Statementtie Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
held March 5, 2008, to be filed with the Commissimn later than 120 days after September 30, 2007.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

This information is incorporated by refezerfrom the Company's definitive Proxy Statementtie Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
held March 5, 2008, to be filed with the Commissimn later than 120 days after September 30, 2007.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

This information is incorporated by refezerfrom the Company's definitive Proxy Statementtie Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
held March 5, 2008, to be filed with the Commissimn later than 120 days after September 30, 2007.

PART IV
Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES

a) 1. Financial Statement: The following appear in the Company's AnnuapBrt to Stockholders on the pages indicated balodv
are incorporated herein by referen

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourf&imm 40
Consolidated Statements of Income for the YeareHB®&kptember 30, 2007, 2006 and 2 41
Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 2@DZ006 42-43
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' EquitthioiYears Ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 44
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEeaded September 30, 2007, 2006 and : 45
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements at &dpe30, 200° 4€-77
2. Financial Statement Schedu: All schedules are omitted as inapplicable ezause the required information is contained i

financial statements or included in the notes tioe
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3. Exhibits. The following documents are included as exhitn this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Exhibitsongorated by
reference are duly noted as st



3.1

3.2

41

4.2

*10.1

*10.2

*10.3

*10.4

*10.5

*10.6

*10.7

*10.8

*10.9

Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioHelmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated hereinrbference
to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Annual Report omrd 0-K to the Securities & Exchange Commissionfigral
2006, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company ampocated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Company's Form-K filed on October 11, 2007, SEC File No. -04221.

Rights Agreement dated as of January 8, 1996, eettee Company and The Liberty National Bank andirr
Company of Oklahoma City, N.A. is incorporated leitgy reference to the Company's Form 8-A, dated
January 18, 1996, SEC File No. (-04221.

Amendment to Rights Agreement dated December &,28tween the Company and UMB Bank, N.A. is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4 & @ompany's Form 8-K filed on December 12, 2005; Fite
No. 002-04221.

Consulting Services Agreement between W. H. Helchelil, and the Company dated March 30, 1990, is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.&hef Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K to theu8ges
and Exchange Commission for fiscal 1996, SEC Fide 001-04221.

Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement betweeh. Helmerich, 11l and the Company dated
December 26, 1990, is incorporated herein by rafereéo Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Annual Repaort
Form 1(-K to the Securities and Exchange Commission f@afi2006, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Second Amendment to Consulting Services Agreememtden W. H. Helmerich, Ill, and the Company dated
September 11, 2006, is incorporated herein by eafay to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-Kdfile
September 13, 2006, SEC File No. -04221.

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for SalarieglByees of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporatedein
by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Company's Adiegport on Form 10-K to the Securities and Excleang
Commission for fiscal 1996, SEC File No. -04221.

Supplemental Savings Plan for Salaried Employeétetrherich and Payne, Inc. is incorporated hergin b
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company's Annugpdtt on Form 10-K to the Securities and Exchange
Commission for fiscal 1999, SEC File No. -04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Pimtcorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 98.the
Company's Registration Statement No.-34939 on Form -8 dated September 4, 19¢

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for thelmerich & Payne, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Rfan
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to thenpany's Registration Statement No. 333-34939 omFex8
dated September 4, 19¢

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for the Helnfe8cPayne, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Plan is incogped by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company's AnmRegort on Form 10-K to the Securities and Exchange
Commission for fiscal 1997, SEC File No. (-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Piintorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 98.the
Company's Registration Statement No.-63124 on Form -8 dated June 15, 20C
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*10.1C

*10.11

*10.12

Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2@206ck Incentive Plan being (i) Restricted Stockahal
Agreement, (ii) Incentive Stock Option Agreemend &iii) Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement are éngoratec
by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company's Regfien Statement No. 333-63124 on Form S-8 dateé 15,
2001.

Form of Director Nonqualified Stock Option Agreenmér the 2000 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Stock IncenPlar
is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 16f.the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-@héo
Securities and Exchange Commission for the quartded June 30, 2002, SEC File No.-04221.

Form of Change of Control Agreement for HelmericliP&yne, Inc. is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's Quarterly Report annfr 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commidsiothe
qguarter ended June 30, 2002, SEC File N0-04221.



10.1:

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2(

Credit Agreement, dated as of July 16, 2002, amtelgherich & Payne International Drilling Co., Helrah &
Payne, Inc., the several lenders from time to fi@ey thereto, and Bank of Oklahoma, N.A. is inavgted herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Company's QerrtReport on Form 10-Q to the Securities and Brge
Commission for the quarter ended June 30, 2002, SEEQNo. 00-04221.

First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July?®)3, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich &rra
International Drilling Co., and Bank of OklahomaANis incorporated herein by reference to Exhilfit14 of the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K to the Seiesriind Exchange Commission for fiscal 2005, SHE Fi
No. 002-04221.

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated Map@42among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich & ikay
International Drilling Co., and Bank of OklahomaANis incorporated herein by reference to Exhilfit15 of the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K to the Seiesrind Exchange Commission for fiscal 2005, SHE Fi
No. 002-04221.

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July2l®)4, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich &ira
International Drilling Co., and Bank of OklahomaANis incorporated herein by reference to Exhiifit16 of the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K to the Seiesriind Exchange Commission for fiscal 2005, SHE Fi
No. 002-04221.

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July20B5, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich & e
International Drilling Co., and Bank of OklahomaANis incorporated herein by reference to Exhiffitl of the
Company's Form-K filed on July 13, 2005, SEC File No. (-04221.

Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated JulyZ06, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich &fa
International Drilling Co., and Bank of OklahomaANis incorporated herein by reference to Exhiffit4 of the
Company's Form-K filed on July 11, 2006, SEC File No. (-04221.

First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dategber 18, 2006, among Helmerich & Payne Intesnati
Drilling Co., Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and Bank okl@homa, National Association is incorporated hetsi
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Fo-K filed on December 20, 2006, SEC File No. -04221.

Note Purchase Agreement dated as of August 15,,200@ng Helmerich & Payne International Drilling.C
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and various insurance cargsais incorporated herein by reference to ExHiBiR0 of
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K to theu88es and Exchange Commission for fiscal 2002C $tle
No. 002-04221.
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10.21

10.22

*10.23

10.2¢

10.2¢

*10.26

*10.27

Credit Agreement dated December 18, 2006, amongnétath & Payne International Drilling Co., Helmdri&
Payne, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Assamias incorporated herein by reference to Exhilitl of the
Company's Form-K filed on December 20, 2006, SEC File No. -04221.

Office Lease dated May 30, 2003, between K/B Fihdrd Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated hetsy
reference to Exhibit 10.18 of the Company's AnRigport on Form 10-K to the Securities and Exchange
Commission for fiscal 2003, SEC File No. -04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Director Deferred CompeiwgaPlan is incorporated herein by reference toilikh0.1
of the Company's Forr-K filed on September 9, 2004, SEC File No.-04221.

Shareholders Agreement and Registration Rightséygeant dated July 19, 2004 between Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co. and Atwood Oceanics, liincorporated herein by reference to Exhibitdf the
Company's Amended Schedule 13D filed on July 2042

Underwriting Agreement dated October 13, 2004, bewHelmerich & Payne International Drilling Codan
various underwriters is incorporated herein bynesiee to Exhibit 1.1 of the Company's Form 8-Kditmn
October 14, 2004, SEC File No. (-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Annual Bonus Plan for ExeauOfficers is incorporated herein by refereree t
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Forr-K filed on December 9, 2005, SEC File No. -04221.

Advisory Services Agreement dated February 17, 266&ween Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and George Ss@vis
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1thef Company's Form 8-K filed on February 21, 2®BC File
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2007, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005 Long-Term IncentivarPis incorporated herein by reference to Appehlixto
the Company's Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A Ji#ediary 26, 200t

Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005g-Term Incentive Plan: (i) Nonqualified Stocktdn
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Fabrication Contract between Helmerich & Paynertrggonal Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas Indestrinc. is
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No. 002-04221.
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31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13at4(a) promulgated under the Securities Exchange
of 1934, as amended, as adopted pursuant to S&gof the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

31.z Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuawntRule 13a-14(a) promulgated under the Securitieh&nge Act
of 1934, as amended, as adopted pursuant to S&gof the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

32. Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chiginancial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section(, 3 adopte
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002
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Management or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectionrlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, @ompany has duly caused this Report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized:

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

By /s/ HANS HELMERICH

Hans Helmerich, President and Chief Executive ©fi
Date: November 28, 20(

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seéeariixchange Act of 1934, this Report has beeresigpelow by the following persons on behalf
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By /s/ WILLIAM L. ARMSTRONG By /s/ GLENN A. COX
William L. Armstrong, Directol Glenn A. Cox, Directo
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By /s/ RANDY A. FOUTCH By /s/ HANS HELMERICH
Randy A. Foutch, Directc Hans Helmerich, Director and CE
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W. H. Helmerich, Ill, Directol Edward B. Rust, Jr., Direct
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Paula Marshall, Directc John D. Zeglis, Directc
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Douglas E. Fear
(Principal Financial Officer
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Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioHelmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Annugbéteon Form 10-K to the Securities and
Exchange Commission for fiscal 2006, SEC File Nil-04221.

Amended and Restated Byws of the Company are incorporated herein byregige to Exhibit 3.
of the Company's Forir-K filed on October 11, 2007, SEC File No. -04221.

Rights Agreement dated as of January 8, 1996, leetwee Company and The Liberty National
Bank and Trust Company of Oklahoma City, N.A. isdrporated herein by reference to the
Company's Form-A, dated January 18, 1996, SEC File No.-04221.

Amendment to Rights Agreement dated December &,28tween the Company and UMB Bank,
NL.A. is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibif the Company's Forn-K filed on
December 12, 2005, SEC File No. -04221.

Consulting Services Agreement between W. H. Helohellil, and the Company dated March 30,
1990, is incorporated herein by reference to ExHiBi3 of the Company's Annual Report on
Form 1(-K to the Securities and Exchange Commission fa@afi§ 996, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement betw&ehl. Helmerich, Il and the Company
dated December 26, 1990, is incorporated herenefgyence to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K to the Securities andiaxge Commission for fiscal 2006, SEC File
No. 002-04221.

Second Amendment to Consulting Services Agreememtden W. H. Helmerich, Ill, and the
Company dated September 11, 2006, is incorporaesirhby reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company's Form-K filed September 13, 2006, SEC File No. -04221.

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for SalarieglByees of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6hef Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K to
the Securities and Exchange Commission for fis8861 SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Supplemental Savings Plan for Salaried Employe¢ettherich and Payne, Inc. is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Compadyinual Report on Form 10-K to the Securities
and Exchange Commission for fiscal 1999, SEC Fide 001-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Pimtorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 to the Company's Registration Staterhen 333-34939 on Form S-8 dated
September 4, 199

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for thelmerich & Payne, Inc. 1996 Stock
Incentive Plan is incorporated by reference to Bix199.2 to the Company's Registration Statement
No. 33:-34939 on Form -8 dated September 4, 19¢

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for the Helmte&cPayne, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to tleenpany's Annual Report on Form 10-K to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for fiscal 1$%C File No. 00-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Pimcorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 to the Company's Registration Staterhin 333-63124 on Form S-8 dated June 15,
2001.

Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2@0ck Incentive Plan being (i) Restricted
Stock Award Agreement, (ii) Incentive Stock Optidgreement and (iii) Nonqualified Stock Opt
Agreement are incorporated by reference to ExBi®if to the Company's Registration Statement
No. 33:-63124 on Form -8 dated June 15, 20C
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Form of Director Nonqualified Stock Option Agreeméar the 2000 Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
Stock Incentive Plan is incorporated herein byneziee to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exch&wamission for the quarter ended June 30,
2002, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Form of Change of Control Agreement for HelmericliP&yne, Inc. is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's QuartBeport on Form 10-Q to the Securities and
Exchange Commission for the quarter ended Jun2®I2, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Credit Agreement, dated as of July 16, 2002, amdelgherich & Payne International Drilling Co.,
Helmerich & Payne, Inc., the several lenders frometto time party thereto, and Bank of
Oklahoma, N.A. is incorporated herein by referetacExhibit 10.5 of the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exch&wemission for the quarter ended June 30,
2002, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July2®3, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc.,
Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Co., andiik of Oklahoma, N.A. is incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of the Company's AairiReport on Form 10-K to the Securities and
Exchange Commission for fiscal 2005, SEC File Niil-04221.

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated Mayp@42among Helmerich & Payne, Inc.,
Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Co., andrik of Oklahoma, N.A. is incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of the Company's AaiiReport on Form 10-K to the Securities and
Exchange Commission for fiscal 2005, SEC File Nii-04221.

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July2l)4, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc.,
Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Co., andiik of Oklahoma, N.A. is incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of the Company's AairiReport on Form 10-K to the Securities and
Exchange Commission for fiscal 2005, SEC File Niil-04221.

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July20B5, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc.,
Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Co., andrik of Oklahoma, N.A. is incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's F8Fi filed on July 13, 2005, SEC File No. 001-
04221.

Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July2006, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc.,
Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Co., andiik of Oklahoma, N.A. is incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company's F8rK filed on July 11, 2006, SEC File No. 001-
04221.

First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement datsgt@ber 18, 2006, among Helmerich &
Payne International Drilling Co., Helmerich & Paymec. and Bank of Oklahoma, National
Association is incorporated herein by referencExbibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 8-K filed on
December 20, 2006, SEC File No. -04221.

Note Purchase Agreement dated as of August 15, 200@ng Helmerich & Payne Internatiol
Drilling Co., Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and varioumsiirance companies is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.20 of the Company's AnRigghort on Form 10-K to the Securities and
Exchange Commission for fiscal 2002, SEC File Ni1-04221.

Credit Agreement dated December 18, 2006, amongéteth & Payne International Drilling Co.,
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, NaioAssociation is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form fileéd on December 20, 2006, SEC File

No. 002-04221.

Office Lease dated May 30, 2003, between K/B Fyhdrd Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10..8he Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K to
the Securities and Exchange Commission for fis6@B82 SEC File No. 0(-04221.

32

*10.23

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Director Deferred CompeiwseaPlan is incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Forr-K filed on September 9, 2004, SEC File No.-04221.
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Shareholders Agreement and Registration Rightségeat dated July 19, 2004 between
Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Co. andwAtod Oceanics, Inc. is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 1.1 of the Company's Amendelte8ule 13D filed on July 21, 20C

Underwriting Agreement dated October 13, 2004, betwHelmerich & Payne International
Drilling Co. and various underwriters is incorpaaterein by reference to Exhibit 1.1 of the
Company's Form-K filed on October 14, 2004, SEC File No. +04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Annual Bonus Plan for Exa@iOfficers is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8lédl on December 9, 2005, SEC File No. 001-
04221.

Advisory Services Agreement dated February 17, 2086veen Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and
George S. Dotson is incorporated herein by referéadxhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K
filed on February 21, 2006, SEC File No. -04221.

First Amendment to Advisory Services Agreement di&iarch 7, 2007, between Helmerich &
Payne, Inc. and George S. Dotson is incorporatesihby reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company's Form-K filed on March 8, 2007, SEC File No. (-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005 Long-Term IncentivarPis incorporated herein by reference to
Appendix "A" to the Company's Proxy Statement ohefitile 14A filed January 26, 20(

Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005g-Term Incentive Plan: (i) Nonqualified
Stock Option Agreement, (ii) Incentive Stock Optidgreement, and (iii) Restricted Stock Award
Agreement are incorporated herein by referencextobit 10.27 of the Company's Annual Report
on Form 1-K to the Securities and Exchange Commission faafi006, SEC File No. 0-04221

Fabrication Contract between Helmerich & Paynertrggonal Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas
Industries, Inc. is incorporated herein by refeeettcExhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed
on December 7, 2006, SEC File No. -04221.

Contract dated July 18, 2007, between Helmerichagne International Drilling Co. and Southeast
Texas Industrial Services, Inc. is incorporatecehreby reference to the Company's Form 8-K filed
July 7, 2007, SEC File No. 0-04221.
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Exhibit 13

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.is the holding Company for Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co., an international dmilj contractor with land and
offshore operations in the United States, South Aecagand Africa. Holdings
also include commercial real estate propertiegénltulsa, Oklahoma, area, anc
an energy-weighted portfolio of securities valued@proximately $458 million
as of September 30, 2007.

HELMERICH & PAYNE-TULSA, OKLA. ®

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Years Ended September 3(C 2007 2006 2005
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Operating Revenue $ 1,629,65! $ 1,224,81. $ 800,72t
Net Income 449,26 293,85¢ 127,60¢
Diluted Earnings per Sha 4.27 2.71 1.2
Dividends Paid per Sha .180( 172t .16t
Capital Expenditure 894,21. 528,90! 86,80"

Total Asset: 2,885,36! 2,134,71. 1,663,35!




To the Cc-owners
of Helmerich & Payne, Inc.:

We are pleased to report the Company'd tunsecutive year of record setting results, palerly
when this accomplishment comes a year after thie @gaked out in terms of drilling rig market pnigiin
the U.S. Our strategy has never been based orcalybighs and rig scarcity, where demand has tstiop
the available supply of drilling rigs and where tamsers pay more for any available rig. We have long
believed that a more enduring approach is to erthbleustomer to achieve a lower total well cost by
delivering superior service using the safest, néveesl most innovative rigs in the industry.

Throughout this past year, we achievedrggrecedented pace of adding four rigs per montuto
fleet. Perhaps 2007's most significant accomplistinsefound less in the financials and more indhe
time, on-cost execution of that aggressive progima credit to our people to daily deliver oe #mtire
value chain involved: design, manufacturing, consmising, training, and field performance. Whilésit
fitting in these pages to recognize their dedigatiad contribution to the Company's accomplishmerg
a customer's endorsement of the FlexRig that,aretid, signals a buy-in to the people who stanthdeh
the outstanding performance.

In the coming year, we will be managinghte same challenges and opportunities we havedtalke
about for a long time:

Deliver growth to shareholders by securing and etteg on an aggressive order book.
Win the customer's trust by consistently and sgbetywiding differentiated field results.

Take advantage of an ongoing retooling effort inrameasingly segmented industry still top-
heavy with old, less capable rigs.

Expand into additional drilling markets, with mdoeus on expanding our international effort.

While this is not an exhaustive list, ibshd be familiar to our regular readers. Perhapstmotable
Is what the list excludes. Namely, that we aremahaging the dilemma of carrying a large percentdge
old, less capable rigs, while the customer increggivotes in favor of high efficiency rig offerisg

Too many old legacy assets, often no losgéable for reinvestment, force our peers intadeoff
between market share and price discipline. Thatdelike the classic prisoner's dilemma with thgdal
best choice being price discipline. Since, afterthé market drives demand, contractors havegtut fi
against being reduced in a soft environment andgng in the downward spiral of rig-on-rig price
destruction. This is happening now in the U.S. ldnlling market.
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Some industry observers have asked whiydyitontractors are not exerting more pricing itisce
in a market with historically high rig counts. Oreason is that truly differentiated performance dagen
a segmented marketplace. What we see from ourseexisting FlexRigs that were working on the spot
market in the last quarter of 2007 still commandingr $25,000 in rig revenue per day on average at
100 percent utilization, while competing rigs waggressively cutting prices and in the end wetk sti
pushed to the sidelines.

Take a look at this last year in terms afgins and activity by comparing the fourth quadkfiscal
2007 to that of fiscal 2006:

Our average rig margin per day in the U.S. landketanas only declined by eight percent to
$12,221. This daily margin is now 40 percent gnetitan that of our four largest peers.

Moreover, our quarterly average number of actige nncreased by 38 percent year-over-year,
while that of our four largest peers combined eiguered a net reduction of 14 percent.

We have passed the point where compet@mscredibly position idle, old equipment as future
operating leverage. Back to the prisoner's dilenthmanext logical exercise in discipline is to pamantly
remove from the market old industry rigs that & eéasingly obsolete, iBuited, and potentially unsafe
a drilling environment that is becoming more teclally demanding.

All of this reinforces our confidence imetooling theme that continues to provide us ditrac
opportunities going forward. The new order for BlgxRigs that we announced this month provides
further confirmation that even in a softer markieg¢ customer is supporting the Company's value
proposition.

Sincerely,
W) /A

Hans Helmerich
Presiden

November 28, 200




Financial & Operating Review

Years Ended September 3( 2007 200¢ 200t

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME* ¥

Operating Revenue $ 1,629,65! 1,224,81. 800,72¢
Operating Costs, excluding depreciat 862,25¢ 661,56: 484,23:
Depreciation** 146,04: 101,58: 96,27«
General and Administrative Exper 47,40: 51,87: 41,01¢
Operating Income (los: 632,31¢ 417,28t 192,75¢
Interest and Dividend Incon 4,23¢ 9,834 5,80¢
Gain on Sale of Investment Securit 65,45¢ 19,86¢ 26,96¢
Interest Expens 10,12¢ 6,64< 12,64:
Income from Continuing Operatiol 449,26: 293,85¢ 127,60t
Net Income 449,26 293,85!¢ 127,60t
Diluted Earnings Per Common Sha
Income from Continuing Operatiol 4.2 2.71 1.2t
Net Income 4.27 2.71 1.2t
*$000's omitted, except per share ¢
tAll data excludes discontinued operations excepinctome.
**2004 includes an asset impairment of $51,516 deypreciation of $94,425
SUMMARY FINANCIAL DATA*
Cash** $ 89,21¢ 33,85 288,75:
Working Capital** 272,35. 164,141 410,31¢
Investment: 223,36( 218,30¢ 178,45.
Property, Plant, and Equipment, Ne 2,152,611 1,483,13 981,96!
Total Assets 2,885,36! 2,134,71. 1,663,35!
Long-term Debit 445,00( 175,00( 200,00(
Shareholders' Equit 1,815,511 1,381,89 1,079,23
Capital Expenditure 894,21 528,90! 86,80¢
*$000's omitted
**Excludes discontinued operations.
RIG FLEET SUMMARY
Drilling Rigs—
U. S. Land- FlexRigs 11¢€ 73 5C
U. S. Land- Highly Mobile 12 12 12
U. S. Lanc- Conventiona 27 28 29
Offshore Platforn 9 9 11
International Lanc 27 27 26
Total Rig Flee: 19z 14¢ 12¢
Rig Utilization Percentag—
U. S. Lanc- FlexRigs 10C 10C 10C
U. S. Land- Highly Mobile 93 10C 98
U. S. Lanc- Conventiona 87 95 82
U. S. Lanc- All Rigs 97 99 94
Offshore Platforn 65 69 53
International Lanc 90 9C 77




2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
589,05¢ $ 504,22 $ 523,41¢ $ 528,18° % 383,89t % 430,470  $ 476,75C  $ 351,71
417,71¢ 346,25¢ 362,13! 331,06: 249,31t 288,96 321,79¢ 227,92:
145,94: 82,51 61,44 49,53 77,311 70,09: 58,18 48,29

37,66 41,00: 36,56:¢ 28,18( 23,30¢ 24,62¢ 21,29¢ 15,63¢
(6,88%) 38,131 64,66 123,61 34,82¢ 49,02« 78,071 61,74(
1,96 2,461 3,62¢ 9,12¢ 18,21¢ 4,83( 5,947 6,74(
25,41¢ 5,62¢ 24,82( 1,18¢ 13,29¢ 2,545 38,42 4,697
12,69¢ 12,28¢ 98C 1,701 2,73( 5,38¢ 33€ 34
4,35¢ 17,87: 53,70¢ 80,46 36,47( 32,11¢ 80,79( 48,80:
4,35¢ 17,87: 63,511 144,25: 82,30( 42,78¢ 101,15¢ 84,18¢
.04 18 53 79 .36 .32 .80 A8

.04 18 .63 1.42 .82 A3 1.0C .83
65,29¢ $ 38,18¢ $ 46,88: $ 128,82t $ 107,63: $ 21,75¢ % 2447¢ $ 27,96
185,42° 110,84¢ 105,85: 223,98( 179,88« 82,89: 49,17¢ 65,80:
161,53: 158,77( 150,17t 203,27: 307,42t 240,89: 200,40( 323,51(
998,67+ 1,058,20! 897,44! 650,05: 526,72 553,76¢ 548,55! 392,48
1,406,84 1,417,771 1,227,311 1,300,12. 1,200,85 1,073,46! 1,053,201 987,43.
200,00( 200,00( 100,00( 50,00( 50,00( 50,00( 50,00( —
914,11( 917,25: 895,17( 1,026,47 955,70¢ 848,10¢ 793,14¢ 780,58(
90,217 242 91: 312,06 184,66t 65,82( 78,357 217,59 114,62t
4¢ 4: 2 1 ¢ ¢ ¢ —

1 1 1 1 1 1 i i

2¢ 2¢ 2¢ 2t 2 2 2 2

1 1 1 1 1( 1 1 ¢

3 3 3 3 4( 3¢ 4 3!

131 12 11 Ot 8t 8¢ 9( 7

9¢ 9 ¢ 10 9¢ 7¢ 10 —

9! 8¢ 9 8¢ ot 9( 10 10(

6’ 5¢ 7( 9¢ 7 6! 9: 9

8 8: 8¢ 9 8t 6¢ 9 9

4¢ 5! 8! 9t iz 9t 9¢ 6!

5¢ 3¢ 5 5¢ 4’ 5 8¢ 9!




Management's Discussion & Analysis of Financial Cadlition and Results of
Operations

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

RISK FACTORS AND FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the Consolidated
Financial Statements and related notes includedvblsre herein. The
Company's future operating results may be affeloyedarious trends and
factors, which are beyond the Company's controés€hnclude, among other
factors, fluctuations in oil and natural gas prjagsexpected expiration or
termination of drilling contracts, currency excharggains and losses, change
general economic conditions, rapid or unexpecteshgés in technologies, ris
of foreign operations, uninsured risks, and unaeftasiness conditions that
affect the Company's businesses. Accordingly, ressilts and trends should |
be used by investors to anticipate future resultsemds.

With the exception of historical information, thatters discussed in
Management's Discussion & Analysis of Financial diban and Results of
Operations include forward-looking statements. Ehlfesward-looking
statements are based on various assumptions. Tinp&y cautions that, whi
it believes such assumptions to be reasonable akdsrthem in good faith,
assumed facts almost always vary from actual resiile differences between
assumed facts and actual results can be mateh@lCompany is including this
cautionary statement to take advantage of the tsafeor” provisions of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 tmy forward-looking
statements made by, or on behalf of, the Compalng.factors identified in this
cautionary statement and those factors discussgel lisk Factors beginning
on page 7 of the Company's Annual Report on Forf APe important factors
(but not necessarily all important factors) thatldacause actual results to dif
materially from those expressed in any forward-logk
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statement made by, or on behalf of, the Compang.démpany undertakes no
duty to update or revise its forward-looking sta¢ems based on changes of
internal estimates or expectations or otherwise.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is primarily a contractliing company which owned
and operated a total of 193 drilling rigs at SepienB80, 2007. The Company's
contract drilling segments include the U.S. Langhsent in which the Compa
owned 157 rigs, the Offshore segment in which tom@any owned 9 offshore
platform rigs, and the International Land segmamwhich the Company owne
27 rigs at fiscal year end. Although crude oil pasurged in 2007 and natural
gas prices remained strong, the market has expexdesn influx of both new
and refurbished drilling rigs causing excess capac€his excess has put
pressures on the pricing in the market and is se#re 2007 utilizatiot
percentages. However, with the Company's emphadidexRig technolog

and service to the customer, the response fronor#ss is positive and the
demand for the Company's drilling rigs remainsrggtdn 2007, the Company
reported strong financial performance includingordarevenue and net income.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

All per share amounts included in the Results of@pons discussion are
stated on a diluted basis. All prior period comnstwck and applicable share
and per share amounts have been retroactivelytadjts reflect a 2-for-1 split
of the Company's common stock effective June 26620he Company's net
income for 2007 was $449.3 million ($4.27 per shasempared with

$293.9 million ($2.77 per share) for 2006 and $&2iillion ($1.23 per share)
for 2005. Included in the Company's net income were
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after-tax gains from the sale of investment se@sivf $40.2 million ($0.38 per
share) in 2007, $12.3 million ($0.12 per shared006, and $16.4 million
($0.16 per share) in 2005. Net income also incladestax gains from the sa
of assets of $26.5 million ($0.25 per share) in72(3%.8 million ($0.04 per
share) in 2006 and $8.7 million ($0.08 per sharé®d05. Included in net
income in 2007 is an after-tax gain of $10.6 mill{&0.10 per share) from
involuntary conversion of long-lived assets thatained significant damage as
a result of Hurricane Katrina in 2005. Also incldda net income is the
Company's portion of income from its equity affidaAtwood Oceanics, Inc.
From the equity affiliate, the Company recordedinedbme of $0.09 per share
in 2007, $0.07 per share in 2006 and $0.02 peesh&005.

Consolidated operating revenues were $1,629.7amiih 2007,

$1,224.8 million in 2006, and $800.7 million in Z0@ver the three-year
period, U.S. land revenues increased due to the@udf FlexRigs combine
with significant increases in dayrates during 200 average number of U.S.
land rigs available was 134 rigs in 2007, 96 rig2006 and 90 rigs in 2005.
U.S. land rig utilization for the Company was 97qgaat in 2007, 99 percent in
2006 and 94 percent in 2005. Revenue in the Oféskegment decreased in
2007 after increasing in 2006 and 2005. The den@naffshore rigs increased
in the Gulf of Mexico after the hurricanes in 20659 utilization for offshore
rigs decreased to 65 percent in 2007 compared pef&nt in 2006 and

53 percent in 2005. International rig revenuesaased from 2005 to 2007, due
to increases in dayrates as rig utilizations reedsieady at 90 percent in 2007
and 2006, up from 77 percent in 2005.
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Gains from the sale of investment securities wé&®%million in 2007,

$19.9 million in 2006, and $27.0 million in 2005tdrest and dividend income
decreased to $4.2 million in 2007 from $9.8 milliar2006 and $5.8 million in
2005. The increase from 2005 to 2006 was due teased cash positions from
the sale of equity securities, the sale of two UaBd rigs in 2005 and increased
cash flow. In late 2005 and through part of 20@@, Company's cash position
decreased as new FlexRigs were constructed.

Direct operating costs in 2007 were $862.3 millaorb3 percent of operating
revenues, compared with $661.6 million or 54 peroémperating revenues in
2006, and $484.2 million or 60 percent of operatiggenues in 2005. The 20
and 2006 expense to revenue percentage decreas@0@b was primarily due
to higher U.S. land revenue resulting from higheyrdtes and increased
activity.

Depreciation expense was $146.0 million in 20001$8 million in 2006 and
$96.3 million in 2005. Depreciation expense inceegbgver the three-year
period as the Company placed into service 5 nesvin@004, 20 new rigs |
2006 and 45 in 2007. The Company anticipates 2@p8etiation expense to
increase from 2007 as the rigs currently undertcoaon are placed into
service. (See Liquidity and Capital Resources.)

Each year, management performs an analysis ohthesiry market conditions
in each drilling segment. Based on this analysemagement determines if an
impairment is required. In 2007, 2006 and 2005 mmairment was recorded.

General and administrative expenses totaled $4illidmin 2007,
$51.9 million in 2006, and $41.0 million in 2005hd’increases in
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2007 and 2006 from 2005 were primarily due to rdoay stock-based
compensation related to the adoption of SFAS 123%Rare-Based Payment"
and the Company accelerating the vesting of shatrers held by a senior
executive who retired. The affect of recording ktbased compensation is as
follows:

2007 200¢ 200t

(in thousands
Other general and administrative exper $ 40,39 $ 42,12 $ 41,01*
Stock-based compensatic 7,01C 6,941 —
Acceleration of share optiol — 2,811 —
Total $ 47,401 $ 51,87: $ 41,01t

The decrease in other general and administratigereses from 2006 to 2007 is
partly attributable to pension expense decreasig ®illion from 2006. Thi
Pension Plan was frozen and benefit accruals wiscentinued effective
September 30, 2006, thus reducing the serviceofdke Plan. This decrease is
partially offset by increases in employee labonddgs and operating cos
associated with the number of employees increasi2g07. The increase from
2005 to 2006 was the result of increases in exgeassociated with employee
benefits due to increases in the number of empkyee

Interest expense was $10.1 million in 2007, $6.&oniin 2006, and

$12.6 million in 2005. The interest expense is ity attributable to the fixed-
rate intermediate debt outstanding in each yeaadndnces on the senior cre
facility in 2007. Capitalized interest was $9.4lman, $6.1 million and

$0.3 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectivélye increase in capitalized
interest in 2006 and 2007 is attributable to tyebuiild program.

The provision for income taxes totaled $251.0 willin 2007, $154.4 million
2006, and $87.5 million in 2005. Effective income
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tax rates were 36 percent in 2007, 35 percent @6 28nd 41 percent in 2005.
Deferred income taxes are provided for the tempaitdferences between the
financial reporting basis and the tax basis ofGlbenpany's assets and liabiliti
Recoverability of any tax assets are evaluatechacdssary allowances are
provided. The carrying value of the net deferredassets assumes, basec
estimates and assumptions, that the Company wdbleto generate sufficient
future taxable income in certain tax jurisdictidagealize the benefits of such
assets. If these estimates and related assumgtangie in the future,
additional valuation allowances will be recordediagt the deferred tax assets
resulting in additional income tax expense in thieife. (See Note 3 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements for additionabme tax disclosures.)

The following tables summarize operations by regdae operating segment.
The Offshore and International Land segments f@62&hd 2005 have been
restated to reflect a change made to the reportgd@deating segments in the
fourth fiscal quarter of 2007. This change, alonth\a detailed description of
segment operating income, is described more folote 15 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

2007 200¢ % Change
U.S. LAND OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statist
Operating revenue $ 1,174,95 $829,06. 41.7%
Direct operating expens 587,82} 398,87 47 .4
General and administrative expel 14,024 12,80 9.t
Depreciatior 106,10° 66,127 60.t
Segment operating incon $ 467,00( $351,25! 33.C

Operating Statistics

Revenue day 47,33¢ 34,41« 37.6%
Average rig revenue per d $ 23,57 $ 22,75 3.€
Average rig expense per d $ 11,17( $ 10,25l 9.C
Average rig margin per de $ 12,40: $ 12,50 (0.8)
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 157 113 38.¢
Rig utilization 97% 99% (2.0)

Operating statistics for per day revenue, expemgkraargin do not include reimbursements of "oupofket" expenses.
Rig utilization excludes one FlexRig completed seatly for delivery at September 30, 2007 and tfegRigs completed and ready
delivery at September 30, 2006.

The Company's U.S. Land segment operating incooreased to

$467.0 million in 2007 from $351.3 million in 200Baprovement in revenue is
primarily the result of increased revenue daysasricreasing dayrat:
experienced during 2006 declined or flattened du2007. Rig utilization
decreased to 97 percent in 2007 from 99 perce2®@®®. The decrease in rig
utilization is primarily due to six conventionafjs being stacked by fiscal year-
end. The stacked rigs target a deeper well mahliegtsbftened during the last
half of 2007. Average rig expense per day incre@s@gercent as the demand
for rig personnel and services continued to creast pressures. The total
number of rigs owned at September 30, 2007 wasabipared to 113 rigs at
September 30, 2006. The increase is due to 45 texiRlgs completed and
placed into service, one rig completed and readyétivery, the sale of or
conventional rig in June 2007 and the loss of ampéra well blowout fire in
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August 2007. Depreciation in 2007 increased 60rbgre from 2006 due to the
increase in available rigs.

During 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company announlzagss po build 77 new
FlexRigs for 19 exploration and production compantaubsequent to
September 30, 2007, the Company announced thajraaraent had been
reached with an exploration and production compargperate an additional
six new FlexRigs bringing the total of the new rigs83. Each new rig will be
operated by the Company under a minimum threefye=a term contract. The
drilling services will be performed on a dayworkt@act basis. During 2007,
the U.S. Land segment had 48 new FlexRigs pladedservice, three of which
were completed at the end of fiscal 2006, and apheas completed and ready
for delivery as of September 30, 2007. In 2006n2@ FlexRigs were placed
into service. The remaining rigs are expected tddédeered by the end of the
third fiscal quarter of 2008. As a result of thevriglexRigs, the Company
anticipates depreciation expense to increasedalfiz008.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, the Comga Rig 178 was lost when
the well it was drilling had a blowout. The rig wiasured at a value that
approximated replacement cost and therefore thep@oynexpects to record a
gain resulting from the receipt of insurance prase&ubsequent to
September 30, 2007, gross insurance proceeds ahapgately $8.5 million
were received and a gain of approximately $4.8iomlWas recorded. The
Company anticipates settling the insurance claifareehe end of the second
fiscal quarter of 2008 and expects to receive auitht insurance proceeds of
less than $0.5 million.
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COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

2007 200¢ % Change

OFFSHORE OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statist
Operating revenue $123,141 $154,54. (20.9%
Direct operating expens 85,55¢ 105,13: (18.¢)
General and administrative expel 4,82¢ 6,14¢ (21.5)
Depreciatior 10,687 11,40: (6.3
Segment operating incon $ 22,08 $ 31,86! (30.9)

. _____________________________________________________________________|
Operating Statistics
Revenue day 2,141 2,74: (21.9%
Average rig revenue per d $ 34,46 $ 38,72 (11.0
Average rig expense per d $ 21,56 $ 24,04 (10.9)
Average rig margin per de $ 12,90 $ 14,68 (12.1)
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 9 9 —
Rig utilization 65% 69% (0.€)

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expenskenaargin do not include reimbursements of "out-ofiet" expenses and exclude the effects
of offshore platform management contracts and awyaevaluation expense.

Segment operating income in the Company's Offskegment decreased
30.7 percent from 2006 to 2007. Operator decisiog® on standby caused
revenue and expenses to decline after the segmeatienced increased
activity in 2006 following the hurricanes in 2005.

Currently, the Company has five of its nine platfaigs working and two in
negotiations for work that, if contracted, wouldrstin 2008. One rig is
currently in the yard undergoing capital improvememd is expected to return
to work with a contract in the second fiscal quaote2009. The ninth rig is
currently being transported and is expected td sf@rations in Trinidad durir
the second fiscal quarter of 2008.

During the fourth fiscal quarter of 2006, the Compaigned an option
agreement to sell two offshore rigs that were idilee purchase option was
exercised and the transaction completed in the
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second fiscal quarter of 2007. The two rigs weasgified as assets held for ¢
in the Company's Consolidated Financial Statememds as such, excluded
from the number of owned rigs at the end of fi06.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Comyga Rig 201 was damaged
by Hurricane Katrina. The rig was removed from garn the fourth fiscal
guarter of 2005 until the fourth fiscal quarter2®07, when it returned to
service. The rig was insured at a value that apprated replacement cost. At
September 30, 2006, the Company had received mseif@oceeds of
approximately $3.0 million which approximated thet hook value of
equipment lost in the hurricane. Therefore, no gas recognized in 2006. In
fiscal 2007, insurance proceeds of approximatet.Fillion were received
resulting in a gain of approximately $16.7 millidbapital costs to rebuild the
rig were capitalized and are being depreciatecao@ance with the account
policy described in Critical Accounting Policiesdaastimates. Additione
claims have been submitted and future proceeddwifecorded as gain from
involuntary conversion. The Company expects tdes#its claim in 2008 and
estimates additional proceeds to range from $5anitio $10 million.
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COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 [AIR006

2007 200¢ % Change
INTERNATIONAL LAND OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statist
Operating revenue $320,28: $230,82! 38.8%
Direct operating expens 188,08t 155,76¢ 20.7
General and administrative expet 3,23¢ 3,27¢ (1.2
Depreciatior 23,78: 19,47 22.1
Segment operating incon $105,17! $ 52,31 101.(

Operating Statistics

Revenue day 8,88¢ 8,81z 0.6%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 31,46! $ 23,40 34.¢
Average rig expense per d $ 16,70: $ 14,801 12.¢
Average rig margin per de¢ $ 14,75 $ 8,59 71.€
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 27 27 —
Rig utilization 90% 90% —

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expensenaargin do not include reimbursements of "out-ofiet" expenses and exclude the effects
of currency revaluation expense.

Segment operating income for the Company's Intenmalt Land segment
increased 101.0 percent from 2006 to 2007 dueytatiaincreases in several
foreign markets with the most significant increaseurring in Venezuela.
Segment operating income also benefited from aklewRig being added to
the international fleet at the end of fiscal 20R&y utilization for international
land operations averaged 90 percent in both 206872806. Direct operating
expenses increased in 2007 primarily due to imftery pressures in the oil
service sector and contractual cost increases.

The Ecuadorian government continues to negotiaie the Company's

customers to resolve contract disputes createdrbgemt government decree.
The decree modified the original contracts fortSply profits on oil productior
If this continues without resolution, the Compamyi@pates that up to seven
rigs could become idle in Ecuador in the secondtgquaf fiscal 2008. Should
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this situation occur, the Company, at this timeaynable to predict the length of
time that the rigs would remain idle.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

2007 200¢ % Change
REAL ESTATE (in thousands
Operating revenue $11,27: $10,37! 8.€%
Direct operating expens 3,80¢ 3,52¢ 8.1
Depreciatior 2,45¢ 2,44 0.t
Segment operating incon $ 5,00° $ 4,41 13.t

Segment operating income in the Company's Reatdestgment increased
13.5 percent from 2006 to 2007. The segment expaxtkincreases in revent
as average occupancy rates increased.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 AND 2005

200¢ 200t % Change
U.S. LAND OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statist
Operating revenue $829,06. $527,63 57.1%
Direct operating expens 398,87: 294,16« 35.¢€
General and administrative expet 12,80" 8,594 49.C
Depreciatior 66,121 60,22: 9.8
Segment operating incon $351,25! $164,65 113.c

Operating Statistics

Revenue day 34,41« 30,96¢ 11.1%
Average rig revenue per d $ 22,75 $ 15,94 42.7
Average rig expense per d $ 10,25 $ 8,40 22.C
Average rig margin per de¢ $ 12,50 $ 7,53 65.¢
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 113 91 24.2
Rig utilization 99% 94% 5.2

Operating statistics for per day revenue, expemgkraargin do not include reimbursements of "oupatket" expenses.
Rig utilization excludes three FlexRigs completed eeady for delivery at September 30, 2(

The Company's U.S. Land segment operating incooreased to
$351.3 million in 2006 from $164.7 million in 2004s crude oil and natural
gas prices reached historically high levels, insesan
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U.S. land rig activity and higher dayrates expereghduring 2005 continued in
2006 resulting in improvements in revenue and nngpgr day. Rig utilization
increased to 99 percent in 2006 from 94 perceB0bb. Average rig expense
per day increased 22 percent as the energy indesigrienced increas
demand for materials, supplies and labor. The tatalber of rigs owned at
September 30, 2006 was 113 compared to 91 rigsme®ber 30, 2005. The
increase is due to 20 new FlexRigs placed intoiserthree FlexRigs
completed and ready for delivery and the sale ef@mventional rig in

March 2006. Depreciation in 2006 increased 9.8qmrfrom 2005 due to the
increase in available rigs.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 AND 2005

200¢ 200t % Change
OFFSHORE OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statist
Operating revenue $154,54. $106,291 45.2%
Direct operating expens 105,13: 69,66¢ 50.¢
General and administrative expel 6,14¢ 3,98( 54.¢
Depreciatior 11,40: 10,63¢ 7.2
Segment operating incon $ 31,86! $ 22,01 44.¢

Operating Statistics

Revenue day 2,74: 2,122 29.2%
Average rig revenue per d $ 38,72 $ 29,22 32.t
Average rig expense per d $ 24,04 $ 15,96’ 50.€
Average rig margin per d¢ $ 14,68 $ 13,26 10.€
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 9 11 (18.2)
Rig utilization 69% 53% 30.2

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expensknaargin do not include reimbursements of "out-ofiet" expenses and exclude the effects
of offshore platform management contracts and cwyeevaluation expense.

Segment operating income in the Company's Offskegenent increased
44.8 percent from 2005 to 2006. An increase indgmand for offshore rigs in
the Gulf of Mexico after the hurricanes in 2005 tritruted to increases in
activity days and rig utilization.
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COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 AND 2005

200¢ 200t % Change
INTERNATIONAL LAND OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statist
Operating revenue $230,82! $156,10! 47.%%
Direct operating expens 155,76¢ 118,95¢ 30.¢
General and administrative expel 3,27¢ 2,40¢ 36.C
Depreciatior 19,47: 20,07( (3.0
Segment operating incon $ 52,31 $ 14,66! 256.5

Operating Statistics

Revenue day 8,81 7,491 17.€%
Average rig revenue per d $ 23,40 $ 19,33 21.1
Average rig expense per d $ 14,801 $ 14,03 5.5
Average rig margin per de $ 8,59 $ 5,29 62.4
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 27 26 3.8
Rig utilization 90% 7% 16.¢

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expenskenaargin do not include reimbursements of "out-ofiet" expenses and exclude the effects
of currency revaluation expense.

Segment operating income for the Company's Intenmalt Land segment
increased 256.7 percent from 2005 to 2006 duegioehirig activity and
dayrates. Rig utilization for international landeoations averaged 90 percent ir
2006, compared with 77 percent in 2005. During 200@& new FlexRig was
added to the international land rig fleet.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 AND 2005

200¢ 200t % Change
REAL ESTATE (in thousands
Operating revenue $10,37¢ $10,68t (2.9%
Direct operating expens 3,52¢ 3,627 (2.7)
Depreciatior 2,44¢ 2,352 3.6
Segment operating incon $ 4,41 $ 4,71 (6.4)

Segment operating income in the Company's Reatdst@ment decreased
6.4 percent from 2005 to 2006. The segment expegtkdecreases in
reimbursements associated with property taxes and
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increases in depreciation due to capital expergittor leasehold and building
improvements.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company's capital spending was $894.2 millioad07, $528.9 million in
2006, and $86.8 million in 2005. Net cash provittedn operating activities fc
those same periods was $561.1 million in 2007, $R&6llion in 2006 and
$212.2 million in 2005. The Company's 2008 ca@@nding estimate is
approximately $375 million, a decrease from thedatdd $750 million in 200
due to completing construction of currently conteaicnew FlexRigs.
Construction of the contracted new FlexRigs is etlgkto be completed by the
end of the third fiscal quarter of 2008.

Historically, the Company has financed operatiomsarily through internally
generated cash flows. In periods when internalhyegated cash flows are not
sufficient to meet liquidity needs, the Companyl wither borrow from an
available unsecured line of credit or, if markehnditions are favorable, sell
portfolio securities. Likewise, if the Company iBngrating excess cash flov
the Company may invest in additional portfolio s#tes or short-term
investments.

The following table reconciles purchases of pordfgkecurities to purchases of
investments shown in the Consolidated Statemen@ash Flows in the
Company's Consolidated Financial Statements:

2007 200¢ 200t

(in thousands)

Purchase of portfolio securiti $ — $ 8,59: $3,00(
Purchase of sh¢-term investment — 139,84¢ 2,00(

Purchase of investmer $ — $ 148,44( $5,00(
|
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The Company manages a portfolio of marketable gezsithat, at the close of
2007, had a market value of $457.5 million. The @any's investments in
Atwood Oceanics, Inc. ("Atwood") and Schlumberded. made up 93 percent
of the portfolio's market value on September 3@720 he value of the
portfolio is subject to fluctuation in the marketdamay vary considerably ov
time. Excluding the Company's equity-method investmn Atwood and
investments in limited partnerships carried at cib& portfolio is recorded at
fair value on the Company's balance sheet. The Gaynpurrently owns
4,000,000 shares or approximately 12.6 percentebttstanding shares of
Atwood.

The Company generated cash proceeds from the fSadettolio securities of
$73.4 million in 2007, $28.2 million in 2006, and@7 million in 2005.

The following table reconciles cash proceeds frbendale of portfolio
securities stated above to proceeds from saleveStments shown in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows in the Cogip&onsolidated
Financial Statements:

2007 200¢ 200¢
(in thousands
Proceeds from the sale of portfolio securi $ 73,40¢ $ 28,24t $ 46,70(
Sales with a trade date in current fiscal year but
cash received in subsequent fiscal \ 6,09: (6,099 16,83¢
Proceeds from the sale of si-term investment 48,32: 91,56: 2,00(
Proceeds from sale of investments per Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flo $ 127,81 $ 113,71! $ 65,53¢

In 2007, proceeds were primarily from the sale,6fL2,500 shares of
Schlumberger, Ltd. Proceeds were primarily usddrnd capital expenditures.

21




In 2006, proceeds were primarily from the sale 30,200 shares of
Schlumberger, Ltd. Proceeds were primarily use@gpoirchase shares of
Company common stock and to fund capital expenebtur

In 2005, proceeds were primarily from the sale,000,000 shares of Atwood.
In July 2004, Atwood filed a Registration Statememtering all shares of
Atwood stock owned by the Company. On October 0942 Atwood
completed a secondary public offering of shareshich the Company sold a
portion of its Atwood shares and received $45.6ioml The proceeds we
invested in cash equivalent securities and wersespuently used to meet the
Company's capital expenditure needs.

The Company has historically been a long-term habdiénvestment securities.
However, circumstances may arise such as signtficagnital spending
requirements, the opportunity to repurchase Compganymon stock or the
above referenced Atwood offering that result inusiy¢ sales that were not
previously contemplated. During 2006 and 2007 Gbepany purchase
2,007,100 shares of Company common stock at areggty cost of

$46.0 million.

The Company's proceeds from asset sales totale@ fitlion in 2007,

$11.8 million in 2006 and $29.0 million in 2005.2007, one U.S. land rig and
two offshore rigs were sold generating $36.7 millio proceeds. Income from
asset sales in 2007 totaled $41.7 million. In 2@0& U.S. land rig was sold
generating $4.8 million in proceeds. Income fromedsales in 2006 totaled
$7.5 million. In 2005, the Company sold two larg&lUand rigs which
generated a gain of approximately $9.0 million prnoteeds of approximately
$23.3 million. The rigs sold in each year were ii¢he time of the sales and,
with the Company's emphasis on
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FlexRig technology, the Company took advantag&efapportunity to sell
older rigs. In each year the Company also had sdlekl or damaged rig
equipment and drill pipe used in the ordinary ceuwbusiness.

In the fourth fiscal quarter of 2006, the Compamgeived approximately

$3.0 million in insurance proceeds from damagetagusd to the Company's
offshore Rig 201 during Hurricane Katrina. In 200 Company received
additional insurance proceeds of approximately $idillion. In conjunction
with removing the net book value of damaged equigraest in the hurricane,
the Company recorded a gain from involuntary cosieer of approximately
$16.7 million. The proceeds, shown in the Constdidéstatements of Cash
Flows under investing activities, were used to fighthhe rig. Those costs were
capitalized and the rig returned to work in thertbdiscal quarter of 2007.

Since March 2005, the Company has announced ctstaabuild and operate
77 new FlexRig3s and FlexRig4s for 19 exploratind production companies.
Subsequent to September 30, 2007, the Company acedthat an agreement
had been reached with an exploration and productiompany to operate an
additional six new FlexRigs, bringing the totaltibé new rigs to 83. Each
agreement has a minimum fixed contract term oéastl three years. The
drilling services are performed on a daywork casttmasis. Through fiscal
2007, 70 rigs were completed for delivery, and 6the 70 rigs began field
operations by September 30, 2007. In 2006 the Coynesperienced delivery
delays associated with labor and equipment shatdgee-delivery contractual
liguidated damage payments were incurred in 20062807 but they have had
an immaterial impact on revenues and margins. Alghahe rig

23




delivery schedule was revised in August 2006, tbm@any was successful in
deploying 48 of the 69 new FlexRigs to field ope&nas in fiscal 2007. The rig
construction project is currently ahead of thesesdischedule. The remaining
rigs are expected to be completed by the end ahihe fiscal quarter of 2008.
The total estimated construction cost of all 83 igycurrently $1.3 billion.
Approximately $0.7 billion was incurred in fiscdd@7 and approximately
$0.4 billion was incurred in fiscal 2006 for consgttion of the new FlexRigs.
Construction cost estimates were revised in AugQ066 and the total costs
incurred to date have remained within those es@mat

The Company has $175 million intermediate-term ansed debt obligations
with staged maturities from August, 2009 to Aug@sil4. The annual average
interest rate through maturity will be 6.45 percdifite terms of the debt
obligations require the Company to maintain a mummratio of debt to total
capitalization.

On December 18, 2006, the Company entered intgaaement with a multi-
bank syndicate for a fivgear, $400 million senior unsecured credit facilifye
Company has the option to borrow at the prime fi@tenaturities of less than
30 days but anticipates the majority of all of Hegrowings over the life of the
new facility will accrue interest at a spread oHBOR. The Company pays a
commitment fee based on the unused balance othiléy. The spread over
LIBOR as well as the commitment fee are determamambrding to a scale bas
on the ratio of the Company's total debt to tosgditalization. The LIBOR
spread ranges from .30 percent to .45 percent depgon the ratio. Based on
the ratio at the close of the fiscal year, the LEB€bread on borrowings

was .35 percent and the commitment fee was .0 &g peper annum. Financial
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covenants in the facility require the Company tantaan a funded leverage
ratio (as defined) of less than 50 percent anahiamast coverage ratio (as
defined) of not less than 3.00 to 1.00. The newifiacontains additional term
conditions, and restrictions that the Company bebeare usual and customary
in unsecured debt arrangements for companies thaimilar in size and credit
guality. At closing, the Company transferred twitdes of credit totaling

$20.9 million to the facility that remained outstiamg at September 30, 2007.
As of September 30, 2007, the Company had $27@mitiorrowed against the
facility. The advances bear interest ranging frod85ercent to 6.15 percent.

At September 30, 2007, the Company was in compdiavith all debt
covenants.

In conjunction with the $400 million senior unsesdicredit facility, the
Company entered into an agreement with a singl& ttsamend and restate the
previous unsecured line of credit from $50 milltors5 million. Pricing on th
amended line of credit is prime minus 1.75 percéhé covenants and other
terms and conditions are similar to the aforemeattbsenior credit facility
except that there is no commitment fee. At Septer@Be2007, the Company
had no outstanding borrowings against this lineoASeptember 30, 2006, the
Company had four outstanding, unsecured notes p@ay@h bank in Venezue
totaling $3.7 million denominated in a foreign @ncy. The interest rate of the
notes was 13 percent with a 60 day maturity. Theswand interest were paid
full during fiscal 2007.

Subsequent to September 30, 2007, the Companyneldthatters of credit
totaling approximately $3.1 million to secure imfadion bonds in Trinidad and
Tobago associated with moving a rig into that count
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The Company's operating cash requirements andastihcapital expenditures,
including rig construction, for fiscal 2008 will bended through current cash,
cash provided from operating activities, funds kElde under the credit
facilities and possibly, sales of available-foressécurities.

Current ratios for September 30, 2007 and 2006 @&rand 1.6, respectively.
The increase in current ratio is primarily duertoreases in accounts receivable
and other current assets and a decrease in trentportion of long-term debt.
The debt to total capitalization ratio was 20 pet@nd 14 percent at
September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Theaseris due to additional
borrowing in 2007 to finance construction of thevidexRigs.

During 2007, the Company paid a dividend of $0.@Bghare, or a total of
$18.6 million, representing the 35th consecutivaryd dividend increases.

STOCK PORTFOLIO HELD BY THE COMPANY

September 30, 200 Number of Share: Cost Basit Market Value
(in thousands, except share amounts)

Atwood Oceanics, Inc 4,000,00! $74,21( $306,241

Schlumberger, Ltc 1,137,501 9,03t 119,43t

Other 14,66: 31,81

Total $97,90¢ $457,49:

MATERIAL COMMITMENTS

The Company has no off balance sheet arrangemt@stban operating leas
discussed below. The Company's contractual
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obligations as of September 30, 2007, are sumnuhnizthe table below:

Payments due by yea

Contractual Obligations

Total 200¢ 200¢ 201C 2011 201z After 2012
(in thousands
Long-term debt (a $ 445000 $ — 25,000 $ — 270,000 $ 75,000 $ 75,00(
Operating leases (| 8,15¢ 3,98 2,95¢ 1,214 — — —
Purchase
obligations (b 82,72 82,72 — — — — —
Total Contractua
Obligations $ 535,87¢ $ 86,70: $ 27,95¢ $ 1212 % 270,000 $ 75,000 $ 75,00(

(a) See Note 2 "Notes Payable and Long-term Delitie Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.
(b) See Note 14 "Commitments and Contingencieiet@ompany's Consolidated Financial Statements.

The above table does not include obligations ferGlompany's pension plan.
2007, the Company contributed $2.7 million to thempBased on current
information available from plan actuaries, the Campdoes not anticipate
contributions to the plan will be required in 206&wever, the Company does
expect to make discretionary contributions to fdigtributions of at least

$3.0 million in 2008. Future contributions beyor@D8 are difficult to estimate
due to multiple variables involved.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The Company's Consolidated Financial Statementsrgracted by the
accounting policies used and the estimates andguégans made by
management during their preparation. On an on-goasis, the Company
evaluates the estimates, including those relatéohtyp-lived assets and accrued
insurance losses. The estimates are based oni¢as&xperience and on
various other assumptions that the Company beli®/bs reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the bfsisnaking judgments about
the carrying values of assets and liabilities #ratnot readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from thesgmates
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under different assumptions or conditions. Theofeihg is a discussion of the
critical accounting policies which relate to prageplant and equipment,
impairment of long-lived assets, self-insuranceags, pension, stock-based
compensation, and revenue recognition. Other sagmf accounting policies
are summarized in Note 1 in the notes to the Cadesield Financial Statements.

Property, Plant and EquipmeProperty, plant and equipment, including
renewals and betterments, are stated at cost, mlailetenance and repairs are
expensed as incurred. Interest costs applicalileetoonstruction of qualifying
assets are capitalized as a component of the £eath assets. The Company
provides for the depreciation of property, pland @quipment using tr
straightline method over the estimated useful lives ofadbgets. Depreciation
determined considering the estimated salvage \d@ltiee property, plant and
equipment. Both the estimated useful lives andagpdwalues require the use o
management estimates. Certain events, such assga#or changes in operati
or technology or market conditions, could occut thauld materially affect the
Company's estimates and assumptions related tedapon. Management
believes that these estimates have been matesiailyrate in the past. For the
years presented in this report, no significant geanvere made to the
Company's useful lives or salvage values. Uponemint or other disposal of
fixed assets, the cost and related accumulateckdi@tion are removed from t
respective accounts and any gains or losses avedegtin net income.

Impairment of Lon-lived Asset3he Company's management assesses the
potential impairment of its lor-lived assets whenever events or changes in
conditions indicate that the carrying value of ased may not be recoverable.
Changes that trigger such an assessment may
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include equipment obsolescence, changes in theandeknand for a specific
asset, periods of relatively low rig utilizatiorealining revenue per day,
declining cash margin per day, completion of specibntracts, and/or overall
changes in general market conditions. If a reviéthe long-lived assets
indicates that the carrying value of certain okthassets is more than the
estimated undiscounted future cash flows, an impet charge is made to
adjust the carrying value to the estimated fairkatvalue of the asset. The fair
value of drilling rigs is determined based on gdatearket prices, if available.
Otherwise it is determined based upon estimatembdiged future cash flows
and rig utilization. Cash flows are estimated bynagement considering factc
such as prospective market demand, recent chamgigstechnology and its
effect on each rig's marketability, any cash investt required to make a rig
marketable, suitability of rig size and makeupxsng platforms, and
competitive dynamics due to lower industry utilinat Use of different
assumptions could result in an impairment charfferént from that reported.

Self-Insurance Accrualhe Company is self-insured or maintains high
deductibles for certain losses relating to workeoisipensation, general
liability, employer's liability, and auto liabilgis. Generally, deductibles are
$1 million or $2 million per occurrence dependimgwhether a claim occurs
inside or outside of the United States. The Compaaintains certain other
insurance coverage with deductibles as high asitidm Insurance is also
purchased on rig properties and deductibles aiealy $1 million per
occurrence. Excess insurance is purchased over tlwgrages to limit the
Company's exposure to catastrophic claims, buetban be no assurance that
such coverage will respond or be adequate in&@lioistances. Retained losses
are estimated and accrued based upon the Company's
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estimates of the aggregate liability for claimsumed, and using the Compan
historical loss experience and estimation methbdsadre believed to be
reliable. Nonetheless, insurance estimates inated@in assumptions and
management judgments regarding the frequency amdigeof claims, claim
development, and settlement practices. Unantiaibelb@nges in these factors
may produce materially different amounts of expense

Pension Costs and ObligatioThe Company's pension benefit costs and
obligations are dependent on various actuarialgsans. The Company
makes assumptions relating to discount rates pfatempensation increase, ¢
expected return on plan assets. The Company'suliscate is determined by
matching projected cash distributions with the appate corporate bond yiel

in a yield curve analysis. The discount rate waserhas of September 30, 2007
to reflect changes in the market conditions fohkagiality fixed-income
investments. The rate of compensation increasargasan reflects actual
experience and future outlook. The expected redarplan assets is determined
based on historical portfolio results and futurpestations of rates of return.
Actual results that differ from estimated assumpgiare accumulated and
amortized over the estimated future working lifdled plan participants and
could therefore affect the expense recognized ahdations in future periods.
As of September 30, 2006, the Pension Plan wasrirand benefit accruals
were discontinued. As a result, the rate of comaigms increase assumption
has been eliminated from future periods. The Comparticipates pension
expense in 2008 to decrease from 2007.

Stock-Based Compensatibinstorically, the Company has granted stock-base
awards to key employees and non-employee direatrs
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part of their compensation. Effective October 1020he Company adopted f
fair value recognition provisions of FASB StatemiBiot 123(R), Share-Based
Payment ("SFAS 123(R)"), using the modified-prospecransition method,
which requires that the fair value of unvested lstmations be recognized in the
income statement, over the remaining vesting pefibeé Company estimates
the fair value of all stock option awards as ofdlaée of grant by applying the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The applicatadrihis valuation model
involves assumptions, some of which are judgmanrtdlhighly sensitive. The
assumptions include, among others, the expecte#l ptice volatility, the
expected life of the stock options and riske interest rate. Expected volatilit
were estimated using the historical volatility bé tCompany's stock, based
upon the expected term of the option. The Compaay not aware of
information in determining the grant date fair v@athat would have indicated
that future volatility would be expected to be sigantly different than
historical volatility. The expected term of the ioptwas derived from historic
data and represents the period of time that ophoa®stimated to be
outstanding. The risk-free interest rate for pesiaathin the estimated life of
the option was based on the U.S. Treasury Strgpinagffect at the time of the
grant. The fair value of each award is amortize@ atraight-line basis over the
vesting period for awards granted to employeesckKStased awards granted to
non-employee directors are expensed immediately gpant.

The fair value of the restricted stock is basedhenclosing price of the
Company's common stock on the date of grant. Thegaoy amortizes the fair
value of restricted stock awards to compensatigeese on a straiglitie basit
over the vesting period. At September 30, 2007ecognized compensation
cost related to
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unvested restricted stock options was $4.6 millidre cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 3aBsye

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Compargoanted for share-based
compensation under the "intrinsic value method" thredrecognition and
measurement principles of Accounting Principlesr@dapinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and eelatterpretations. Under
this method, no share-based compensation expesseasd with the
Company's stock options was recognized in perioas fo fiscal 2006 as all
options were granted with an exercise price notleess the market value of the
underlying common stock on the date of grant.

Revenue RecognititRevenues and costs on daywork contracts are rexani
daily as the work progresses. For certain contraetgments are received that
are contractually designated for the mobilizatibnigs and other drilling
equipment. Revenues earned, net of direct costisrent for the mobilization,
are deferred and recognized over the term of tla¢eck drilling contract. Other
lump-sum payments received from customers reldargpecific contracts are
deferred and amortized to income as services aferpeed. Costs incurred to
relocate rigs and other drilling equipment to arneashich a contract has not
been secured are expensed as incurred.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Stagl&oard ("FASB") issue
SFAS No. 158Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensind ®ther
Postretirement Benefit Plai(SFAS 158). SFAS 158 requires companies to
recognize the overfunded or
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underfunded status of a defined benefit postretrgmlan as an asset or
liability in its statement of financial positionhis statement was adopted by th
Company for the fiscal year ending September 30728s discussed in Note 9
in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statéspdime Company's pension
plan was frozen on September 30, 2006. As a rettlie plan being frozen, tl
Company had effectively reflected the funded stafitbe plan in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet; therefore, SFAS 15&bachpact on the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Gssran issued Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 108 (SAB 108). SAB 108 catess the effects of pric
year misstatements when quantifying misstatementsirent year financial
statements. The guidance outlined in SAB 108 wiex¥e for the Company
fiscal 2007 and is consistent with the historiaaqgbices the Company uses for
assessing such matters when circumstances haveaagguch an evaluation.

In June, 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation Np Adcounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes-an interpretation of3BAStatement No. 109
This interpretation prescribes a recognition thoédland measurement attribute
for the financial statement recognition and meawerd of a tax position taken
or expected to be taken in a tax return, and pesvgliidance on derecognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounitnigterim periods, disclosure,
and transition. This interpretation is effective fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006. The Company does not believadbption of this
interpretation will have a material impact on thenSolidated Financial
Statements.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E&if,Value
Measurement. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establisheamé&work for
measuring fair value and expands disclosures dhoutalue measurements.
This statement is effective for financial statensassued for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007, and interimgaisiwithin those fiscal
years. The Company is currently evaluating SFAST¥G. to determine the
impact, if any, on the Consolidated Financial Stedets.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. I%t Fair Value of Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilitie— Including an Amendment of FASB Statemen
No. 115(SFAS No 159). SFAS No. 159 establishes a fairevalotion

permitting entities to elect the option to measeligible financial instrument
and certain other items at fair value on specifiattion dates. Unrealized ga
and losses on items for which the fair value ophas been elected will be
reported in earnings. The fair value option mawpplied on an instrument-by-
instrument basis and, with a few exceptions, sviocable and is applied only
entire instruments and not to portions of instrutee8FAS No. 159 is effective
as of the beginning of the first fiscal year begngnafter November 15, 2007
and should not be applied retrospectively to fisears beginning prior to the
effective date, except as permitted for early aidoptAt the effective date, an
entity may elect the fair value option for eligilllems existing at that date and
the adjustment for the initial remeasurement oséhikems to fair value should
be reported as a cumulative effect adjustmentdafiening balance of retained
earnings. The Company is currently assessing tphacdmif any, of SFAS

No. 159 on the Consolidated Financial Statem
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate RThe Company has operations in several
South American countries and Africa. With the extmapof Argentina and
Venezuela, the Company's exposure to currency trafuksses is usually
immaterial due to the fact that virtually all ineei billings and receipts in other
countries are in U.S. dollars. In Argentina, thar(@any's exposure is limited
the fact that the exchange rate between the UlBrdmd the Argentine peso
has stayed within a narrow range for the last j@ars.

The Company is exposed to risks of currency devalnan Venezuela
primarily as a result of bolivar receivable balaaad bolivar cash balances.
Venezuela, approximately 60 percent of the Comganiilings to the
Venezuelan state oil company, PDVSA, are in U.8adoand 40 percent are
the local currency, the bolivar. On October 1, 2063 ompliance with
applicable regulations, the Company submitted aesgto the Venezuelan
government seeking permission to convert existmigyar balances into U.S.
dollars. In January 2004, the Venezuelan govern@agpitoved the conversion
of bolivar cash balances to U.S. dollars and thattance of $8.8 million U.S.
dollars as dividends by the Company's Venezuelbgidiary to the U.S. based
parent. This was the first dividend remitted unither new regulation. O
January 16, 2006, a dividend of $6.5 million U.8llars was paid to the U.S.
based parent. On August 18, 2006, the Companyeapfar a $9.3 million
dividend. The Venezuelan government subsequengyoapd $7.2 million of
this dividend and on March 6, 2007, the $7.2 nmlleas paid to the U.S. based
parent. As a consequence, the Company's exposauerency devaluation h:
been reduced by these amounts.
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On June 7, 2007, the Company began the procesake application with the
Venezuelan government requesting the approvalrngard bolivar cash
balances to U.S. dollars. Upon approval from thaézeielan government, the
Company's Venezuelan subsidiary will remit thoskad® as a dividend to its
U.S. based parent, thus reducing the Company'ssex@do currency
devaluation. The Company anticipates the dividenkt approximately

$8.3 million.

As stated above, the Company is exposed to riskaroéncy devaluation in
Venezuela primarily as a result of bolivar receledalalances and bolivar cash
balances. The exchange rate per U.S. dollar inedet@s2150 bolivares during
2005 from 1920 bolivares at September 30, 2004 fesult of the 12 percent
devaluation of the bolivar during fiscal 2005 (fr@eptember 2004 through
August 2005), the Company experienced total devialudosses of $.6 million
during that same period. Past devaluation lossgsnotabe reflective of the
actual potential for future devaluation losses.rEtl®ugh Venezuela continues
to operate under the exchange controls in placdrentfenezuelan bolivar
exchange rate has remained fixed at 2150 bolitarese U.S. dollar since the
devaluation in March, 2005, the exact amount amthty of devaluation is
uncertain. At September 30, 2007, the Company &2ba&b million cash
balance denominated in bolivares exposed to theofisurrency devaluation.
While the Company is unable to predict future deafibn in Venezuela, if
fiscal 2008 activity levels are similar to fiscdl® and if a 10 percent to

20 percent devaluation were to occur, the Companjdcexperience potential
currency devaluation losses ranging from approxa@ga®3.5 million to

$6.4 million.

The Company has an agreement with the Venezuaé ®troleum company
whereby a portion of the Company's dollar-basedices
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are paid in U.S. dollars. There is no guarantee &asw long this arrangement
will continue. Were this agreement to end, the Canypwould revert to
receiving payments in bolivares and thus increadigdr cash balances and
exposure to devaluation.

Credit RiskThe Company derives its revenue in Venezuela fretmokeos de
Venezuela, S.A. (PDVSA), the Venezuelan stateed petroleum company.
September 30, 2007, the Company had a net receifraioh PDVSA of

$49.7 million of which $12.0 million was 90 dayslar older. At November 1,
2007, such receivable balance had increased t@apmtely $50.3 million, of
which approximately $14.4 million was 90 days oidbtiler. The Company
continues to communicate with PDVSA regarding thilesment of the
outstanding receivables. While the collection & taceivables is difficult and
time consuming due to PDVSA policies and procedutessCompany, at this
time, has no reason to believe the amounts wilbegbaid. Historically,
PDVSA payments on accounts receivable have, bytivadl business
measurements, been slower than that of other cessoiminternational
countries in which the Company has drilling openagi.

Commodity Price Riskhe demand for contract drilling services is a ltesu
exploration and production companies spending momeyxplore and develop
drilling prospects in search of crude oil and naltg@as. Their appetite for such
spending is driven by their cash flow and finansiaéngth, which is very
dependent on, among other things, crude oil anaraleas commaodity prices.
Crude oil prices are determined by a number obfadncluding supply and
demand, worldwide economic conditions, and geaopalifactors. Crude oil al
natural gas prices have been volatile and verycditfto predict. This difficulty
has led many exploration and production companies
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to base their capital spending on much more coasigevestimates of
commodity prices. As a result, demand for contdaitling services is not
always purely a function of the movement of commogrices.

The prices for drilling rig components have expeced increases in the last
year. While these materials have generally beeiadla to the Company at
acceptable prices, there is no assurance the prittesot vary significantly in
the future. The Company attempts to secure favenatites through advanced
ordering and purchasing. Additionally, future fluations in market conditions
causing increased prices in materials and supphekl impact future operating
costs adversely.

Interest Rate RisThe Company's interest rate risk exposure restilisapily
from short-term rates, mainly LIBORased, on borrowings from its commer
banks. The Company has reduced the impact of #dictos in interest rates by
maintaining a portion of its debt portfolio in fidkgate debt. At September 30,
2007, the amount of the Company's fixed-rate defst approximately

39 percent of total debit.

The following tables provide information as of Sapber 30, 2007 and 2006
about the Company's interest rate risk sensitisguments:
INTEREST RATE RISK AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 (dollas in thousands)

Fair Value
After

200¢ 200¢ 201C 2011 201z 201z Total 9/30/07

Fixed Rate Dek $ — $ 25,000 $ — $ — $ 75,000 $ 75,000 $ 175,000 $ 182,26!
Average Interest Ra — 5.9% — — 6.5% 6.€% 6.5%

Variable Rate Dek $ — $ — 8 — $ 270,00( $ — 3 — $ 270,00 $ 270,00(

Average Interest
Rate (a) — — — — — — (a)
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(a) Advances bear interest rates ranging from %48 6.15%

INTEREST RATE RISK AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 (dollass in thousands)

After Fair Value
2007 200¢ 200¢ 201( 2011 2011 Total at 9/30/0¢
Fixed Rate Lon-term
Debt $ 25,000 $ — $ 25000 $ —$ — $ 150,00 $ 200,00 $ 209,00(
Average Interest Rs 5.5% — 5.6% — — 6.5% 6.4%
Fixed Rate Note
Payable (b $ 3,721 $ 3,721 % 3,721
Average Interest Rs 13.(% 13.(%

(b) Denominated in a foreign currency

Equity Price RislOn September 30, 2007, the Company had a portblio
securities with a total market value of $457.5 ol The total market value of
the portfolio of securities was $336.1 million a&pfember 30, 2006. The
Company's investments in Atwood Oceanics, Inc.Setdumberger, Ltd. made
up 93 percent of the portfolio's market value git@mber 30, 2007. Although
the Company sold portions of its positions in Softberger in 2007, 2006 and
2005, and Atwood in the first fiscal quarter of 830€he Company makes no
specific plans to sell securities, but rather ssdsurities based on market
conditions and other circumstances. These se@idte subject to a wide
variety and number of market-related risks thal@substantially reduce or
increase the market value of the Company's holdiggsept for the Company's
holdings in its equity affiliate, Atwood Oceanit¢sc. and investments in limit
partnerships carried at cost, the portfolio is rded at fair value on its balan
sheet with changes in unrealized af@ex-value reflected in the equity sectior
its balance sheet. Any reduction in market valuald/thave an impact on the
Company's debt ratio and financial strength.

39




Report of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated talsimeets of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. as of Septe@®e2007
and 2006, and the related consolidated stateméntsmne, shareholders' equity, and cash flows#mh of the three
years in the period ended September 30, 2007. Timeseial statements are the responsibility of@menpany's
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBiqUnited
States). Those standards require that we plan aridrp the audit to obtain reasonable assurancet alftether the
financial statements are free of material misstaté@mAn audit includes examining, on a test basiglence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statgesn An audit also includes assessing the acewuptinciples used
and significant estimates made by management, hasvevaluating the overall financial statememsgntation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable asmur opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@dlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated
financial position of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. atp&amber 30, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidatedisesf its
operations and its cash flows for each of the tlygsers in the period ended September 30, 200 gnfoomity with U.S
generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@tnited
States), the effectiveness of Helmerich & Paynédniaternal control over financial reporting asSefptember 30, 200
based on criteria established in Internal Contntégrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sqramg
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and goontedated November 26, 2007 expressed an unadabipinion
thereon.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrsteiements, in 2006 the Company changed its rdeshaccounting
for Stock-Based Compensation.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
November 26, 200
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended September 3(

OPERATING REVENUES
Drilling — U.S. Land
Drilling — Offshore
Drilling — International Lanc
Real Estatt

OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Operating costs, excluding depreciat
Depreciatior
General and administratiy
Gain from involuntary conversion of lo-lived asset:
Income from asset sal

Operating income

Other income (expens
Interest and dividend incon
Interest expens
Gain on sale of investment securit
Other

Income before income taxes and equity in incomaffifate
Income tax provisiol
Equity in income of affiliate net of income tax

NET INCOME

Earnings per common sha
Basic
Diluted
Average common shares outstanding (in thousa
Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part obteegements.

2007 200¢ 200t

(in thousands, except per share amounts)
$ 1,174,951 $ 829,06. $ 527,63
123,14¢ 154,54: 106,29¢
320,28: 230,82¢ 156,10"
11,27: 10,37¢ 10,68¢
1,629,65! 1,224,81. 800,72¢
862,25: 661,56: 484,23:
146,04 101,58 96,27
47,40 51,87: 41,01t
(16,66°) —
(41,697 (7,492 (13,55()
997,33¢ 807,52 607,97(
632,31¢ 417,28t 192,75¢
4,23¢ 9,83¢ 5,80¢
(10,126 (6,649 (12,647
65,45¢ 19,86¢ 26,96¢
(1,537) 63¢ (235)
58,03« 23,69t 19,90:
690,35: 440,98: 212,65
250,98 154,39: 87,46!
9,892 7,26¢ 2,412
$ 449,26. $ 293,85¢ $ 127,60¢

$ 4.3
$ 4.217
103,33t
105,12¢

$ 2.81
$ 2.71
104,65t
106,09:

$ 1.2¢
$ 1.2t
102,17-
104,06t




Consolidated Balance Sheets

ASSETS
September 30 2007 200¢
(in thousands

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale $ 89,21¢ $ 33,85
Short term investmen 352 48,67
Accounts receivable, less reserve of $2,957 in 20i7$2,007 in 200 339,81 289,47¢
Inventories 29,14¢ 26,16¢
Deferred income taxe 11,55¢ 10,16¢
Assets held for sal — 4,23¢
Prepaid expenses and otl 28,87 16,11¢
Total current asse 498,96 428,69
INVESTMENTS 223,36( 218,30¢

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, at cos

Contract drilling equipmer 2,651,68! 1,911,03!
Construction in progres 214,64. 220,60:
Real estate propertis 59,46 58,28¢
Other 131,48 113,78t
3,057,27. 2,303,711

Les«-Accumulated depreciation and amortizat 904,65! 820,58:
Net property, plant and equipme 2,152,61! 1,483,13.
OTHER ASSETS 10,42¢ 4,57¢
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,885,36! $ 2,134,71.

The accompanying notes are an integral part obteegements.

42




LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

September 30

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Notes payabl

Accounts payabl

Accrued liabilities

Long-term debt due within one ye

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Long-term debt
Deferred income taxe
Other

Total noncurrent liabilitie:

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock, $.10 par value, 160,000,000 shartb®r@zed,
107,057,904 shares issued and outstar

Preferred stock, no par value, 1,000,000 shardéeedréd, no shares issu

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive inca

Less treasury stock, 3,572,961 shares in 2007 and
3,188,760 shares in 2006, at ¢

Total shareholders' equi

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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2007 200¢

(in thousands, except share data)

$ — $ 3,721
124,55t 138,75

102,05t 97,071

— 25,00(

226,61. 264,54¢

445,00( 175,00(

363,53¢ 269,91¢

34,701 43,35

843,24: 488,27

10,70¢ 10,70¢

143,14¢ 135,50(

1,645,76! 1,215,12

75,88¢ 69,64¢

1,875,50: 1,430,97!

59,98’ 49,08¢

1,815,51 1,381,89:

$ 2,885,36! $ 2,134,71.




Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity

Balance, September 30, 2C

Comprehensive Incom
Net income
Other comprehensive
income (loss)
Unrealized gains on
available-for-sale
securities, ne
Minimum pension
liability adjustment,
net

Total other comprehensive
gain

Total comprehensive incon

Capital adjustment of equity
investee

Stock issued under Restricted
Stock Award Pla

Cash dividends ($.165 per
share’

Exercise of stock optior

Tax benefit of stock-based
awards

Amortization of deferred
compensatio

Balance, September 30, 2C
Comprehensive Incom
Net income
Other comprehensive
income (loss)
Unrealized gains on
available-for-sale
securities, ne
Minimum pension
liability adjustment,
net

Total other comprehensive
gain

Total comprehensive incon

Reversal of unearned
compensation upon
adoption of SFAS 123(F

Cash dividends ($.1725 per
share’

Exercise of stock optior

Tax benefit of stock-based
awards, including excess
tax benefits of $10.2 millio

Repurchase of common sta

Stocl-based compensatic

Balance, September 30, 2C
Comprehensive Incom
Net income
Other comprehensive
income (loss)
Unrealized gains on
available-for-sale
securities, ne
Minimum pension
liability adjustment,
net

Total other comprehensive
gain

Common Stock

Shares Amount Capital

Additional
Paid-In Retained
Earnings

Unearned
Compensation

Accumulated

Treasury Stock

Shares

Comprehensive
Income (Loss) Amount

Total

(in thousands, except per share amot
828,76: $ — 3

107,05¢ $ 10,70¢ $ 80,11 $

127,60t

2,68:
93 (160

(16,989
8,90¢

15,15

26

3625. 6,161 $ (41,729

14,70¢

(3,416

(10) 67

(2,969 16,45t

$ 914,11

127,60t

14,70¢

(3,416

11,29:

138,89t

2,682

(16,989
25,35¢

15,15:

26

107,05¢ 10,70t 106,94+ 939,38( (1349)

293,85¢

(66) 134
(18,11)
6,01¢
12,85!

9,752

47,54 3,18¢ (25,207)

17,59:

4,51(

10 (68)

(1,339 6,35:

1,32t (30,169

1,079,23

293,85¢

17,59:

4,51(

22,10

315,95¢

(18,11)
12,37:

12,85:
(30,169

,(O¢

107,05t 10,70t 135,50( 1,215,12 —

449,26

69,64¢ 3,18¢ (49,08¢)

(2,930

9,17(

1,381,89.

449,26

(2,930

9,17(

6,24(



Total comprehensive incon 455,50:

Cash dividends ($.18 per

share (18,627 (18,627
Exercise of stock optior (1,15€) (29¢) 4,95¢ 3,80:
Tax benefit of stock-based

awards, including excess

tax benefits of $1.5 millio 1,792 1,79:
Repurchase of common sto 682 (15,859 (15,859
Stocl-based compensatic 7,01( 7,01(
Balance, September 30, 2C 107,05¢ $ 10,70¢ $ 143,14¢ $ 1,645,761 $ ) 75,888 3,57: % (59,987 $ 1,815,51

The accompanying notes are an integral part obteegements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 3(

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile income
to net cash provided by operating activit

Depreciatior

Provision for bad det

Equity in income of affiliate before incon
taxes

Stoclk-based compensatic

Gain on sale of investment securit

Gain from involuntary conversion of long-lived
asset

Gain on sale of asse

Deferred income tax expen

Other- net

Change in assets and liabiliti¢
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and otl
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Deferred income taxe
Other noncurrent liabilitie

Net cash provided by operating activit

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditure
Proceeds from asset sa
Insurance proceeds from involuntary conver:
Purchase of investmer
Proceeds from sale of investme

Net cash provided by (used in) invest
activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repurchase of common sta
Increase (decrease) in si-term notes
Decrease in lor-term debi
Proceeds from line of crec
Payments on line of crec
Increase (decrease) in bank overd
Dividends paic
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti
Excess tax benefit from stock based compens:

Net cash provided by (used in) financ
activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe

The accompanying notes are an integral part obtbegement:

2007 200¢ 200t

(in thousands
$ 449,26 $ 293,85¢ $ 127,60¢
146,04: 101,58 96,27
1,03( 25C 53C
(15,95 (11,729 (3,897)
7,01( 9,75 26
(65,320) (19,730) (26,969
(16,667) — _
(41,697 (7,492) (13,55()
82,29« 3,50¢ 38,01«
1,00( (987) (879)
(53,779 (120,740 (46,227
(2,980 (4,857) (487)
(18,606 372 1,451
73,78( (11,069 8,517
5,29¢ 55,11: 12,73¢
6,10 4,49( 16,557
4,23 4,05 2,52¢
561,06 296,39( 212,23t
(894,21, (528,909 (86,805
51,56¢ 11,77¢ 28,99:
16,257 2,97( —
— (148,44 (5,000)
127,81¢ 113,71! 65,53¢
(698,57() (548,88 2,72¢
(17,627 (28,407 —
(3,729) 3,721 —
(25,000 — _
1,490,001 — —
(1,220,001 _ _
(17,430 17,43( —
(18,639 (17,715 (16,86¢)
3,80z 12,37: 25,35¢
1,47: 10,18¢ —
192,86t (2,407) 8,49:
55,36: (254,899 223,45¢
33,85 288,75: 65,29¢
$ 89,21¢ $ 33,858 $ 288,75:
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (the Compangyl &s wholly-owned subsidiaries. Fisc
years of the Company's foreign operations end aguau31 to facilitate reporting of consolidatedutess There were no significant interveni
events which materially affected the financial staénts.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Certain amounts in the accompanying consolidateghfiial statements for prior periods have beerassiled to conform to current year
presentation. Specifically, fiscal years 2006 a@@32operating revenues for Drilling — Offshore d&odDrilling — International Land have been
restated to reflect a change in those two segnmeots fully described in Note 15.

All prior period common stock and applicable shamd per share amounts have been retroactivelytadjts reflect a 2-for-1 split of the
Company's common stock effective June 26, 2006.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Company's functional currency for all its fgresubsidiaries is the U.S. dollar. Nonmonetarg@sand liabilities are translated at histor
rates and monetary assets and liabilities areltgausat exchange rates in effect at the end opéned. Income statement accounts are
translated at average rates for the year. Gaindossds from remeasurement of foreign currencynfifed statements into U.S. dollars are
included in direct operating costs. Gains and ®sesulting from foreign currency transactionsase included in current results of operatic
Aggregate foreign currency remeasurement and tcéinsagains included in direct operating costslama51.0 million in 2007 and losses
included in direct operating costs totaled $0.3iariland $0.8 million in 2006 and 2005, respectvel

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Company's financial stateamienconformity with accounting principles gendéralccepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) requires management to make estisnatel assumptions that affect reported amountssetsiand liabilities and disclosure
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effitancial statements and the reported amounesvehues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those ewsties.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cestdecumulated depreciation. Substantially all @riyp plant and equipment are depreciated
using the straight-line method based on the estidhaseful lives of the assets (contract drillingipment, 4-15 years; real estate buildings and
equipment, 10-50 years; and other, 3-33 years).(drapany charges the cost of maintenance and sdpailirect operating cost, while
betterments and refurbishments are capitalized.
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CAPITALIZATION OF INTEREST

The Company capitalizes interest on major projdating construction. Interest is capitalized basedhe average interest rate on related debt.
Capitalized interest for 2007, 2006, and 2005 w4 #illion, $6.1 million, and $0.3 million, respaely.

VALUATION OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company periodically evaluates the carryingiealf long-lived assets to be held and used, inouthtangible assets, when events or
circumstances warrant such a review. Changes thdd ¢rigger such an assessment may include afisigni decline in revenue or cash margin
per day, extended periods of low rig utilizatiohanges in market demand for a specific asset, ebsahce, completion of specific contracts,
and/or overall general market conditions. If a eewbf the long-lived assets indicates that theyoagrvalue of certain of these assets is more
than the estimated undiscounted future cash flawsmpairment charge is made to adjust the carryabge to the estimated fair market value
of the asset.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash equivalents consist of investments in shontstaighly liquid securities having original matigs of three months or less, which are made
as part of the Company's cash management actihgy carrying values of these assets approximateftiemarket values. The Company
primarily utilizes a cash management system wikrées of separate accounts consisting of lockloogunts for receiving cash, concentration
accounts for moving funds into, and several "zeataibce" disbursement accounts for funding payrudl accounts payable. As a result of the
Company's cash management system, checks issuathtipresented to the banks for payment, may emegative book cash balances.
Checks outstanding in excess of related book cakinbes totaling approximately $17.4 million at t8efber 30, 2006 are included in accounts
payable. At September 30, 2007, there were no ivegadok cash balances.

RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company had restricted cash and cash equisadé$8.2 million and $4.3 million at September 2007 and 2006, respectively. Restric
cash is primarily for the purpose of potential irsice claims in the Company's wholly-owned capitiseirance company. Of the total at
September 30, 2007, $2.0 million is from the initiapitalization of the captive and managementetasted to restrict an additional

$5.5 million. The remaining $0.7 million restrictedsh is for indemnification on outstanding imptcia bonds. The restricted amounts are
primarily invested in short-term money market sé®s.

The restricted cash and cash equivalents are tefléc the balance sheet as follows (in thousands):

September 30 2007 200¢
Other current asse $ 6,20: $ 2,27%
Other asset $ 2,00( $ 2,00(

INVENTORIES AND SUPPLIES

Inventories and supplies are primarily replacenpamts and supplies held for use in the Companijl;igroperations. Inventories and supplies
are valued at the lower of cost (moving averagactual) or market value.
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DRILLING REVENUES

Contract drilling revenues are comprised of daywdriking contracts for which the related revenaesl expenses are recognized as services
are performed. For certain contracts, the Compeogives payments contractually designated for thieilimation of rigs and other drilling
equipment. Mobilization payments received, andalioests incurred for the mobilization are deferaed recognized on a straight line basis
over the term of the related drilling contract. @dacurred to relocate rigs and other drilling ipguent to areas in which a contract has not
secured are expensed as incurred. Reimbursemesigae by the Company for out-of-pocket expensesetcorded as revenues and direct
costs.

RENT REVENUES

The Company enters into leases with tenants ireitsal properties consisting primarily of retaidamulti-tenant warehouse space. The lease
terms of tenants occupying space in the retailezerand warehouse buildings range from one to elggars. Minimum rents are recognizec
a straightline basis over the term of the related leasesr&ecand percentage rents are based on tenartsvsédme. Recoveries from tene
for property taxes and operating expenses are néizedjas Real Estate revenues in the Consoliddégdngents of Income. The Company's
revenues are as follows:

Years Ended September 3( 2007 200¢ 200t
(in thousands)

Minimum rents $ 8,87: $ 8,53¢ $  7,60¢

Overage and percentage re $ 1,474 $ 1,21¢ $ 1,162

At September 30, 2007, minimum future rental incdmbe received on noncancelable operating leaassaw follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Amount
2008 $ 7,28¢
2009 5,48¢
2010 4,54¢
2011 3,59(
2012 2,32¢
Thereaftel 5,55¢

Total $ 28,79¢

Leasehold improvement allowances are capitalizeldsamortized over the lease term.
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At September 30, 2007 and 2006, the cost and adateduwlepreciation for real estate properties asriollows:

September 30 2007 200¢
Real estate propertir $ 59,46" $ 58,28¢
Accumulated depreciatic (33,88¢) (31,669
$ 25,58 $ 26,62:
I I
INVESTMENTS

The Company maintains investments in equity sdesraf unaffiliated companies. The cost of seasitised in determining realized gains and
losses is based on the average cost basis of¢hdtgesold.

The Company regularly reviews investment securfiesmpairment based on criteria that include ¢lkéent to which the investment's carrying
value exceeds its related market value, the duratidhe market decline and the financial streragiti specific prospects of the issuer of the
security. Unrealized losses that are other thapésary are recognized in earnings.

Investments in companies owned from 20 to 50 pémenaccounted for using the equity method with@ompany recognizing its
proportionate share of the income or loss of tivestee. The Company owned approximately 21.7 peofetwood Oceanics, Inc. (Atwood)
at September 30, 2004. In October 2004, the Compalaly1,000,000 shares of its position in Atwooghar of a public offering of Atwood.
The sale generated $15.9 million ($0.15 per dilsiegre) of net income in fiscal 2005. In March 2086vood had a two-for-one stock split.
The Company currently owns 4,000,000 shares of Atdwshich represents approximately 12.6 percenttefodd. The Company continues to
account for Atwood on the equity method as the Camgpontinues to have significant influence throitghboard of director seats.

The quoted market value of the Company's investimefitwood was $306.2 million and $179.9 million@¢ptember 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Retained earnings at September 3I¥, 28d 2006 includes approximately $41.5 milliod &31.6 million, respectively, of
undistributed earnings of Atwood.
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Summarized financial information of Atwood is afidws:

September 30 2007 200¢ 200t
(in thousands

Gross revenue $ 403,03" $ 276,62! $ 176,15t

Costs and expens 264,01< 190,50: 149,78!

Net income $ 139,02: $ 86,12: $ 26,37

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.'s equity in net income, afeincome

taxes $ 9,89 $ 7,26¢ $ 2,41:

| | |
Current assel $ 216,17¢ $ 147,67 $ 93,28
Noncurrent asse 501,54! 446,15t 403,64:
Current liabilities 57,63( 61,36¢ 56,15¢
Noncurrent liabilities 44,23¢ 73,57( 78,26¢
Shareholders' equit $ 615,85! $ 458,89« $ 362,49

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.'s investme $ 74,21( $ 58,25¢ $ 46,53

INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes are computed using the itialoilethod and are provided on all temporary déferes between the financial basis and the
tax basis of the Company's assets and liabilities.

POST EMPLOYMENT AND OTHER BENEFITS

The Company sponsors a health care plan that @evidst retirement medical benefits to retired eyges. Employees who retire after
November 1, 1992 and elect to participate in tla play the entire estimated cost of such ben

The Company has accrued a liability for estimatedkar's compensation claims incurred. The liability other benefits to former or inactive
employees after employment but before retiremenbisnaterial.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is based on the weighve@dge number of common shares outstanding dunmgériod. Diluted earnings per share
includes the dilutive effect of stock options aedtricted stock.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Effective October 1, 2005, the Company began réagrdompensation expense associated with stockmptn accordance with SFAS No. 123
(R), "Share-Based Payment". Prior to October 152€f Company accounted for stock-based compensagiated to stock options under the
recognition and measurement principles of AccognBrinciples Board Opinion No. 25. Therefore, tt@pany measured compensation
expense for its stock option plan using the intcivalue method-that is, as the excess, if anyheffair market value of the Company's stock at
the grant date over the amount required to be toadatquire the stock-and provided the disclosuegsired by SFAS No. 123. The Company
adopted the modified prospective transition methavided under SFAS No. 123(R) and, as a resuttniod retroactively adjusted results from
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prior periods. Under this transition method, congagion expense associated with stock options rézedtin fiscal 2007 and 2006 includes:
1) expense related to the remaining unvested podfi@ll stock option awards granted prior to Oetob, 2005, based on the grant date fair
value estimated in accordance with the originaligions of SFAS No. 123; and 2) expense relateadltstock option awards granted
subsequent to October 1, 2005, based on the gatenfair value estimated in accordance with the&igirons of SFAS No. 123(R).

The adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) also resulted made changes to the Company's accounting foeggricted stock awards, which is
discussed in Note 5 in more detail.

TREASURY STOCK

Treasury stock purchases are accounted for undexodt method whereby the cost of the acquirek $soecorded as treasury stock. Gains
losses on the subsequent reissuance of sharesedited or charged to additional paid-in-capitahgghe average-cost method.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Stastl&oard ("FASB") issued SFAS No. 188nployers' Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit PI(SFAS 158). SFAS 158 requires companies to receghiz overfunded or underfunded status
of a defined benefit postretirement plan as antasd@bility in its statement of financial positi. This statement was adopted by the Company
for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2007. i8sussed further in Note 9, the Company's pendam pas frozen on September 30, 2006.
As a result of the plan being frozen, the Compaay éffectively reflected the funded status of tlampn the Consolidated Balance Sheets;
therefore, SFAS 158 had no impact on the Cons@ikinancial Statements.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Gssiun issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 €8A08). SAB 108 considers the
effects of prior year misstatements when quantifyirisstatements in current year financial statemédrte guidance outlined in SAB 108 was
effective for the Company in fiscal 2007 and isgietent with the historical practices the Compasgsufor assessing such matters when
circumstances have required such an evaluation.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation NoA¢8ounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes-an iptetation of FASB Statement

No. 108. This interpretation prescribes a recognitionshoéd and measurement attribute for the finant¢éksent recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expectdée taken in a tax return, and provides guidancegesacognition, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclesand transition. This interpretation is effectivefiscal years beginning after December 15,
2006. The Company does not believe the adoptidghi®interpretation will have a material impacttbe Consolidated Financial Statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E&if,Value MeasurementsSFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishesmé&work for
measuring fair value and expands disclosures daoutalue measurements. This statement is effedtv financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning afte
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November 15, 2007, and interim periods within thfiseal years. The Company is currently evalua®iAS No. 157 to determine the impe
if any, on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. I8 Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioal Liabilities — Including an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. (SFAS No. 159). SFAS No. 159 establishes a fainealption permitting entities to elect the option t
measure eligible financial instruments and ceredirer items at fair value on specified electioredatUnrealized gains and losses on items for
which the fair value option has been elected velrbported in earnings. The fair value option mayapplied on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, with a few exceptions, is irrevocable anabiglied only to entire instruments and not to ipod of instruments. SFAS No. 159 is
effective as of the beginning of the first fiscaly beginning after November 15, 2007 and shouldb@@pplied retrospectively to fiscal years
beginning prior to the effective date, except asnitted for early adoption. At the effective dad®, entity may elect the fair value option for
eligible items existing at that date and the adjestt for the initial remeasurement of those iteonfair value should be reported as a
cumulative effect adjustment to the opening balafaetained earnings. The Company is currentlgssiag the impact, if any, of SFAS

No. 159 on the Consolidated Financial Stateme

NOTE 2 NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT

At September 30, 2007 and 2006, the Company ha8l fdiion and $200 million, respectively, in unseed long-term debt outstanding at
rates and maturities shown in the following table:

September 30
Maturity Date Interest Rate 2007 200¢
Fixec-rate debt
August 15, 200° 5.51% $ — $ 25,000,00
August 15, 200! 5.91% 25,000,00! 25,000,00
August 15, 201: 6.46% 75,000,00 75,000,00
August 15, 201- 6.56% 75,000,00! 75,000,00
Senior credit facility
December 18, 201 5.48%-6.15% 270,000,00 —
$ 445,000,00 $ 200,000,00
Less lonrterm debt due within one ye — (25,000,00)
Long-term debi $ 445,000,00 $ 175,000,00
I I

The terms of the fixed-rate debt obligations regjtiire Company to maintain a minimum ratio of dekibtal capitalization. The debt is held by
various entities, including $8 million held by angpany affiliated with one of the Company's Boardmbers.

On December 18, 2006, the Company entered int@gaaement with a multi-bank syndicate for a five41y&00 million senior unsecured
credit facility. While the Company has the optiorbbrrow at the prime rate for maturities of ldsst 30 days, the Company anticipates the
majority of all the borrowings over the life of tfecility will accrue interest at a spread over tlmdon Interbank Bank Offered Rate (LIBO
The Company
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pays a commitment fee based on the unused balénige facility. The spread over LIBOR as well as tommitment fee is determined
according to a scale based on a ratio of the Coypé#atal debt to total capitalization. The LIBORa&ad ranges from .30 percent to .45 pet
depending on the ratio. At September 30, 2007|.IBOR spread on borrowings was .35 percent anadimemitment fee was .075 percent per
annum.

Financial covenants in the facility require the Qamy to maintain a funded leverage ratio (as ddjinéless than 50 percent and an interest
coverage ratio (as defined) of not less than 30DQ@0. The new facility contains additional termsnditions, and restrictions that the Comp
believes are usual and customary in unsecuredadebtgements for companies that are similar inaimbcredit quality. At closing, the
Company transferred two letters of credit total#®§.9 million to the facility that remained outsiiémg at September 30, 2007. As of
September 30, 2007, the Company had $270 milliorobed against the facility with $109.1 million iefvailable to borrow. The advances
bear interest ranging from 5.48 percent to 6.18qm@r Subsequent to September 30, 2007, the odistabalance was reduced by $10 million.

At September 30, 2007, the Company was in compdiavith all debt covenants.

In conjunction with the $400 million senior unsesdicredit facility, the Company entered into areagrnent with a single bank to amend and
restate the previous unsecured line of credit f§&® million to $5 million. Pricing on the amendéuk! of credit is prime minus 1.75 percent.
The covenants and other terms and conditions amasito the aforementioned senior credit facibtycept that there is no commitment fee. At
September 30, 2007, the Company had no outstabdimgwings against this line.

Subsequent to September 30, 2007, the Companyneltadtters of credit with a financial institutitotaling approximately $3.1 million to
secure importation bonds in Trinidad and Tobago@aged with moving a rig into that country.

As of September 30, 2006, the Company had foutanding unsecured notes payable to a bank tot&Bng million denominated in a foreign
currency. The interest rate of the notes was 18gpeémwith a 60 day maturity. The notes and intenese paid in full during fiscal 2007.
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NOTE 3 INCOME TAXES

The components of the provision for income taxesaarfollows:

Years Ended September 3( 2007 200¢ 200t
(in thousands)
Current:

Federa $ 125,16¢ $ 136,37( $ 39,13¢
Foreign 31,55: 4,304 8,18t
State 11,96¢ 10,21 2,12t
168,69( 150,88" 49,44¢

Deferred:
Federa 74,38¢ 10,25: 31,57
Foreign 1,52¢ (7,776 4,86:
State 6,371 1,02¢ 1,57¢
82,29 3,504 38,01«
Total provision $ 250,98: $ 154,39: $ 87,46

The amounts of domestic and foreign income befaceme taxes and equity in income of affiliate agdadiows:

Years Ended September 3( 2007 200¢ 200¢
(in thousands)

Domestic $ 579,58¢ $ 389,59! $ 195,97¢

Foreign 110,76 51,38¢ 16,67¢

$ 690,35! $ 440,98: $ 212,65

Deferred income taxes are provided for the tempyatdferences between the financial reporting basid the tax basis of the Company's as
and liabilities. Recoverability of any tax assets evaluated and necessary allowances are provithedcarrying value of the net deferred tax
assets assumes, based on estimates and assunptidtise Company will be able to generate sufficfature taxable income in certain tax
jurisdictions to realize the benefits of such asséthese estimates and related assumptions eharibe future, additional valuatic

allowances will be recorded against the deferrgdtsets resulting in additional income tax expémsiee future.
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The components of the Company's net deferred abxities are as follows:

September 30 2007 200¢

(in thousands
Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipme $ 303,91! $ 220,85:
Available-for-sale securitie 46,50: 48,59:
Equity investment 25,41 19,35(
Other 1,41F 51
Total deferred tax liabilitie 377,24 288,84!
Deferred tax asset
Pension reserve 1,68¢ 8,441
Selfinsurance reserve 2,88¢ 3,38¢
Net operating loss and foreign tax credit carryfams 26,92¢ 33,02¢
Financial accrual 21,99¢ 17,26(
Other 6 9
Total deferred tax asse 53,50( 62,12¢
Valuation allowanct 28,23: 33,02¢
Net deferred tax asse 25,26¢ 29,09¢
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ 351,97 $ 259,75:

Reclassifications have been made to the fiscal P@fdnces for certain components of deferred tagtasand liabilities in order to conform to
the current year's presentation.

The change in the Company's net deferred tax aasdtBabilities is impacted by foreign currencynesasurement.

As of September 30, 2007 the Company had foreigjomerating loss carryforwards for income tax pwgmof $3.9 million, and foreign tax
credit carryforwards of approximately $25.7 milliaich will expire in years 2010 through 2015. Maduation allowance is primarily
attributable to foreign net operating loss carrwfards and foreign tax credit carryforwards for vhicis more likely than not that these will |
be utilized.

Effective income tax rates as compared to the @@=Fal income tax rate are as follows:

Years Ended September 3( 2007 200¢ 200t
U.S. Federal income tax re 35% 35% 35%
Effect of foreign taxe @ @ 3
State income taxe 2 1 3
Effective income tax rat 36% 35% 41%
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NOTE 4 SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

On March 1, 2006, the Company's Board of Direcagsroved a two-for-one stock split on its commartkt subject to shareholder approval
of an amendment to the Company's Restated Cetéfafdncorporation to increase the number of atileol common shares of the Company.
On June 23, 2006, the Company's shareholders aggbthe amendment. As a result, the split was peide form of a share distribution on
July 7, 2006 to the shareholders of record on 26n2006. The Company retained the current parevaii$.10 per share for all shares of
common stock. All references in the financial staats to the number of shares outstanding, pee straounts, and stock option data of the
Company's common stock have been restated to réfleeffect of the stock split for all periods gpeated.

On September 30, 2007, the Company had 103,484 @4$8nding common stock purchase rights ("Righgefsuant to terms of the Rights
Agreement dated January 8, 1996, as amended by dureart No. 1 dated December 8, 2005. As adjustethéotwo-for-one stock splits in
fiscals 1998 and 2006, and as long as the rigktsatr separately transferable, one-half right atado each share of the Company's common
stock. Under the terms of the Rights Agreement &ight entitles the holder thereof to purchase ftbenCompany one full unit consisting of
one one-thousandth of a share of Series A JunigicRating Preferred Stock ("Preferred Stock")theiut par value, at a price of $250 per unit.
The exercise price and the number of units of PrefieStock issuable on exercise of the Rights @alogest to adjustment in certain cases to
prevent dilution. The Rights will be attached te tommon stock certificates and are not exercisatiensferable apart from the common
stock, until ten business days after a person eegdb percent or more of the outstanding commmeksir ten business days following the
commencement of a tender offer or exchange offarwiould result in a person owning 15 percent orenad the outstanding common stock
the event the Company is acquired in a merger maiceother business combination transactions (iiaog one in which the Company is the
surviving corporation), or more than 50 percenthef Company's assets or earning power is soldosferred, each holder of a Right shall
the right to receive, upon exercise of the Rightmmon stock of the acquiring company having a valygal to two times the exercise price of
the Right. The Rights are redeemable under cecteiomstances at $0.01 per Right and will expirdess earlier redeemed, on January 31,
2016.

NOTE 5 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has several plans providing for stadetl awards to employees and to non-employeealissfcom which stock grants have
been made. On March 1, 2006, at the Annual Meetirgtockholders, the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Rtae Plan) was approved. Upon
approval of the Plan, no further grants could belenfaom those prior plans. However, awards outstenih those prior plans remain subject to
the terms and conditions of those plans.

The provisions of the Plan, among other thingsherites the Board of Directors to grant nonqualifiend incentive stock options, restricted
stock awards, stock appreciation rights and perémee units to selected employees and to non-emplirectors. Restricted stock may be
granted for no consideration other than prior andre services. The purchase price per sharedok siptions may not be less than market
price of the underlying stock on the date of gr&bck options expire ten years after grant.
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The Company has the right to satisfy option exescfsom treasury shares and from authorized bgisued shares. During fiscal 2007, the
Company purchased 681,900 shares at an aggregatef &15.9 million. During fiscal 2006, 1,325,280ares were purchased at an aggregate
cost of $30.2 million of which $1.8 million did negttle until after September 30, 2006. The Compaay purchase additional shares if the
share price is favorable.

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement ofnéinhAccounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2084are Based PaymefiBFAS 123
(R)"). SFAS 123(R) is a revision of SFAS No. 128 amnendedAccounting for Stock-Based Compensafi8FAS 123"), and supersedes
Accounting Principles Board Opinion ("APB") No. 2&¢counting for Stock Issued to Employ€@d’B 25"). SFAS 123(R) eliminated the
alternative to use the intrinsic value method afoamting that was provided in SFAS 123, which geleresulted in no compensation expense
recorded in the financial statements related taghgance of stock options with an exercise phieg was equal to the award's grant date fair
value. SFAS 123(R) requires that the cost resuftioign all share-based payment transactions be réoed in the financial statements.

SFAS 123(R) established fair value as the measureaigective in accounting for share-based payraeatngements and requires all
companies to apply a fair-value based measuremetttad in accounting for all share-based paymens#etions with employees.

In October 2005, the Company adopted SFAS 123(Rpwsmodified prospective application, as perrditteder SFAS 123(R). Accordingly,
prior period amounts have not been restated. Uthiteapplication, the Company is required to reamuhpensation expense for all awards
granted after the date of adoption and for the st@geportion of previously granted awards that iaroatstanding at the date of adoption.
Additionally, SFAS 123(R) requires that the bergedif the tax deduction in excess of recognized esation cost be reported as a financing
cash flow, rather than as an operating cash floreqsired under previously effective accountingnpiples generally accepted in the United
States. The adoption of SFAS 123(R) also resuftezitain changes to the Company's accountingefiricted stock awards, which is
discussed below in more detail.

A summary of compensation cost for stock-based payrarrangements recognized in general and adnaitive expense and cash received
from the exercise of stock options in fiscal 20@d 2006 is as follows (in thousands, except peresamounts):

September 30 2007 200¢
Compensation expen
Stock options $ 5,64 $ 8,71«

Restricted stoc
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After-tax stock based compensat $

Per basic shai

»

.04

»

.0€

Per diluted shar $ .04 $ .0€
| I
Cash received from exercise of stock opti $ 3,80z $ 12,37:
| |
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Benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognzatpensation cost of $1.5 million and $10.2 millare reported as a financing cash flow in
the Consolidated Condensed Statements of Cashfbidigcal 2007 and 2006, respectively.

In December 2005, the Company accelerated thengesfishare options held by a senior executive weiced. As a result of that modificatic
the Company recognized additional compensationresgoef $2.8 million for the fiscal year ended Segier 30, 2006 that is included in the
table above.

STOCK OPTIONS

Vesting requirements for stock options are deteeahiny the Human Resources Committee of the Comp&ward of Directors. Options
granted December 6, 1995, began vesting Decemi&98, with 20 percent of the options vesting fee consecutive years. Options granted
December 4, 1996, began vesting December 4, 1987 2@ percent of the options vesting for five cenistive years. Options granted since
December 3, 1997, began vesting one year aftegrtr date with 25 percent of the options vestorgdur consecutive years.

Prior to adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company usedBlack-Scholes formula to estimate the valustofk options granted to employees.
The Company continues to use this acceptable optiration model following the adoption of SFAS {RR The fair value of the options is
amortized to compensation expense on a stréiightdasis over the requisite service periods efdfock awards, which are generally the ves
periods. The following summarizes the weighted-agerassumptions in the model.

2007 200¢€ 200t
Risk-free interest rat 4.6% 4.5% 4.2%
Expected stock volatilit 35.9% 36.% 40.2%
Dividend yield 1% .5% 1.C%
Expected term (in year 5.5 5.2 5.C

Risk-Free Interest Rate. The risk-free interest rate is based on the Ur8asury securities for the expected term ofibigon.

Expected Volatility Rate Expected volatilities are based on the daibsicig price of the Company's stock based uponritsicexperience
over a period which approximates the expected tdrthe option.

Expected Dividend Yieli The dividend yield is based on the Company‘secii dividend yield.

Expected Ternm The expected term of the options granted reptsshe period of time that they are expectecetodistanding. The Compa
estimates the expected term of options granteddoasdistorical experience with grants and exescise
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The following summary reflects the stock option\att for the Company's common stock and relatddrimation for 2007, 2006, and 2005
(shares in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price

Outstanding at October 561¢ $ 14.2¢ 6,48t $ 12.2¢ 891/ $ 11.02
Granted 731 26.9( 64C 29.6¢ 92¢ 16.01
Exercisec (299) 12.77 (1,489 1228 (3,229 9.7¢
Forfeited/Expirec (20) 28.51 (26) 18.5¢ (130 13.61
Outstanding on September : 6,032 $ 15.8( 561¢ $ 14.2¢ 6,48¢ $ 12.2¢
Exercisable on September : 433 % 12.7C 38471 $ 11.7¢ 4,05¢ $ 11.3i
Shares available to gra 3,221 4,00( 1,51(

Restricted stock awards granted under the 2005 -I@mm Incentive Plan are counted against the lohghares available for issuance under
such plan at the rate of 1.8 shares for each grarged.

The following table summarizes information abowtc&toptions at September 30, 2007 (shares in timois$a

Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable Stock Options
Range of Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Exercise Prices Options Remaining Life Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
$6.3975 to $9.417 874 1.7 $ 8.0Z 874 $ 8.02
$11.3318 to $16.01C 3,84: 5.2 $ 13.2¢ 3,28( $ 13.01
$26.8950 to $30.237 1,31¢ 8.7 $ 28.41 181 $ 29.8(
$6.3975 to $30.237 6,03z 5.8 $ 15.8( 4,33¢ $ 12.7(

At September 30, 2007, the weighted-average renmiife of exercisable stock options was 4.5 yeeuns the aggregate intrinsic value was
$87.3 million with a weighted-average exercise @0t $12.70 per share.

The number of options expected to vest at SepteBMme2007 was 5,983,240 with an aggregate intrinagice of $102.4 million and a
weighted-average exercise price of $15.72 per share

As of September 30, 2007, the unrecognized compienszost related to the stock options was $10l6ani That cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 2absye

The weighted-average fair value of options gramiigdng 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $10.36, $11.40 &r@$respectively. The total intrinsic
value of options exercised during 2007, 2006 ar@b2@as $5.8 million, $34.9, and $41.3 million, resively.

The fair value of shares vested during 2007 and 2@8s $5.4 million and $9.1 million, respectively.
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Prior to October 1, 2005, stock-based awards wareumted for under APB 25 and related interpretstid-ixed plan common stock options
generally did not result in compensation expensalsge the exercise price of the options issuetidCbompany was equal to the market price
of the underlying stock on the date of grant. Tdllwfving table illustrates the effect on the netdme and earnings per share as if the Com
had applied the fair value recognition provisiohSBAS No. 123, 'Accounting for Stock-Based Compensati¢im thousands, except per
share amounts):

September 30 200t
Net income, as reporte $ 127,60t
Stoclk-based employee compensation expense included fDddhsolidated Statements of Income,

of related tax effect 16
Total stock-based employee compensation expensentdaed under fair value based method for all

awards, net of related tax effe (3,567)
Pro forma net incom $ 124,05¢

Earnings per shar

Basic- as reporte! $ £
I
Basic- pro forma $ 1.21
.|
Diluted - as reportet $ 1.2%
.|
Diluted - pro forma $ 1.1¢

RESTRICTED STOCK

Restricted stock awards consist of the Companytsoon stock and are time vested over three to faagy, The Company recognizes
compensation expense on a straight-line basistheeresting period. The fair value of restricteatktawards is determined based on the
closing trading price of the Company's shares ergtiant date. As of September 30, 2007, there Wasrillion of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to unvested restrictark siptions granted under the Plan. That costpgebed to be recognized over a weighted-
average period of 3.3 years.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), unearned cemsption related to restricted stock awards wasifled as a separate component of
stockholders' equity. In accordance with the priovis of SFAS 123(R), on October 1, 2005, the baanawnearned compensation was
reclassified to additional paid-in capital on ttednce sheet.

A summary of the status of the Company's restristedk awards as of September 30, 2007, and ofgelsain restricted stock outstanding
during the fiscal years ended September 30, 20006 2nd 2005 is as follows (share amounts in thusa

2007 2006 2005
Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair Grant Date Fair Grant Date Fair
Shares Value per Share Shares Value per Share Shares Value per Share
Outstanding a
October 1 213 $ 29.5] 10 $ 16.01 = $ —]
Granted 27 26.9( 20z 30.2¢ 1C 16.01
Vested — — — — — —
Forfeited/Expirec — — — — — —
Outstanding on
September 3( 24C $ 29.2] 213 $ 29.5] 1C $ 16.01
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NOTE 6 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The computation of basic earnings per share isthasehe weighted average number of common shatsgaoding during the period. The
computation of diluted earnings per share refldespotential dilution that would occur if stocktioms were exercised and the dilution from
the issuance of restricted shares, computed usegeasury stock method.

A reconciliation of the weighted-average commorrshautstanding on a basic and diluted basis fisllasvs:

2007 200¢ 200t

(in thousands)

Basic weighte-average share 103,33t 104,65¢ 102,17:
Effect of dilutive shares

Stock options and restricted stc 1,79( 1,43: 1,897
Diluted weighte-average share 105,12¢ 106,09: 104,06¢

At September 30, 2007, options to purchase 593%8860es of common stock at a weighted-average ofi$80.2375 were outstanding, but
were not included in the computation of dilutednéags per share. Inclusion of these shares woulhtidilutive.

At September 30, 2006, options to purchase 80%#&60es of common stock at a weighted-average ofi$80.2375 were outstanding, but
were not included in the computation of dilutednéags per share. Inclusion of these shares woulhtidilutive.

At September 30, 2005, all options outstanding virgkided in the computation of diluted earnings gemmon share.
NOTE 7 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company had $175 million of fixed-rate longatedtebt outstanding at September 30, 2007, whichahagktimated fair value of

$182 million. The debt was valued based on theepraf similar securities with similar terms anddireatings. The Company used the
expertise of an outside investment banking firmagsist with the estimate of the fair value of threg-term debt. The Company's line of credit
bears interest at market rates and the cost obWwinrgs, if any, would approximate fair value. Ttatimated fair value of the Company's
available-for-sale securities is primarily basedwarket quotes.
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The following is a summary of available-for-salewgties, which excludes those accounted for uttskelequity method of accounting (see
Note 1), investments in limited partnerships carae cost and assets held in a -qualified Supplemental Savings Plan:

Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Estimated Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(in thousands)

Equity Securities
September 30, 20( $ 11,32¢ $ 117,64¢ $ — $ 128,97"
September 30, 20( $ 19,41 $ 122,49( $ (115 $ 141,78t

On an on-going basis, the Company evaluates thkatsdnle equity securities to determine if a declimfir market is other-than-temporary. If
a decline in fair market value is determined totieer-than-temporary, an impairment charge is mbiand a new cost basis established. In
determining if an unrealized loss is other-thangemary, the Company considers how long the maréktevof the investment has been below
cost, how significant the decline in value is ggeecentage of the original cost and the markeeimegal and analyst recommendations. At
September 30, 2006, one marketable equity seduaiya fair market value of $1.5 million which wasd than the recorded cost. The security
had been in a continuous loss position for appratéty four months. The Company did not consides thirealized loss to be other-than-
temporary and, subsequent to year-end, the faikeh&alue of the one equity security exceeded ts¢ loasis.

During the years ended September 30, 2007, 20062005, marketable equity available-for-sale séiesriwith a fair value at the date of sale
of $73.4 million, $28.2 million, and $46.7 milliorespectively, were sold. For the same years, thesgealized gains on such sales of
available-for-sale securities totaled $65.5 mili649.8 million, and $27.0 million, respectively.

The investments in the limited partnerships caratdost were approximately $12.4 million at Segien80, 2007 and 2006. The estimated
value of the limited partnerships was $22.3 millaord $14.5 million at September 30, 2007 and 26&hectively. The estimated fair value
exceeded the cost of investments at Septembel0BF, &hd 2006 and, as such, the investments weiliepatred.

The assets held in a Non-qualified SupplementaingavPlan are valued at fair market which totalé@$nillion and $5.9 million at
September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivaleqigajmates fair value due to the short maturityhafse investments.

At September 30, 2006, the Company's short-termsimrents consisted primarily of auction rate séiesrivhich were classified as available-
for-sale. All of the auction rate securities wer&lstate and local municipal securities due withie year and reported on the balance sheet at
fair value. The interest or dividend rates on tloenPany's auction rate securities were generallstregery 7 to 49 days through an auction
process, thus limiting the Company's exposuretarést rate risk. Interest and dividends were paithese securities at the end of each reset
period and included in interest and dividend incamehe Company's Consolidated Statements of Inc®ime Company sold all of the auction
rate securities, $48.3 million, during the yearemh&eptember 30, 2007, with no realized gainsssde. There were no unrealized gains or
losses for 2007 or 2006.

The carrying value of other assets, accrued ltasliand other liabilities approximated fair vaateSeptember 30, 2007 and 2006.
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NOTE 8 ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS )

The components of other comprehensive income yéars ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 20@5awéollows (in thousands):

Years Ended September 3( 2007 200¢ 200t
Unrealized appreciation on securities net of tax of
$23,076, $18,331 and $9,3 $ 37,65¢ $ 29,90¢ $ 15,24t
Reclassification of realized gains in net incomeaft
tax of $24,874, $7,548 and $& (40,589 (12,319 (537)
Minimum pension liability adjustments net of tax
$5,621, $2,765 and ($2,0¢ 9,17( 4,51( (3,41¢)
$ 6,24( $ 22,10! $ 11,29:
I I

The components of accumulated other comprehensogarie (loss) at September 30, 2007 and 2006, regimiicable tax effects, were as
follows (in thousands):

September 30 2007 200¢
Unrealized appreciation on securit $ 72,94. $ 75,87
Minimum pension liability — (6,22¢€)
Unrecognized actuarial gain and prior service 2,944 —
$ 75,88t $ 69,64!
L] I

NOTE 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company maintains a noncontributory definedsfmenplan for substantially all U.S. employees wieet certain age and service
requirements. In July 2003, the Company revisedHilenerich & Payne, Inc. Employee Retirement Pl&e(sion Plan") to close the Pension
Plan to new patrticipants effective October 1, 2@0®] reduce benefit accruals for current partidipémough September 30, 2006, at which
time benefit accruals were discontinued and thesiBarPlan was frozen.

On September 30, 2007, the Company adopted théspos of SFAS No. 158&Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensaond Other
Postretirement Plans("SFAS 158"). SFAS No. 158 is an amendment of SF&S. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) and is intended taovg

financial reporting of pension and postretiremesrédfit plans. This statement requires employegg tecognize the funded status of a benefit
plan, determined as the difference between thes&ire of plan assets and the benefit obligatiergraasset or liability in the statement of
financial position, b) recognize as a componerdtbér comprehensive income, net of tax, the gaingsses and prior service costs or credits
that arise during the period but are not recognaedomponents of net periodic benefit cost, c)suesathe defined benefit plan assets and
obligations as of the date of the employer's figealr-end, which the Company has used historicaiig, d) include additional disclosures in the
notes to the financial statements about effectsetiperiodic benefit cost that arise from delayszbgnition of the gains or losses, prior service
costs or credits, and transition assets or obbgati
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The following table provides a reconciliation oétbhanges in the pension benefit obligations amd/&ue of assets over the two-year period

ended September 30, 2007 and a statement of tdedwstatus as of September 30, 2007 and 2006dirsdmds):

2007 200¢

Accumulated Benefit Obligation ("ABO") $ 78,247 $ 87,66¢

Changes in Projected Benefit Obligations ("PBO")

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $ 87,66¢ $ 90,21"
Service cos — 4,71z
Interest cos 4,86¢ 4,841
Actuarial gain (9,980 (5,907
Benefits paic (4,307 (6,199

Projected benefit obligation at end of y $ 78,24% $ 87,66¢

I I

Change in plan asset

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y $ 66,75: $ 62,95!
Actual return on plan asse 9,78: 5,57¢
Employer contributiot 2,65( 4,421
Benefits paic (4,307) (6,19¢

Fair value of plan assets at end of y $ 74,87 $ 66,75

L] |

Funded status of the plar $ (3,370 $ (20,917
Unrecognized net actuarial lo * 10,02¢
Unrecognized prior service cc * 1
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (before — (10,042
Accrued benefit cos $ (3,370) $ (20,93()

I I

*Not applicable due to adoption of new accountitepdard

September 30 2007 200¢€

Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated Balance Stig€in thousands):

Current pension liabilit $ (35) $ —
Noncurrent pension liabilit (3,335 (20,930

Accumulated other comprehensive income — minimunsjoa liability
(pre-tax) — 10,04
Net amount recognize $ (3,370 $ (10,889
| I

The amounts recognized in accumulated other corapeibe income at September

2007, and not yet reflected in net periodic bereft, are as follows (in thousanc

Net actuarial gail $ (4,749
Prior service cos 1

Total $ (4,74¢)

The amount recognized in accumulated other compsiie income and not yet reflected in periodic lfiegest expected to be amortized in
next year's periodic benefit cost is a net actugam of $12,953.
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The weighted average assumptions used for thegrenaiculations were as follows:

Years Ended September 3( 2007 200¢ 200t
Discount rate for net periodic benefit ca 5.759 5.759 5.509
Discount rate for ye-end obligation: 6.259 5.759 5.759
Expected return on plan ass 8.009 8.009 8.009
Rate of compensation incree —% 5.00% 5.009

The Company does not anticipate that funding thresia Plan in fiscal 2008 will be required. Howewbe Company can choose to make
discretionary contributions to fund distributiomslieu of liquidating pension assets. During 20B&, Company elected to fund $2.7 million.
The Company estimates contributing at least $3l0omin fiscal 2008. Subsequent to year end, tbenfany has contributed $1.5 million to
the Pension Plan.

Components of the net periodic benefit cost (béhetkere as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended September 3( 2007 200¢ 200t
Service cos $ — $ 4,713 $ 3,48(
Interest cos 4,86¢ 4,841 4,613
Expected return on plan ass (5,129 (4,93¢) (4,37¢%)
Amortization of prior service co: — (@D} —
Recognized net actuarial lo 13¢ 87€ 987
Net pension (income) expen $ (119 $ 5,49: $ 4,70¢

I I I

The Pension Plan was frozen and benefit accruaids discontinued effective September 30, 2006, tedacing the service cost of the Plan.

The following table reflects the expected bendéitbe paid from the Pension Plan in each of the fiex fiscal years, and in the aggregate for
the five years thereafter (in thousands).

Years Ended September 3(

200¢ 200¢ 201C 2011 201z 2012017 Total

$ 3,08C $ 3,30¢ $ 3,471 $ 3,57¢ $ 4,06: $23,51! $ 41,00¢
Included in the Pension Plan is an unfunded supghtah executive retirement plan.
INVESTMENT STRATEGY AND ASSET ALLOCATION

The Company's investment policy and strategiegsti@blished with a long-term view in mind. The istveent strategy is intended to help pay
the cost of the Plan while providing adequate sgcto meet the benefits promised under the Plde Company maintains a diversified asset
mix to minimize the risk of a material loss to tartfolio value that might occur from devaluatiohamy one investment. In determining the
appropriate asset mix, the Company's financiahgtieand ability to fund potential shortfalls amnsidered.
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The expected long-term rate of return on plan agsdiased on historical and projected rates afmdbr current and planned asset classes in
the Plans' investment portfolio after analyzingdrisal experience and future expectations of #tern and volatility of various asset classes.

The target allocation for 2008 and the asset dilocdor the domestic Pension Plan at the endsafali2007 and 2006, by asset category,
follows:

Percentage of Plan Assel

Target Allocation At September 30,
Asset Category 2008 2007 2006
U.S. equities 56% 61% 60%
International equitie 14 18 17
Fixed income 25 20 22
Real estate and oth 5 1 1
Total 10C% 10C% 10C%

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Substantially all employees on the United Statgsgibof the Company may elect to participate ie tbompany sponsored 401(k)/Thrift Plan
by contributing a portion of their earnings. Then@any contributes amounts equal to 100 perceriteofitst 5 percent of the participant's
compensation subject to certain limitations. ExpenSompany contributions were $10.9 million, $8iliom, and $6.1 million in 2007, 2006,

and 2005, respectively.
FOREIGN PLAN

The Company maintains an unfunded pension plaménad the international subsidiaries. Pension espavas approximately $0.3 million,
$0.4 million and $0.3 million in 2007, 2006 and 80@espectively. The pension liability at Septem&@r2007 and 2006 was $4.1 million and
$3.6 million, respectively.

NOTE 10 SUPPLEMENTAL BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION
The following reflects the activity in the Compasyeserve for bad debt for 2007, 2006 and 2005:

September 30 2007 200¢ 200t

(in thousands)

Reserve for bad dek

Balance at October $ 2,007 $ 1,791 $ 1,26°¢
Provision for bad det 1,03( 25C 53C
Write-off of bad deb (80) (34) 4
Balance at September & $ 2,957 $ 2,007 $ 1,791

| | |




Accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, and actialglities at September 30 consist of the follogin

September 30 2007 200¢
(in thousands)
Accounts receivable, net of reser
Trade receivable $ 337,82 $ 283,38t
Insurance receivab 1,99( —
Investment sales receivab — 6,09¢
$ 339,81¢ $ 289,47¢
| |
Prepaid expenses and otf
Prepaid value added t: $ 4,914 $ 2,591
Restricted cas 6,20: 2,27:
Prepaid insuranc 4,68~ 2,43
Deferred mobilizatior 6,20z 2,907
Other 6,87( 5,91(
$ 28,87+ $ 16,11¢
| |
Accrued liabilities:
Taxes payabl- operations $ 31,61( $ 21,31¢
Accrued income taxe 10,03 24,99:
Worker's compensation liabilitie 2,40¢ 2,371
Payroll and employee benef 36,01( 30,12«
Accrued operating cos 5,18¢ 7,20(
Other 16,81 11,07¢
$ 102,05t¢ $ 97,077
| |
NOTE 11 SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Years Ended September 3( 2007 200¢ 200¢
(in thousands)
Cash paymentt
Interest paid, net of amounts capitali: $ 9,71z $ 6,64 $ 12,70}
Income taxes pai $ 181,59: $ 109,85° $ 29,71¢

Capital expenditures on the Consolidated Statenwr@ash Flows for the years ended September 37, ZD06 and 2005, does not include

additions which have been incurred but not paica®of the end of the
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year. The following table reconciles total cap&apenditures incurred to total capital expenditumethe Consolidated Statements of C
Flows:

September 30 2007 200¢ 200¢
(in thousands
Capital expenditures incurre $ 825,44¢ $ 614,27: $ 95,00"
Additions incurred prior year but paid for in cunt
year 95,72( 10,351 2,14¢
Additions incurred but not paid for as of the effic
the yea (26,959 (95,720 (10,35)
Capital expenditures per Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flow: $ 894,21 $ 528,90! $ 86,80"
I I |

NOTE 12 RISK FACTORS
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consishprily of temporary cash investments,
shortterm investments and trade receivables. The Complacgs temporary cash investments with establifhadcial institutions and inves
in a diversified portfolio of highly rated, shogrm money market instruments. The Company's trackeivables, primarily with established
companies in the oil and gas industry, may impeadic risk as customers may be similarly affectggtolonged changes in economic and
industry conditions. International sales also pmésarious risks including governmental activitieat may limit or disrupt markets and restrict
the movement of funds. Most of the Company's irggomal sales, however, are to large internationalational companies. The Company
performs ongoing credit evaluations of customersdoes not typically require collateral in supdorttrade receivables. The Company
provides an allowance for doubtful accounts, whecessary, to cover estimated credit losses. Sueli@mance is based on management's
knowledge of customer accounts. No significant itledses have been experienced by the Comparecent history.

SELF-INSURANCE

The Company self-insures a significant portiontefeixpected losses under its worker's compensatemgral, and automobile liability
programs. Insurance coverage has been purchaseuliddual claims that exceed $1 million or $2 lwih, depending on whether a claim
occurs inside or outside of the United States. Chmpany maintains certain other insurance covendtipedeductibles as high as $5 million.
Insurance is purchased over deductibles to rechec€bmpany's exposure to catastrophic events. dhg@ny records estimates for incurred
outstanding liabilities for worker's compensatiganeral liability claims and for claims that areudrred but not reported. Estimates are based
on historic experience and statistical methodsttimtCompany believes are reliable. Nonethelessyémce estimates include certain
assumptions and management judgments regardirfgetiiency and severity of claims, claim developmantl settlement practices.
Unanticipated changes in these factors may prochaterially different amounts of expense that wdagdreported under these programs.

In 2005 the Company formed a wholtyvned captive insurance company, White Eagle Assar&ompany (White Eagle), to provide a por
of the Company's property damage insurance for emyyowned drilling rigs. Insurance coverage forrtiea storms” in the Gulf of Mexico
has been limited for the past two years. The Companchased an aggregate limit of $75 million ohevstorm coverage and elected to self-
insure
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20 percent of that limit through White Eagle. Adlalially, the wind storm coverage has a $2.5 millieductible. Additionally, the Company
obtained rig property insurance for 80 percenhefaggregate estimated replacement cost of itdrrigscess of a $1 million deductible. The
Company self-insured the remaining 20 percent ofsig value as well as the deductible. The Compdsgy utilized White Eagle to finance
self-insured losses within the $1 million per ocence deductible under worker's compensation, @éreard automobile liability insurance
policies for its international operations. Premiupasd to White Eagle by the drilling segments hiagen included in the drilling segment
expenses but eliminated, along with the premiumesghincome, in the Consolidated Statements of Ircom

CONTRACT DRILLING OPERATIONS

International drilling operations are a significaontributor to the Company's revenues and netatipgrincome. There can be no assurance
that the Company will be able to successfully cadwch operations, and a failure to do so may havadverse effect on the Company's
financial position, results of operations, and ciieivs. Also, the success of the Company's intéonat operations will be subject to numerous
contingencies, some of which are beyond managesnemitrol. These contingencies include generalragittnal economic conditions,
fluctuations in currency exchange rates, changéegénmnational regulatory requirements and inteomal employment issues, and the burde
complying with foreign laws.

The Company is exposed to risks of currency devialndn Venezuela primarily as a result of bolivaceivable balances and bolivar cash
balances. In Venezuela, approximately 60 percetitefCompany's billings to the Venezuelan oil comyp@DVSA, are in U.S. dollars and
40 percent are in the local currency, the boliadanuary 2003, the Venezuelan government putdfiezt exchange controls that fixed the
exchange rate at 1600 bolivares to one U.S. dalidralso prohibited the Company, as well as otbempanies, from converting the bolivar i
U.S. dollars. On October 1, 2003, in compliancdnapplicable regulations, the Company submitteebaest to the Venezuelan government
seeking permission to convert existing bolivar baés into U.S. dollars. In January 2004, the Veekrugovernment approved the conversion
of bolivar cash balances to U.S. dollars and tha@ttance of those U.S. dollars as dividends byGbenpany's Venezuelan subsidiary to the
U.S. based parent. The Company was able to ren8tr§iBlion of such dividends in January 2004. Thiss the first dividend remitted under
new regulation. On January 16, 2006, a dividen$i6ob million was paid to the U.S. based parentAQgust 18, 2006, the Company applied
for a $9.3 million dividend. The Venezuelan goveemisubsequently approved $7.2 million of this diévid and on March 6, 2007, the

$7.2 million was paid to the U.S. based parents€tdividends reduced the Company's exposure terayrdevaluation in Venezuela.

On June 7, 2007, the Company began the procesake application with the Venezuelan governmentesting the approval to convert
bolivar cash balances to U.S. dollars. Upon approgen the Venezuelan government, the Company's¥eealan subsidiary will remit those
dollars as a dividend to its U.S. based pareng teducing the Company's exposure to currency datiah. The Company anticipates the
dividend to be approximately $8.3 million.

As stated above, the Company is exposed to riskaroéncy devaluation in Venezuela primarily assult of bolivar receivable balances and
bolivar cash balances. The exchange rate was 2&@ies at September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005.ra&swdt of the 12 percent devaluation of
the bolivar during fiscal
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2005 (from September 2004 through August 2005)Cthiapany experienced total devaluation lossesGifriillion during that same period.
Even though Venezuela continues to operate undegxbhange controls in place and the Venezuelanab@xchange rate has remained fixed
at 2150 bolivares to one U.S. dollar since the Wmtion in March, 2005, the exact amount and tinohgevaluation is uncertain. At
September 30, 2007, the Company had a $25.6 miksh balance denominated in bolivares exposédtetask of currency devaluation. Wh
the Company is unable to predict future devaluaitiovienezuela, if fiscal 2008 activity levels amm#ar to fiscal 2007 and if a 10 percent to
20 percent devaluation would occur, the Companydcexperience potential currency devaluation losaeging from approximately

$3.5 million to $6.4 million.

The Company has an agreement with the Venezuedtanttroleum company whereby a portion of the Gomig dollar-based invoices are
paid in U.S. dollars. Were this agreement to elmel Gompany would revert to receiving these paymiertelivares and thus increase bolivar
cash balances and exposure to devaluation.

Venezuela continues to experience significant jgalit economic and social instability. In the evtrat extended labor strikes occur or turmoil
increases, the Company could experience shortagabdr and/or material and supplies necessarpéoabe some or all of its Venezuelan
drilling rigs, thereby causing an adverse effecttmnCompany. The Company derives its revenue me¥eela from Petréleos de Venezuela,
S.A. (PDVSA), the Venezuelan state-owned petroleampany. At September 30, 2007, the Company had eeneivable from PDVSA of
$49.7 million of which $12.0 million was 90 dayslar older. At November 1, 2007, such receivablarze had increased to approximately
$50.3 million, of which approximately $14.4 milliavas 90 days old or older. The Company continueg®tomunicate with PDVSA regarding
the settlement of the outstanding receivables. &\thié collection of the receivables is difficuldaime consuming due to PDVSA policies and
procedures, the Company, at this time, has no net@sbelieve the amounts will not be paid. Histallic, PDVSA payments on accounts
receivable have, by traditional business measuresnbeen slower than that of other customers grigtional countries in which the Compi
has drilling operations.

The Ecuadorian government continues to negotiate thhe Company's customers to resolve contractitbsycreated by a recent government
decree. The decree modified the original contrmtsplitting profits on oil production. If this atinues without resolution, the Company
anticipates that up to seven rigs could be idIEdnador in the second quarter of fiscal 2008. Shithis situation occur, the Company, at this
time, is unable to predict the length of time ttiet rigs would remain idle.

NOTE 13 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

In August 2006, the Company signed an option agee¢no sell two offshore rigs. The net book valfi¢he two rigs at September 30, 2006
was approximately $4.2 million and was classified Assets held for sale" in the Company's Septer8®e2006 Consolidated Balance Sheet.
The purchase option was exercised in the secondequd fiscal 2007 and the Company recorded a gdiich is included in "Income from
asset sales" in the Company's Consolidated Statsroémcome for the year ended September 30, 2007.
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NOTE 14 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
COMMITMENTS

Since March 2005, the Company has entered intaatepdrilling contracts with 19 exploration and guation customers to build and operate a
total of 77 new FlexRigs. Subsequent to SeptemB®e?@07, the Company announced that an agreemerite®n reached with an exploration
and production company to operate an additionaheix FlexRigs, bringing the total of the new rigs38. The construction of the 83 rigs is
estimated to cost $1.3 billion. Approximately $0ilfion was incurred in fiscal 2007 and approxintatg0.4 billion was incurred in fiscal 200
The construction began in the third quarter ofdi2005 and is estimated to continue through thrd tjuarter of fiscal 2008. During
construction, rig construction cost is recordedanstruction in progress and then transferred tdraot drilling equipment when the rig is
placed in the field for service. Equipment, partd aupplies are ordered in advance to promotei@fticonstruction progress. At Septembel
2007, the Company had commitments outstanding pfoegmately $82.7 million for the purchase of dnij equipment.

LEASES

In May 2003, the Company signed a six-year leasagproximately 114,000 square feet of office spzes downtown Tulsa, Oklahoma. The
lease agreement contains rent escalation clausésh Wave been included in the future minimum lgasaments below, and a renewal option.
Leasehold improvements made at the inception ofethge were capitalized and are being amortizedtbeenitial lease term. The Company
also conducts certain operations in leased prenisgdeases telecommunication equipment. Futurémain lease payments required under
noncancelable operating leases as of Septemhb&08@,are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Amount
2008 $ 3,98:
2009 2,95¢
2010 1,21«
2011 —
Thereaftel —

Total $ 8,15¢

Total rent expense was $3.7 million, $3.1 milliovd&2.3 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respetyive
CONTINGENCIES

In August 2007, the Company experienced a fire @& Uand Rig 178, a 1,500 horsepower FlexRig2, wherwell it was drilling had a
blowout. There were no significant personal injsr@though the drilling rig was lost. The rig wasured at a value that approximated
replacement cost. At September 30, 2007, the rat balue of the rig was removed from property, plamd equipment and a receivable from
insurance was recorded, net of a $1.0 million iasoe deductible expensed. Subsequent to Septe®b20(7, gross insurance proceeds of
approximately $8.5 million were received and a gdiapproximately $4.8 million was
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recorded. The Company anticipates settling therarste claim before the end of the second quartisadl 2008 and expects to receive
additional insurance proceeds of less than $0.5omil

In August 2005, the Company's Rig 201, which oaraih an operator's tension-leg platform in thef GiuMexico, lost its entire derrick and
suffered significant damage as a result of Hureckatrina. Pre-tax cash flow from the platformwigs approximately $5.4 million in fiscal
2005. The rig was insured at a value that approtdcheeplacement cost to cover the net book valdeaay additional losses. Capital costs
incurred in conjunction with rebuilding the rig veecapitalized in fiscal 2007 and are being deptedias described in Note 1 Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies. Insurance proceeflapproximately $3.0 million were received inci$ 2006. Such proceeds approximated
the net book value of equipment lost in the huné&cand, therefore, no gain was recognized in fi2885b. In fiscal 2007, insurance proceeds of
approximately $16.3 million were received and tlempany recorded a gain from involuntary conversiblong-lived assets of approximately
$16.7 million. The proceeds are in the Consolid&&dements of Cash Flows under investing actaittelditional claims have been submitted
and future proceeds will be recorded as gain frawoluntary conversion of lontived assets when received. The Company expecisttie this
claim in fiscal 2008 and estimates additional peatseto range from $5 million to $10 million.

Various legal actions, the majority of which arisehe ordinary course of business, are pending. Gbmpany maintains insurance against
certain business risks subject to certain dedwdililone of these legal actions are expected te aawaterial adverse effect on the Company's
financial condition, cash flows or results of ofnas.

The Company is contingently liable to suretiesaspect of bonds issued by the sureties in conmewtith certain commitments entered into by
the Company in the normal course of business. Tdrapgany has agreed to indemnify the sureties forpayynents made by them in respect of
such bonds.

NOTE 15 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates principally in the contrailimly industry. The Company's contract drillingdiness includes the following reportable
operating segments: U.S. Land, Offshore, and Iatenal Land. The contract drilling operations dshmainly of contracting Comparywnec
drilling equipment primarily to major oil and gaspéoration companies. The Company's primary intéonal areas of operation include
Venezuela, Colombia, Ecuador and other South Araeriountries. The International Land operationelgmilar services, have similar types
of customers, operate in a consistent manner avel $imilar economic and regulatory characterisfitgerefore, the Company has aggregated
its international operations into one reportablgnsent. The Company also has a Real Estate segnheseveperations are conducted
exclusively in the metropolitan area of Tulsa, @kima. The key areas of operation include a shopgnger and several multi-tenant
warehouses. Each reportable segment is a strdtagiicess unit which is managed separately. Otlodrdes investments and corporate
operations. Consolidated revenues and expensestréfe elimination of all material intercompangnsactions.
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The Company evaluates segment performance basedane or loss from operations (segment operatingme) before income taxes which
includes:

revenues from external and internal customers
direct operating costs

depreciation and

allocated general and administrative costs

but excludes corporate costs for other depreciatimome from asset sales and other corporate ia@md expense.

General and administrative costs are allocateblaségments based primarily on specific identifdeatind, to the extent that such identifica
is not practical, on other methods which the Comgdaalieves to be a reasonable reflection of thezation of services provided.

Segment operating income for all segments is a@AAP financial measure of the Company's performaasét excludes general and
administrative expenses, corporate depreciatia@onre from asset sales and other corporate incothexpense. The Company considers
segment operating income to be an important supgitmhmeasure of operating performance for presgtitends in the Company's core
businesses. This measure is used by the Compdagilitate period-to-period comparisons in opergtgerformance of the Company's
reportable segments in the aggregate by eliminamgs that affect comparability between periodse Company believes that segment
operating income is useful to investors becaupmitides a means to evaluate the operating perfocenaf the segments and the Company on
an ongoing basis using criteria that are used byrmernal decision makers. Additionally, it higiiits operating trends and aids analytical
comparisons. However, segment operating incomdirhéations and should not be used as an alteradtivoperating income or loss, a
performance measure determined in accordance VARG as it excludes certain costs that may affeet@ompany's operating performanc
future periods.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, the Compaergdn mobilizing an offshore rig from the U.S. toiaternational location. Because an
offshore rig requires different technology and nedirkg strategies, the chief operating decision-malevaluation of performance and resource
allocation for this rig is more appropriately aleghwith the Offshore segment. Therefore the Compéhyontinue to include the operations
this rig in the Offshore operating segment. In coction with this, the Company has determined ghaanagement contract for a customer-
owned platform rig located offshore in North Afriamore appropriately aligned with the Offshorgreent for purposes of evaluating
performance and resource allocation. Therefore,rtfdinagement contract has been reclassed fromt#reational segment to the Offshore
segment in fiscal 2007. In conjuction with thise imternational segment was renamed to Interndtlaarad. Financial information for

reportable segments for fiscal 2006 and 2005 has kestated to reflect this change.
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Summarized financial information of the Compangisartable segments for each of the years ende@r@bpt 30, 2007, 2006, and 2005 is
shown in the following table:

Segment Additions
External Inter - Total Operating Total to Long-Lived
(in thousands) Sales Segment Sales Income Depreciation Assets Assets
2007
Contract Drilling
U.S. Land $ 1,174,951 $ — $ 1,174,950 $ 467,000 $ 106,10° $ 2,073,01' $ 762,50:
Offshore 123,14¢ — 123,14¢ 22,08 10,687 124,01 25,41¢
International
Land 320,28 — 320,28: 105,17¢ 23,78 314,62! 22,72¢
1,618,38 — 1,618,38 594,26( 140,57¢ 2,511,65. 810,64!
Real Estate 11,271 82¢ 12,09¢ 5,007 2,45¢ 30,35 1,51C
1,629,65! 82¢ 1,630,48; 599,26° 143,03: 2,542,00! 812,15!
Other — — — — 3,01( 343,36¢ 13,29
Eliminations — (82¢) (82¢) — — — —
Total $ 1,629,65! $ — % 1,629,65! $ 599,26" $ 146,04: $ 2,885,36' $ 825,44
I EEEE—————————————————————————————————————————————————————
2006
Contract Drilling
U.S. Land $ 829,06: $ — $ 829,06: $ 351,25! $ 66,127 $ 1,356,81" $ 560,66
Offshore 154,54 — 154,54 31,86¢ 11,40: 110,96: 18,75¢
International
Land 230,82¢ — 230,82¢ 52,31¢ 19,47 310,83¢ 31,24¢
1,214,43 — 1,214,43. 435,43t 96,99¢ 1,778,61 610,66!
Real Estate 10,37¢ 78% 11,16 4,411 2,44¢ 30,62¢ 1,27¢
1,224,81. 78% 1,225,591 439,84 99,44: 1,809,241 611,94(
Other — — — — 2,14( 325,47. 2,33¢
Eliminations — (789) (789) — — — —
Total $ 1,224,811 $ — $ 1,224,81. $ 439,84¢ $ 101,58 $ 2,134,71. $ 614,27
2005
Contract Drilling
U.S. Land $ 527,63 $ — $ 527,63 $ 164,65 $ 60,22: $ 809,40: $ 78,49¢
Offshore 106,29¢ — 106,29t 22,018 10,63¢ 95,91 1,05¢
International
Land 156,10¢ — 156,10¢ 14,66¢ 20,07( 238,28. 12,43]
790,03¢ — 790,03¢ 201,33¢ 90,93: 1,143,59 91,99¢
Real Estate 10,68¢ 761 11,44¢ 4,71 2,352 32,208 1,517
800, 72¢ 761 801,48 206,05: 93,28: 1,175,80. 93,51%
Other — — — — 2,991 487,54¢ 1,49t
Eliminations — (763) (763) — — — —
Total $ 800,72¢ $ — 3 800,72¢ $ 206,05: $ 96,27 $ 1,663,351 $ 95,007
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The following table reconciles segment operatirgpine to income before taxes and equity in incomegffdfate as reported on the
Consolidated Statements of Income (in thousands).

Years Ended September 3( 2007 200¢ 200t
Segment operating incon $ 599,26° $ 439,84¢ $ 206,05:
Income from asset sal 41,69’ 7,49 13,55(
Gain from involuntary conversion of lo-lived asset: 16,66 — —
Corporate general and administrative costs
corporate depreciatic (25,30¢) (30,05% (26,84¢)
Operating incomi 632,31¢ 417,28t 192,75t¢
Other income (expens
Interest and dividend incon 4,23¢ 9,83¢ 5,80¢
Interest expens (10,12¢) (6,644 (12,642
Gain on sale of investment securit 65,45¢ 19,86¢ 26,96¢
Other (1,537) 63¢ (235)
Total unallocated amoun 58,03« 23,69¢ 19,90:
Income before income taxes and equity in incomaffifate $ 690,35! $ 440,98. $ 212,65

The following table presents revenues from extecoatomers and long-lived assets by country basdtelocation of service provided (in
thousands).

Years Ended September 3( 2007 200¢ 200t
Revenue:!
United State! $ 1,292,63 $ 972,02 $ 623,24t
Venezuele 127,27 84,59 66,82
Ecuadot 93,90: 88,70¢ 60,94¢
Colombia 26,84 17,74¢ 12,79:
Other Foreigr 88,99 61,74. 36,91¢
Total $ 1,629,65 $ 1,224,81. $ 800,72¢

._______________________________________________________________________________|
Long-Lived Assets

United State! $ 1,951,900 $ 1,284,231 $ 810,48¢
Venezuele 83,80:- 83,16( 84,46
Ecuadotl 45,12 42,85¢ 44,25(
Colombia 10,06: 9,79: 9,21:
Other Foreigr 61,72 63,08’ 33,55

Total $ 2,15261 $ 1,483,13 $ 981,96!

Long-lived assets are comprised of property, panat equipment.

Revenues from one company doing business withghgact drilling segment accounted for approximatfe).8 percent, 11.2 percent, and
11.1 percent of the total operating revenues dutieg/ears ended September 30, 2007, 2006, and 8qfectively. The receivable from this
customer was approximately $34.4 million and $28illion at September 30, 2007 and 2006, respegtivel
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NOTE 16 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On November 15, 2007, the Company announced a-yle@eterm contract had been reached with an exjpbor and production company to
operate six new FlexRigs. With these contractsQbmpany has now committed to build 83 new FlexRigsvhich 70 had been completed as
of September 30, 2007.

NOTE 17 SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITE D)

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

2007 1St Quarter 2nd Quarter 3 Quarter 4™ Quarter
Operating revenue 386,39¢ 372,53t 421,27 449,44
Operating incomi 146,65¢ 164,28: 154,67: 166,70¢
Net income 110,78¢ 106,86: 115,20« 116,41(
Basic net income per common sh 1.07 1.04 1.11 AL dLE
Diluted net income per common shi 1.0¢€ 1.0z 1.0¢ 1.1C
2006 1St Quarter 2nd Quarter 3 Quarter 4™ Quarter
Operating revenue 255,38t 290,83( 319,79¢ 358,79¢
Operating incomi 80,90¢ 100,25: 114,13 121,99
Net income 50,81« 64,57 79,97 98,49¢
Basic net income per common sh 49 .62 7€ .94
Diluted net income per common shi A48 .61 75 .93

The sum of earnings per share for the four quanteng not equal the total earnings per share foy#ae due to changes in the average number
of common shares outstanding.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2007, net incomelirtes an after-tax gain on sale of available-fde-sacurities of $16.2 million, $0.15 per share
on a diluted basis.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2007, net inconctuihes an after-tax gain from the sale of asse#26f5 million, $0.20 per share on a diluted
basis and an after-tax gain from involuntary cosiger of long-lived assets of $3.3 million, $0.03 pbare on a diluted basis.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2007, net incomeluries an after-tax gain on sale of available-fde-sacurities of $15.5 million, $0.15 per share
on a diluted basis, an after-tax gain from the sakssets of $3.9 million, $0.03 per share onateti basis, and an after-tax gain from
involuntary conversion of long-lived assets of $&iflion, $0.03 per share on a diluted basis.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, net incomelildes an after-tax gain on sale of available-fde-securities of $8.4 million, $0.08 per share
on a diluted basis, an after-tax gain from the s&kessets of
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$1.9 million, $0.01 per share on a diluted basisl, @n after-tax gain from involuntary conversiorafg-lived assets of $3.6 million, $0.04 per
share on a diluted basis.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2006, net incomelires an after-tax gain on sale of available-fde-sacurities of $1.7 million, $0.02 per share on
a diluted basis.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2006, net incomeluties an after-tax gain on sale of availabledale securities of $5.8 million, $0.05 per shar
a diluted basis.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, net incomeliles an after-tax gain on sale of available-tde-securities of $4.8 million, $0.05 per share
on a diluted basis.

The fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 includes adjustte¢o deferred tax accounts in certain internatidocations resulting in an increase of $0.12
per share, on a diluted basis.
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Stockholders' Meeting

The annual meeting of stockholders will be held on
March 5, 2008. A formal notice of the meeting, tihge
with a proxy statement and form of proxy will beiled to
shareholders on or about January 25, 2008.

Stock Exchange Listing

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Common Stock is tradedtan t
New York Stock Exchange with the ticker symbol "H
The newspaper abbreviation most commonly used for
financial reporting is "HelmP." Options on the Caamp's
stock are also traded on the New York Stock Exchang

Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar

As of November 21, 2007, there were 703 recordérsid
of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. common stock as listgdhe
transfer agent's records.

Our Transfer Agent is responsible for our shareéold
records, issuance of stock certificates, and Bistion of
our dividends and the IRS Form 1099. Your requests,
shareholders, concerning these matters are maseaffy
answered by corresponding directly with The Transfe
Agent at the following address:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
Investor Services
P.O. Box 43078
Providence, Rl 02940-3078
Telephone: (800) 884-4225

(781) 575-4706

Available Information

Quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, earnings releases,
financial statements are made available on thesiove
relations section of the Company's website. Alsated ol
the investor relations section of the Company'ssitetare
certain corporate governance documents, includiag t
following: the charters of the committees of theaBbof
Directors; the Company's Corporate Governance
Guidelines and Code of Business Conduct and Etthies;
Code of Ethics for Principal Executive Officer aBenior
Financial Officers; the Related Person Transad®olicy;
certain Audit Committee Practices and a descripbioine
means by which employees and other interested perso
may communicate certain concerns to the Company's
Board of Directors, including the communicationsath
concerns confidentially and anonymously via the
Company's ethics hotline at 1-800-205-4913. Qulgrter
reports, earnings releases, financial statemenitshan
various corporate governance documents are alskaklea
free of charge upon written reque

Annual CEO Certification

The annual CEO Certification required by SectioB802
(a) of the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company
Manual was provided to the New York Stock Exchaoge
or about March 29, 2007.

Direct Inquiries To:

Investor Relations
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
1437 South Boulder Avenue
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74119
Telephone: (918) 742-5531

Internet Address: http://www.hpinc.cc
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Exhibit 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
Subsidiaries of Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

White Eagle Assurance Company (Incorporated in \éern
Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Co. (Ingarated in Delaware)

Subsidiaries of Helmerich & Payne International Driling Co.

Helmerich & Payne (Africa) Drilling Co. (Incorpoed in Cayman Islands, British West Indies)
Helmerich & Payne (Colombia) Drilling Co. (Incormbed in Oklahoma)

Helmerich & Payne (Gabon) Drilling Co. (Incorpordie Cayman Islands, British West Indies)
Helmerich & Payne (Argentina) Drilling Co. (Incomated in Oklahoma)

Helmerich & Payne (Boulder) Drilling Co. (Incorpoed in Oklahoma)

Subsidiary of Helmerich & Payne (Boulder) Drilling Co.

Helmerich and Payne Mexico Drilling, S. De R.L.@#&/. (Incorporated in Mexico)
Helmerich & Payne (Boulder) Drilling Co. Limitadiifnited Liability Company—
Incorporated in Chile)

Helmerich & Payne (Australia) Drilling Co. (Incomated in Oklahoma)
Helmerich & Payne del Ecuador, Inc. (Incorporate@®@klahoma)
Helmerich & Payne de Venezuela, C.A. (Incorporatedenezuela)
Helmerich & Payne Rasco, Inc. (Incorporated in Qklaa)

H&P Finco (Incorporated in Cayman Islands, Britisfest Indies)

H&P Invest Ltd. (Incorporated in Cayman IslandstiBin West Indies)

The Space Center, Inc. (Incorporated in Oklahoma)
Helmerich & Payne Properties, Inc. (Incorporate@kiahoma)
Utica Square Shopping Center, Inc. (Incorporate@kfahoma)

Subsidiaries of Utica Square Shopping Center, Inc.

Fishercorp, Inc. (Incorporated in Oklahoma)







Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeeeincthis Annual Report (Form 10-K) of HelmerichReayne, Inc. of our report dated
November 26, 2007, with respect to the consolidfitethcial statements of Helmerich & Payne, Inecluded in the 2007 Annual Report
Shareholders of Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

We consent to the incorporation by refeeeincthe following Registration Statements:

(D) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-34939) pertaining to the Helmerich & Payne, Inc98 $tock Incentive Plal
(2) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-63124) pertaining to the Helmerich & Payne, Indd@&tock Incentive Plan, al

3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-13714#&gpeng to the Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005 Longrh Incentive Plan;

of our report dated November 26, 2007, with respetiie consolidated financial statements of Helohe& Payne, Inc. incorporated herein by
reference and our report dated November 26, 200 respect to the effectiveness of internal cdraxer financial reporting of Helmerich &
Payne, Inc., included herein.

Tulsa, Oklahoma
November 26, 200







Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Hans Helmerich, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (the "Company

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsotimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the Company as of, andlfierperiods presented in this report;

4. The Company's other certifying officer and | argprensible for establishing and maintaining disalestontrols and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Company hade:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduies ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Company, including its consolidatedsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingeared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahetporting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's discecontrols and procedures and presented imgjpst our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Compsimgernal control over financial reporting thatored during the Company
most recent fiscal quarter (the Company's fougbdi quarter in the case of an annual report)ltaatmaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Comparigternal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Company's other certifying officer and | haigtbsed, based on our most recent evaluationtefrial control over financit
reporting, to the Company's auditors and the AGdinmittee of the Company's Board of Directors (@nspns performing the
equivalent functions):

(@)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Comyfsaability to record, process, summarize andntdpwancial information; an

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the Company
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 28, 20(
/s/ Hans Helmericl

Hans Helmerich
President and Chief Executive Offic







Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Douglas E. Fears, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (the "Company

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsotimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the Company as of, andlfierperiods presented in this report;

4. The Company's other certifying officer and | argprensible for establishing and maintaining disalestontrols and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Company hade:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduies ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Company, including its consolidatedsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingeared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahetporting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's discecontrols and procedures and presented imgjpst our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Compsimgernal control over financial reporting thatored during the Company
most recent fiscal quarter (the Company's fougbdi quarter in the case of an annual report)ltaatmaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Comparigternal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Company's other certifying officer and | haigtbsed, based on our most recent evaluationtefrial control over financit
reporting, to the Company's auditors and the AGdinmittee of the Company's Board of Directors (@nspns performing the
equivalent functions):

(@)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Comyfsaability to record, process, summarize andntdpwancial information; an

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the Company
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 28, 20(
/sl Douglas E. Fea

Douglas E. Fears
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic







Exhibit 32

Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of kefich & Payne, Inc. (the "Company") on FormHK®er the period ended September 30, 2
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseinthe date hereof (the "Report"), Hans HelmeshPresident and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, and Douglas E. Fears, &e Wresident and Chief Financial Officer of the @any, each hereby certifies, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant tadBe2®6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to thstlof his knowledge, that:

(D) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefctions 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchahgeof 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or
780(d)); and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctiodiand result of operations of t

Company.
/s/ Hans Helmerich /s/ Douglas E. Fears
Hans Helmerich Douglas E. Fears
President and Vice President and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Date: November 28, 20( Date: November 28, 20(







